
NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi– 110075, 

Tel: 011-25076536, FAX: 25076536. Email: nhiimpl@nhai.org 
CIN: U65929DL2020GOI366835   

 

Date: 22nd  May, 2023 

Corporate Relations Department, 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400 001 

The Listing Department, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited  
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,  
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),  
Mumbai – 400 051 

 
Ref: Scrip Code: 543385; Scrip ID/Symbol: NHIT 
 
Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
 
Dear Sir/ Ma’am, 
 
In furtherance to the intimation dated 16th May, 2023 and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“InvIT Regulations”), as amended from time to 
time, read with Regulation 51 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, we hereby inform 
you that the meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of National Highways Infra Investment 
Managers Private Limited acting in the capacity of Investment Manager to National Highways Infra 
Trust (“NHAI InvIT”) was held today i.e. 22nd May, 2023, wherein the Board, inter-alia, considered and 
approved the following matters:  
 

1) Considered and approved the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Information/Results of NHAI InvIT for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2023 along with 
Auditors’ Report thereon. The Annual Financials and Audit Report are enclosed as Annexure 
I. 
 
Further, please note that the financial information of the Investment Manager is not disclosed 
as there is no material erosion in the net worth. 
 
We further hereby declare that in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 52(3)(a) of the 
SEBI LODR Regulations, the Statutory Auditors i.e. A. R. & Co., Chartered Accountants, New 
Delhi, have issued the Audit Reports with Unmodified Opinion on the Annual Audited Financial 
Information/Results of the NHAI InvIT for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 
2) Considered and approved the quantum of distributions to be paid to the unitholders of Rs. 

1.6035 per unit for the quarter ended 31st March, 2023. The distribution will be paid (subject 
to applicable withholding taxes, if any) as Rs. 1.5778 per unit as Interest and Rs. 0.0257 per 
unit as other income on surplus funds at Trust level.   
 
The said distributions shall be paid within 15 days from the date of declaration.    
 
Further, the Record Date is declared as 24th May, 2023 to ascertain the eligibility of Unit 
holders entitled to receive the aforesaid distributions. 
 

3) Took note of the Valuation of the existing assets of NHAI InvIT prepared by independent valuer 
(RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (“RBSA”))  for the period ended 31st March, 2023 which provides 
the valuation of the SPV as Rs.11260.20 Crores (Equity valuation of Rs.1956.17 Crores).  
 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi– 110075, 

Tel: 011-25076536, FAX: 25076536. Email: nhiimpl@nhai.org 
CIN: U65929DL2020GOI366835   

 

4) Pursuant to Regulation 10(21) of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended from time to time read with circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, the Net 
Asset Value (“NAV”) of NHAI InvIT as of 31st March, 2023 as computed by the management 
based on the Valuation Report issued by Valuer is Rs.118.13 per unit. However, factoring in 
the approved distribution of Rs.116.47 Crores the NAV as computed by the management, 
based on the Valuation Report issued by the Valuer would be Rs.116.52 per unit. 
 

 
Further the discussions on raising of funds and related matters were deferred to a subsequent meeting 
to be held on a date to be decided by the Board. 
 
The Board Meeting commenced at 11.00 a.m. and concluded at 6.30 p.m.  
 
You are requested to take the same on your record. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
For National Highways Infra Trust  
 
By Order of the Board  
National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
 
 
 
Gunjan Singh 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
 



AR. & CO. Delhi Office: 
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment Airlines 

Group Housing Society, Plot No 27, 
Sector -10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 
Cell No.-9810195084, 9810444051 
E-mail: ar_co1981@yahoo.co.in 

pawankgocl1 @gmail.com 

C-1, Il Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201001 Dethi-NCR National 
Capital region Of Delhi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE HALF YEARLY AND YEAR 

TO DATE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRUST PURSUANT 

TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI (INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT 

TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 

(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

G-5 & 6, Sector-10, 

Dwarka, Delhi - 110075 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of standalone financial results 

of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or 

NHIT”), consisting of the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional 

disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No, 

CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 (“SEBI Circular”) for the 

half year and the year ended March 31, 2023 (the standalone statement of 

Profit & Loss including other comprehensive income, other comprehensive 

income, explanatory notes and additional disclosures together referred to as 

“the Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the National 

Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment 

Manager”) pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI 

(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time 

to time read with SEB! Circular. 
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In our opinion and to the best ef our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the Statement: 

a. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of 

SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 

amended from time to time, read with SEBI Circular No. 

CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016, and any other 

relevant circulars in this regard; and. 

b, Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of 

the net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial 

information of the Trust for the half year and the year ended March 

31, 2023. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 

issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results’ section of 

our report. Weare independent of the Trust in accordance with the ‘Code of 

Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 

financial results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is-sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Standalone financial results. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 

MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual 

financial statements. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is 

responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives 

a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and 

other financial information of the Trust in accordance with the requirements 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment 

Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time (“SEBI InvIT 

Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the 
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Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not 

inconsistent with SEBI InviT Regulations, This responsibility includes the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager 

are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of 

Investment Manager either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is also responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust, 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 

also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

 



override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

the effectiveness of the Trust's internal controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of 

Investment Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going 

concern, 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

OTHER MATTERS 

1, The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the half year 

 



ended March 31, 2023 being the balancing figures between the audited 

figures in respect of full financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the 

published unaudited year-to-date figures up to September 30, 2022, being 

the date of the end of the first half of the current financial year, which 

were subject to limited review as required under Regulation 23 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment 

Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended trom time to time read with SEBI 

Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016. 

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

For A. R, & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN. 002744C 

Cat 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta 

Partner 
Membership No: 085003 
UDIN: 23085003BGWVFG8727 

   
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22.05.2023



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Audited Standalone Financial Results forthe half year and year ended 31 March 2023 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBE Cireular No. CIRSIMD/DF/127/2016 

Statement of Related Parties 

A. List of Related Parties ‘as per requirement of IND-AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” 

  

Enterprises where Control / significant influence exists 
    
National Highways lafra Projects Private: Limited 

(Subsidiary Company) 
  

B. List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zy) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations 

Parties to the Trust 

National Highways Intra Investment Managers Private Limited {NHIUMPL) - Investment Manager (IM) of the Trust 
11913) Trusteeship Services Limited (ITS) - Trustee of the Trust 

National Highways Authorityol India (NHAB- Sponsor 
National Highways InvIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPT:)« Project Manager 

Promoters of the Parties to the Trust specified above 

Gaveniment of India (facting through Ministry of Read. ‘Transport & [fighways (MORTH)) - Promoter of NHIMPL 
IDBI Bank Limited (IDB Bank) - Promoter of TSE 

Government of India {facting through Ministry of Read, Transport & Highways {MOR1111) - Promoter of NHAI 
National Highways Authority of India (NITAT- Promoter ol NEUPMPL. 

Directors of the parties to the Trust specified above 

Directors of NHIIMPL 

Mr, Suresh Krishan Goyal 
Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy 
Mr, Balasubramanyamn Sriram (Ceased to he Director ws.e.f: 31.48.2023) 

Mr. Mubusir Prasad Sharma 
Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharola 
Mr, Amit Kumar Ghosh’ 
Mrs. Kavita Saha (Ceased to be Director w.e.f 29.71.2022. however reappointed on 06.01.2023 } 

Mr. Bruce Ross Crane (Ccased to be Director wef 29.11.2022, however reappointed on 06,01,2023 ) 
Mr, NDR SOMLK, Rajendra Kumar 

Mr. Vivek Rae (Ceased lo be Direvtor wet 12.07.2022) 

Mr. Sumit Base (Appointed vac. 101.2023) 

Directorsof ITSL 
Mr. Samuel Joseph 
Mr. Pradvep Kumar Jain 

Ms. Jayashree Ranadye 

Ms, Madhuri Jayant Kulkarni (Ceased to be Director w,.8, 0 06,12,2022} 
Ms. Padma Vinod Betai (Ceased lo be Director w.ech 31.12.2022} 

Mr, Pradeep Kamar Malhotra (Appointed w.e.f, 14.12.22) 
Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal (Appointed w.¢.t; 17,01,2023) 

Directors of NUIPMPL 

Mr. Ashish Asau (Ceased to be Director ae 28/10,20224 
Mr, Akhil Khare {Appointed w.e.f 28/10.2022) 

Mr, Muralidhara Rao Bugatha (Ceased to be Director w.e.f 17.01.2023) 
MrcAshish Kumar-Singh (Appointed weet, £7.04.2023) 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A tothe SEBI Circular No, CIRAMDDE/127/2016 

dD, 

C. Transactions with Related Parties during the period 
(All amounts in Z lakh unless otherwise stated} 

  

      

    

  

      

  

                    

  

  

  

    

  

  
  

               
   

x <. 
“ 

\ 
New Gathil!s! 

45 
opty 

™~        

Half year Half year Halfyear | Year ended | Year cnded 

Pariemars ended March ended ended March 31, | “March 31, 

" 31,2023 =| September 30;| March 31, 2023 2022 

2022 2022 

(Audiied) (Gaandited) fAuditeds (Audited) (Andited) 
National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (NHIPPL 

Transaction during the period/year 

Purchase-ol equity shares of NIIPPL . 3 ¥ 1.29.410.00 - 1.29.410.00 
Advancement of Long Term Loan to NHIPPI. 284.966.66 - 645,640.00 | 2.84.966.06.) 6.05.640,00 
Recgipl of interest on Long ‘erm Loan given to NOIPPL. 67 998.30 26,700.00 22,843.13 | 94,698.30 | 22,843.13 
Reimbursement of ROC Pee paid by NHIT on behalf af NHIPPL 432,66 = 274,98 432.66 274, 9R 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Priyate Limited (NHIIMPL) 

‘Transaction during the period/year 

Investment Manager lex. F753 FIS.86 eke en | LAGLAL? 1.931.791 

Advanee Investment Manager Fees 86.06 $6.06 - 

Reimbursément of xpenses paid by NLT on hehail of NITIPPT. 3099 - 214.80 39.79 214.80 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAT 

Transaction during the period/year 

Reimbursement of Pre-[ssue expenses of NHET by NHAL “ - 578.02 - 578.02 
Purchase of equity shares of Project SPY (NITMPPL) by the Preset je 10,153.52 ies 
ss 2 - Fos ” 10:453.32 
{rem NILA) 
Issue of units of Trast cy NHAI 21,366.83 - 96.556.00) 21.366.83 96.556,00 
Interest distribution 1,621.94 3.967,40 - 5,589.34 - 

IDBITrusteeshi Services 

Transaction during the period/year’ 

Payment of Trustee Fee 7.92 4:81 12.15 12:79 12.15 

Other fees related to Round 1&2 Assets 354 - - 3.54 - 

Closing Balance with Related Parties 

Half year Half year Half year. | Yearended| Year ended 

. ded March ended ended March 31 March 31 Particul en 5 ; 
aeeniars 31,2023 | September 30;| March 31, 2023 2022 

___-2022 2022 
‘| (Audited) (Unandited) | (Audited) (Audited (Audited) 

National Highways Intra Projects Private Limited (NHIPPL) 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/year 

Investment in equity: shares-of NIUPPL 1,29.410.00 | — 1.29.410.00] 1.29.410.00 | 1.29.410.00 | 1.29.410.00 
Long berm Loan to NHIPPL 8.90,606.66 6.05.6490.00 | 6.05,640.00 | 8,90,606,66 | 6,05,640,00 

Interest receivable on Long Perm Loan given to NEIPPL 46,688.43 23,382.13 T.657.13] 46,688.43 1O.ASL13 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAL 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/year 
Issu¢ of units Of Trust to NHAT (9,56,00.000 units) 1,LF.922.83 96,556.00 96.556.00 | 1.17,922.83 96.546.00 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited {NHHMPL) 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/year 

IM Fees Payable 1.89 L89 

Balanee outstanding at the end of the period/year 

Initial Set Weu - 0.10 0.10 - 0.10 
‘Trustee, eubhe 4 1.75 5.49 277 L.73 2.77 

WA 

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Audited Standalone Financial Results for the half year and year ended 31 March 2023 
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The investor can view the result of the National Highway Infra ‘Trust (Trust) on the Trust's website (https:/www-nhaiinvit.in’) 
or on the websites of BSE (uww.bseindia.com) or NSE (www.nseindia.com). 

The.audited Standalone Financial results of National Highways Infra ‘rust (‘Trust’) for the half yearand year ended 31st March, 

2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
(‘Investment Manager’ of Trust) on 22nd May, 2023 and thereafter approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment 
Manager on 22nd May, 2023. 

‘The Statutory Auditors of the Trust haye audited Standalone Financial Results forthe half year and year ended 31st March, 
2023 and have issued an unmodified review report , 

‘The audited Standalone Financial results comprise the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and explanatory notes thereto 

of the National Highways Intra'l rust (‘the Trust’) for the period ended 31st March, 2023 (‘the Statement’). The Statement has 

been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (ind 

AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2 (1) (a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India. ‘The Statement has been prepared solely for submissions to be made by 

the Investment Manager with the Stock Exchanges {both BSE and NSE) and as additional information for-stakeholders of the 
Trustand therefore it may not be suitable for another purpose. 

National Highway Infra Trust (“Trust” or “Invi'l”) is registered as an Irrevocable Trust registered under the provisions of the 

Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 19th October, 2020. It was registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Infrastructure Investment Trust) Rezulations,.2014 on 28th October, 2020 having registration number IN/InvIT/20-2.1 0014, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manauer has declared distribution for Quarter 4 FY 22-23 of Rs. 1.6035 per unil 

which comprised of Rs. 1.5778 per unit as retum on capital and Rs 0,0257 per unit as other income on surplus funds at Trust 

level in their meeting held on 22nd May 2023. In Quarter 3 FY 22-23 distribution of Rs. 1.4079 per unit was made which 
comprised of Rs, 1.383 per unit as interest pass through income and Rs 0.0249 per unit as other income on surplus funds at 

‘Trust level in their meeting held on 14th February 2023. The Board of Investment Manager had earlicr approved distribution 

for Quarter 2 FY 22-23 for the period Ist July 2022 to 26th September, 2022 of Rs. 1.61 per unit as interest pass through 

income in their meeting held on 27th September’2022. The same was distributed to unit holders on 7th October, 2022. For 
Quarter | FY 22-23 distribution of Rs, 1.75 per unit was made which comprised of Rs. 1.74 per unit as interest pass through 

income, Rs. 0,01 per unit-as other income on surplus funds at Trust level in their meeting held on 12th August 2022, the same 

was distributed to unit holders on 23rd August, 2022, 

‘The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of the National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (Project SPY's) 

on 3rd Noveinber, 2021 on an equity consideration of Rs. 1,39,853.53 lakh. 

As per Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’. based on management review on expected future cash flows and economic conditions 
of the assets of the Trust, no indicators of impairment! of assets exist as on the reporting date, Hence no provision for 

impairment has been recognized in the books on the reporting date 

As per Ind AS 109, Financial Assets that are measured at amortized cost are required to compute the Expected Credit Loss 

(ECL). As at the reporting period, the Investment Manager of the Trust assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and 

concluded that no provision for ECL is required. 

All values are rounded to nearest lakh, untess otherwise indicated. Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed and do not 

appear due to rounding off are expressed:as 0.00. 

Previous period‘ycar figures have been réclassified‘regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to current period classification: 

he National Highway Infra Trust (“Trust” or “fnvIT") has raised additional unit capital in FY 2622-23 through Institutional 

Placement of units i.e issue of 11,16,02,600 units @ Rs 109 per unit (amounting to Rs 1,21.646.83 lakh) and also issued 
1,96.02,600 units (amounting to Rs 21,366.83 lakh) issued @ 109 per unit to its Sponsor National Highways Authority of India 

by way of Preferential Issue of Units. 

The National Highway Infra Trust (Trust? or “InvIT™) had raised debt through Public Issue of Secured: Rated, listed, 

Redeemable 1,50,00.000 Non Convertible Debentures amounting to Rs 1,50,000 lakh redeemable from FY 2030-31 onwards. 

The rate of interest on these debentures is 7.90% p.a and payable semi- annually. 

     Ao



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Audited Standalone Financial Results for the half year and year ended 31 March 2023 

14 ‘The National Highway Infra Trust (“Trust” or “InvIT”) has received sanction from Bank of Maharashtra of Rs 85,700 lakh for 

‘lerm Loan for anlending to $PV for initial improvement works and Rs 20,000 lakh for Bank Guarantees-and LCs, 

15 The Trust has also signed Facility agreements on 10th October 2022 for lending to its SPV NHIPPL Rs 3,73,400 lacs for the 
three new road assets, 

16 The National [lighways Infra Projects Private Limited ("NHIPPL) has entered into three new concession agreements with 

National Highways Authority of India for acquision of three new road assets on 26th September 2022. The concession fees for 
these. projects has been paid on 28th October 2022 to NHAT as detailed below: 

Project Name resi unt (Rs in 

Agra Bypass 1,02,99 5.00 

Shivpari to Jhansi 45,393.65 

Borkhedi -Wadner- Deodhari- Kelapur 136,582.00 

Total 2,84,966.65 

17 The NHIPPL has. not created deferred tax assets on major maintainatie obligation, as carried forwurd business losses will not 

be available for utilisation within the time limit allowable as per the Income Tax Act based on the future projections of the 

profitability of the entity. 

For and on behalf of the National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 

(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

6 a ante 
Ga ha 

| \ 

Ganigh ci Mathew George Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Compliance Officer ‘Chief Financtal Officer Director 

DIN: 02721S80 

Place: New Deihi 

Date: 22.05.2023 

 



AR. & CO, Dethi Office: 
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment Airlines 

Group Housing Society, Plot No 27, 
Sector -10, Dwarka, New Delhi -110075 
Cell No.-9810195084, 9810444051 
E-mail; ar_co1981@yahoo.co.in 

pawankgoell @gmail.com 

C-1, Il Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201001 Delhi-NCR National 
Capital region Of Delhi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE HALF YEARLY AND YEAR TO 

DATE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRUST PURSUANT 

TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI (INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT 

TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 

(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

G-5 & 6, Sector-10, 

Dwarka, Delhi - 110075 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of consolidated financial results 

of National Highways Infra ‘Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or 

NHIT”) comprising its one subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as “the National 

Highways Infra Projects Private Limited or NHIPPL”) (the Trust and its 

subsidiary “NHIPPL” together referred to as “the Group”), consisting of the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required 

in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 

dated November 29, 2016 (“SEBI Circular’) for the half year and year ended 

March 31, 2023 (the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss including other 

 



comprehensive income, explanatory notes and additional disclosures together 

referred to as “Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment 

Manager”) pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI 

(infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time 

to time read with SEBI Circular. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, and the based on the consideration of our report on 

subsidiary’s Standalone Financial Statements, the Statement: 

a. Includes the results and other disclosures of the National Highways 

Infra Projects Private Limited; 

b, Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of 

SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 

amended, read with SEB! Circular No, CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 

November 29, 2016, and any other relevant circulars in this regard; 

and 

c. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, ofthe 

consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income and other 

financial information of the Group for the half year and year ended 

March 31, 2023. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 

issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results’ section of our report. We 

are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 

results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 



RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 

MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual 

financial statements. The Board of Directors’ of the Investment Manager is 

responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a 

true and fair view of the consolidated net profit and other comprehensive 

income and other financial information of the Group in accordance with the 

requirements of the SEBI InvIT regulations as amended, Indian Accounting 

Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEB! InvIT 

Regulations. The Board of Directors of the subsidiary included: in the Group 

are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

controls, that were operating ‘effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used 

for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Board of Directors of 

the Investment Manager, as aforesaid, 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager and 

the Board of Directors of the subsidiary included in the Group are responsible 

for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 

as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

The Board 6f Directors of Investment Manager and the subsidiary included in 

the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 

of the Group. 

 



AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

Statement asa whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 

Statement, 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the 

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

e Conchide on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of 

Investment Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, 

If we conclude that.a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

 



opinion, 

e Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Group to cease to continue asa going concern, 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation, 

e Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 

information of the Trust and subsidiary included in the Statement of 

which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the 

Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audit of financial statements of the Trust and 

subsidiary included in the Statement of which we are the independent 

auditors, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and the 

subsidiary included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditor 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

OTHER MATTERS 

1. The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the half 

year ended March 31, 2023 being the balancing figures between the 

audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 

2023 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to 30 

September 2022, being the date of the end of the first half of the 
current financial year, which were subject to limited review as 

required under Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as 

 



amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. 

CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November, 2016. 

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above 

matters. 

For A. R. & Co.     Chartered Accountants BNE ne. 
FRN. 002744C ps ce 

FRN 002744.C.) 
=A “4 ge te 

CA Kailash Chand Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No; 085003 
UDIN: 23085003BGWVFH9462 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 22.05.2023
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Audited Consolidated Financial Results for the half year and year ended March 31 2023 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIRAMD/DF/127/2016 

Statement of Related Parties 
A. List of Related Parties as per requirement of IND AS 24 —“Related Party Disclosures” 

  

Enterprises where Control / significant influence cxists | National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) 

B. List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations. 

tot! 

National Highways Infta Investment Managers Povate Limited (NHIMPL} - Investment Manager (IM) of the Trust 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (1TSL) - Trastee of the Trust 
National Highways Authority of India (NUAI)- Sponser 
National | lighways InvIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL )- Project Manager 

Promoters: : Parties to the Trust specified above 

Government of India ({acting through Ministry of Road. Transport & Highways (MORTH))- Promoter of NHIIMPL 
IDBI Bank Limited (DBI Bank) - Promoter of ITSL 
Government of India (acting through Ministey of Road. Transport & Ilighways: (MORTI ()) - Promoter ol NILAL 

National Highways Authoricy of India (NHAD- Peomater of NHIPMPL. 

Directors of the parties to the Trust specified above: 

Directors of NHIIMPL 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 
Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy 
Mr. Balasubramanyam Sriram (Ceased to be Director wc:t)3 1.03,2023) 
Mr. Mahavir Prasad Sharma 
Mr, Pradeep Singh Kharola 
Mr. Amit Kumar Ghosh 

Mrs, Kavita Saha (Ceased to be Director we)29.11.2022; however reappointed on 06.01.2023 ) 
Mr, Bruce Ross’ Crane (Ceased to be Direetor-wsect, 29.11.2022. however reappointed on 06.01.2023 ) 

Mr. N.RLV.V.M.K, Rajendra Kumar 
Mr. Vivek Rac (Ceased lo be Director woe. 12.407,2022) 
Mr. Sumit Bose (Appointed wef, 11.01.2023} 

Directors of LTSL. 

Mr.J. Samuel Joseph 
Mr, Pradeep Kumar Jain: 
Ms. Jayashree Ranacle 
Ms, Madhuri Jayant Kulkarni (Ceased to he Director wef) 06.12.2022) 
Ms. Padma Vinod Betai (Ceased to be Director wie!) 31.12.20225 
Mr, Pradeep Kumar Malhotra, Appointed w.e.f, 14.12.22) 
Ms, Baljinder Kaur Mandal ¢Appointed w.e.0 17.01,2023) 

Directors.of NITIPMPL, 

Mr. Ashish Asati (Ceased to be Director w.e.f; 28.10.2022) 
Mr. Akbil Khare (Appointed w-c.f. 28.10.2022) 
Mr. Muralidhura Rao Bugatha (Ceased to be Director wef 17.01.2023) 
Mr. Ashish Kumar Singh (Appointed w.c. 17.01.2023) 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Cirenlar No. CLRAIMD/DF/127:2016 

C. Transactions with Related Parties during the period 

  

  

  

  

    

              

  

  

  

  

Haifyear |Halfyeur ended) Half year ended) Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars ended March | March 31, 2022] September 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 

31, 2023 2022 
(Auditedi FA ceed feel (Uyierielited) (Audited) (Audited) 

ted (NHTIMPE) 

Investment Manager Pees F531 LOSE 7t FES.86 1491.17 LOSttt 

Advance Investment Manager Fees 86.06 - - 86.06 - 

Reimbursement of Expenses to SHIIMPL 39.79 214.80 - 39.79 21480 

Nati iighways Authority of India (NHA 

‘Transaction during the vear 

Reimbursement of Pre-Issue expenses of NIT by NHAI - 578.02 - - 478.02 
Purchase af equity shures of Project SPV (NHIPPL) by the 2 

- 10.183,52 - 10,153.52 
Trust from NHAT 
Issue of uniis.of Trust te NHAL 21,266.83 96:556,D0 : 21.366,83 96,456,00 
Interest ahd other income distribution 1,621.94 Fs 3 967.40 S.5R9,34 x 

O& VM Expenses _ 4752.42 - - 1,152.32 - 
Payment for acquiting intangible assets 284,966.66 7.35,040.00 - 2.84.966.46 735,040.00 
Dauble tall fees 6F91F - - 679.17 5 

Independent engineers tees 343:38 - - 345.38 - 

(NHIPMPL) 

495.60 290.43 495.60 991.20 290,43 

‘Transaction darlie the peviod/year 

Trusteeship Pee 792 12.15 4.81 12.73 Lats 
Other fees 3.54 - : 3.44 - 

D. Closing Balance with Related Parties 

Half year Half year ended : 
- x Half year ended : Year Ended Year Ended 

Particulars ended March |. September 30, 
31, 2023 March 31, 2622 2022 March 31, 2023) March 31, 2022 

(Lintindited) fLnaudited) (Unaudited, (Asutited) (Audited) 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/year = . 
Issuc of units of [rust to NELAT 117,922.83 96,556.00 96,556.00 117,922.83 96,556.00 
Q& VW Expenses paynhle 880,35 - 880.35 - 
Double tall fees payable 148.21 : 148.21 - 
Independent Engineers Fees payable 276.03 - 276.03 - 

‘a ‘'T Project Manayers P (NHIPMIPL) 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/ycar 

Project Manager fees Poyuble 762.50 290.43 329.43 762.50 290.43 

National Miehwavs Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHITMPL) 

Balance outstanding at the end of the period/year 

IM Feces Payable E89 - - 1.8Y - 

GST Amant payable OAB - : 1,48 = 

IDBI Trusteeshi ices Limited 

Balance outstanding at the end af the period/year 

Initial Settlement Amount - 0.00 0.30 - in 

Trustee Fee Payable 1.73 2.37 SAD L.23 2:77         
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Results for the half year and year ended 31 March 2023 
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The investor can view the result of the National Highway Infra Trust (Trust) on the Trust's website (hups:'/www.ohaiinvilin’) or 
on the websites of BSE (wew.bseindia.com) or NSE (vw nseindia.com), 

The audited Consolidated Financial results of National Highways Infra Trust (‘Trust’) for the half yeur and year ended 31st 
March, 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
(‘Investment Manuger of Trust) on 22nd May, 2023 and thereafter approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment 

Manager on 22nd May, 2023. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Trust have audited Consolidated Financial Results for the half year and year ended 31st March, 
2023 and have issued an unmodified review report . 

‘The audited Consolidated Financial results comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), and explanatory notes thereto of the National Highways InfraTrust (‘the Trust’) for the period ended 

31st March, 2023 (‘the Statement’). The Statement has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2 (1) {a) of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules. 2015 and other accounting: principles generally accepted in India. The 
Statement has been prepared solely for submissions to be made by the Investment Manager with the Stock Exchanges (both 

BSE and NSE) and as additional information for stakeholders of the Trust and therefore it may not be suitable for another 
purpose. 

National Highway Infra Trust (“Trust” or “Inv]IT™) is registered as an Irrévocable ‘Trust registered under the provisions of the 
Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 19th October, 2020. ft was tegistered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on 28th October. 2020 having registration number IN/InvIT/20-2 1/0014, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution for Quarter 4 FY 22-23 of Rs, 16035 per unit 

which comprised of Rs. |.8778 per unit as return on capital and Rs 0.0257 per unil-as other income on surplus funds at ‘Trust 
level in their meeting held on 22nd May 2023. In Quarter 3 FY 22-23 distribution of Rs. 1.4079 per unit was made which 
comprised of Rs. 1.383 per unit as interest pass through income and Rs 0.0249 per unit as other income on surplus funds at 
‘Trust leve) in their meeting held on 14th February 2023. The Board of Investment Manager bad earlier approved distribution for 
Quarter 2 FY 22-23 for the period Ist July 2022 to 26th September, 2022 of Rs. 1.61 per unit as interest pass through Income in 
their meeting held on 27th September 2022, The same was distributed to-unit holders on 7th October, 2022. For Quarter | FY 22: 
23 distribution of Rs. 1.75 per unit vas made which comprised of Rs. 1.74 per unit as interest pass through income, Rs. 0.01 per 
unit as other income on surplus funds at Trust level in their meeting held on 12th August 2022, the same was distributed to unit 
holders on 23rd August, 2022: 

The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of the National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (Project SPV's) 

on 3rd November; 2021 on an equity consideration of Rs. |.39.553.53 lakh. 

As per Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’, based on management review on expected future cash flows and economic conditions 
of the assets of the ‘Lrust, no indicators of impairment of assets exist as on the reporting date; Hence no provision for impairment 

hus been recognized in the books on the reporting date 

As per Ind AS. 109, Financial Assets that are measured at amortized cost are required to compute the Expected Credit Loss 
(ECL). As at the reporting period, the Investment Manager of the Trust assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and 
concluded that no provision for ECL is required. 

All values are rounded to- nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated. Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed and do not 

appear due to rounding olf are expressed.as 0.00, 

Previous period‘ycar figures have been reclassified‘regrouped wherever necessary to conlirm to current period classification; 

The National Highway Infra Trust (“Trust® or“InvIT7) bas raised-additional unit capital in FY 2022-23 through Institutional 
Placement of units ie issue of 11.16,02,600 units @ Rs 109: per unit (amounting to Rs | 21,646.83 lakh) and also issued 
1,96,02,600 units {amounting to Rs 21,366.83 lakh) issucd @ 109 per unit to its Sponsor National Highways Authority of India 
by way of Preferential Issue of Units. 

‘The National Highway Infra Trust (*Trust™ or “inviT”) had raised debt through Public Issue of Secured, Rated, listed, 
Redeemable 1,50.00,000 Non Convertible Debentures amounting to Rs 1,50,000 Jakh redeemable from FY 2030-31 onwards. 

The rate of interest on these debentures is 7.90% p.a and payable semi- annually. 
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‘The National Highway Infra Trust ¢“Trust” or “InvlT™) has received sanction from Bank of Maharashtra of Rs 85,700 lakh for 
Term Loan for onlending to SPY for initial improvement works and Rs 20,000 lakh for Bank Guarantees and LCs. 

The Trust has also signed Facility agreements on |0th October 2022 for lending to its SPY NHIPPL Rs 3,73.400 lacs for the 

three new road assets. 

The National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited ("NHIPPL) has entered into three new concession agreements with 

National Highways Authority of India for acquision of three new road assets on 26th September 2022. The concession fees for 

these projects has been paid on 28th October 2022 to NHALI as detailed below; 

Project N Concession Amount (Rs in Lakhs) 

Agra Bypass 1,02,991.00 

Shivpuri to Jhansi 45,393.65 

Borkhedi -Wadner- Deodhari- Ketapur 136,582.00 

Total 2,84,966.65 

The NHIPPL has not created deferred (ax assets on major maintainance obligation, as carried forward business losses will not be 
available for utilisation within the time limit allowable as per the Income Tax Act based on the future projections of the 

profitability of the entity. 

For and on behalf of the National Highways Infra lovestment Managers Private Limited 
(investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

gt Gilli a 
ngh Mathew George Suresh Krishan Goyal 

‘Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer Dircetor 
DIN; 02721580 

  

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22.05.2023 

  



AR. & CO, Dethi Office: 
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment 

Airlines Group Housing Society 
Plot No 27, Sector-10, 
Dwarka, New Dethi -110075 
Cell No.9810195084, 9810444051 
E-mail: ar_co1981@yahoo.co.in 
pawankgocl1@gmail.com 

Corporate and Correspondence 
Office: C-1, Il Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar 
Ghaziabad- 201001 Delhi-NCR 
National Capital region Of Delhi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of National 
Highways Infra Trust (“the InvIT" or “the Trust’), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the Statement of Net: Assets at 

fair value as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (“NDCI's”) for the year then ended and 

notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
"the standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according te the 

explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 

information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to 

time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred 

to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in rule 

2(1){a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended 

(“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the 

extent not inconsistent with SEB! InvIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the 

Trust-as at 31 March 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its 

cash flows, its statement of changes in Unitholder's equity for the year ended 31 

March 2023, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023, its total returns at fair 

value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust for the year ended 31 

March 2023. 

 



BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

eur audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the SEBI 

InvIT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 

most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provideia separate opinion on these matters. We 

have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

   
        Our Audit Brecedi res 

included the following :- 
Assessment of Impairment of Investment 

made in and Loans given to the subsidiary 

company, National Highways Infra 

Projects Private Limited (“NHIPPL") e Assessed the - 

appropriateness of the 

As at March 31, 2023, the carrying amount of future cash flows 

    

Equity Investment by the Trust in NHIPPL 

amounted to Rs. 139,553.52. Lakhs, Further, 
the Trust has granted loam to NHIPPL till 

date amounting to Rs. 890,606.66 Lakhs. 

_ In accordance with its accounting policy and 

requirements under Ind AS, the management 

has performed an impairment assessment by 

comparing the carrying value of these 

investments made/ loans given to NHIPPL to 

their recoverable amount, 

For impairment testing, value in use has 

been determined by forecasting and 
discounting future cash flows of subsidiary 
company. Further, the value in use is highly 

sensilive to changes in critical variable used 
for forecasting the future cash flows | 

  

  

estimated including value 

in use determined, In 
making this assessment, 

we also evaluated the 

objectivity, independence 

and competency of 

specialists involved in the 

process; 

Assessed the assumptions 

around the key drivers of 

the revenue projections, 

future cash flow, discount 

rates / weighted average 

cost of capital that were 

used by the management. 

e As regards loan granted to 
    

  

 



  

    

  

including traffic projections for revenues and | 

discounting rates. The recoverable amount is | 

the higher of (a) fair value less cost to sell (b) 

value in use. The determination of the 

recoverable amount from — subsidiary 

company involves management estimates 

and judgment which may affect the outcome. 

So, there isan inherent risk in the valuation 

of investment/ recoverability of loans, due to 

the use of estimates and judgements 

mentioned above.   
Accordingly, the assessment of impairment 

of investment/loans in subsidiary company 

has been determined as a key audit matter. 

Refer Note 2.6 for the accounting policy on 

Impairment of Investments & Note 31 
relating to Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36 

“Impairment of Assets’ in Standalone 

Financials as at 31 March 2023. Also Refer 

Note 2.8 for the Accounting policy on 

Financial asset & Note 40 relating to 

Expected. Credit Loss on Financial Assets for 

impairment of loan receivables in the 
Standalone Financials as at 31 March 2023. 

NHIPPL, we have obtained | 

and considered 

Management evaluations 

of recoverability of loans 
granted to NHIPPL. 

Tested the arithmetical 
accuracy of Impairment 

Sheet. 

Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect, 

  

    Refer 

Computation and disclosures as 

prescribed in the SEBI InvIT regulations 
relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair 
Value and Total Returns at Fair Value   
As per SEBI InviT regulations, the Trust is | 
required to disclose statement of net assets 
at fair value and statement of total returns at 
fair value. The fair value is determined by 
forecasting and discounting future’ cash 
flows from the operations of the investee 
entities which involves management 
estimates and judgement. These estimates 
and judgements include discounting rates, 
‘Tax rates and inflation rates which are 
considered for computing the fair value, 

There is an inherent risk in the computation 
of fair value due to the use of estimates and 
judgements mentioned above. 

Therefore, computation and disclosures of 
statement of net assets at fair value and 
statement of total returns at fair value is 
considered as.a Key Audit Matter,   Note-40 Significant Accounting 

Ou r Audit Procedures 

included the following :- 

Obtained 

understanding 

requirements of SEBI 

InviIT regulations for 
disclosures relating to 

Statement of Net Assets at 

Fair Value and Statement 

of Total Returns at Fair 

Value. 

the | 

of the 

Assessed the Valuation   Report issued by the 

Indépendent Valuer 

engaged by the: 

management, Also 

assessed the 

appropriateness of the 

Trust's valuation 

methodology applied in 

determining the fair 
values, 

 



  

  

  

eS, 

  

Assumptions - Fair Valuation and 
Disclosures and Statement of ‘net assets at 
fair value and Statement of total returns at 
fair value in the standalone financial 
statements, 

¢ Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect: 

e Tested the arithmetical 

accuracy of computation 

in the statement of net 

assets and total returns at 

fair value. 

e Ensured that disclosures 

is in compliance with 

SEB! tnviT regulations 

relating to the statement 

of net assets at fair value 

and the statement of total 

returns at fair value. 
  

  

  

Related Party Transactions and 
Disclosures   
The Trust has undertaken transactions with 

its related parties in the normal course of 

business. These include making loans to 

Project SPV, earning interest on such loans, 

fees for services provided by related parties 

to Trust ete. as disclosed in Note 34 of the 
Standalone Financial Statements. 

Considering the importance of accuracy and 

completeness of related party transactions 

and its disclosures in the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements, we have 

considered this as a key audit matter. 

  

Our Audit Procedures 

included the following :- 

e Obtained the 
understanding of policies, 

processes and procedures 
in respect of identifying 

related parties, necessary 

approvals, recording and 

disclosure of related party 

transactions; including 

compliance of 

transactions and 

disclosures in accordance 

with InVIT regulations. 

e Tested the related party 

transactions with the 

underlying contracts and 

other supporting 

documents: for 

appropriate authorization 

and approval for such 

transactions, 

e Reviewed the minutes of 

governing body of Trust in 

connection with 

transactions tO assess 

authorization by the 

Board ‘and whether the 

transactions are in the 

ordinary course of | 
  

  

  

 



business at arm’s length 

and in accordance with | 
the SEBI InviT 

regulations, 

e Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect. 

e Ensured that the 

disclosures made in 

accordance with the 

requirements of Ind AS 

and SEBI InviT 

regulations. 

INFORMATION GTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON 

    
The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in: the 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report; Investment Manager’s Report 

including annexures to Investment Manager’s Report and other information as 

required te be given by SEB! InviT Regulations, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone’ financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing’so; consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other. information that we 

obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 

MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the preparation 

of these standalone financial statements that pive a true and fair view of the 

financial position as at 31 March 2023, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement of the Unitholder's equity: 

for the vear ended 31 March 2023, the net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023, 

the total returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2023, in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI 

InvIT Regulations, Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other 

 



accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent 

with SEBI InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI InvIT 

Regulations for safeguarding of the assets of the Trust and for preventing and 

detecting frauds:and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 

statements that give a'true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud and error. . 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is 

responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the poing 

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors-of Investment Manager 

either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager are also responsible for overseeing 

the Trust's financial reporting process. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the standalone 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit. conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements, 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient-and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery; 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's 

internal controls. 

cise



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment 

Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to 
continue asa going concern. If we conclude that.a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s report te the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going 

concern, 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it prebable that the economic 

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements, 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings 

that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them al] relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 

determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 

standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023 and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should ‘not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

 



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InvIT Regulations, we report that; 

a) We have-sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit; 

b) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss), the Standalone Statement of 

Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Equity, the Statement of Net 

Assets at fair value, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account of the Trust; 

c) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent 

with SEBI InvIT regulations. 

For A. R, & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 9 _-exents 
FRN. 002744C "px 

pum. 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No: 085003 
UDIN: 23085003BGWVFI3625 

   
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22.05.2023



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

TAH amounts are in 2 lakh untess otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

      

  

Particulars Notes | As al March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022 

Assets 

1) Noa - Current Assets 

(al Financial Assets 

(i) Investment in. subsidiary 3 1.39.353:52 1,39,553,52 
(i) Loans 4 $.90,606.66 6,05 .649.00 

(ii) Cher Financial Assets 5 O.670.84 31 70,8) 

‘Total non current assets 10,39,831.02 7,48,364.33 

2) Current Assets 

{ay Financial Assets 
it) Cash and Cash Cquivaients 6 14,080.38 5,793.33 
tii} Other Pinanomal Assets 7 4698288 10.656. 5 

{hi Other Current Asses 8 828.75 12.46 

Total current assets 64,592.01 16,462.30 

Total Assets 11,01, 723.03 764,826.63 | 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 

Ly Unit Capital 9 741.604 32 5.99 442.82 

2) Initial Settlement Amount O11 O.10 

3). Other Equity in 60,932.64 18.124.32 
Total Equity 8,02,037.06 6,17,567.24 

Liabilities 

1) Non-Current Liabilities 
ta} Financial Liabilities. 

(i) Borrowings 11 2,92, 158.33 1,45,886.94 
(6) Deferred ‘ax: Uabilities 12 - 314 

Total now current liabilities 2,92,153,33 1,45,560.10 

2) Current Liabilities 

ta) Financial Liabilities 

1) Borrowings 13 2,000.00 980.86 
fii) Trade Payables 14 

(a) Total Outstanding, dues of micry and small enterprises 3.88 - 

(6) Toul outstanding, dues of creditors other that micio- and 342,69 456.85 
smatl enterprises ™ 

(ti) Other Pmaneial Tiabititics: 15 5,129.59 > 
(by Other Current Linbilities 16 42.50 90-80 
tel Current 'T'ax Liabilities (Net) i? 8.93 l6t.3? 

Total current liabilittes FO27.64 1,699.28 

Frotat Eqnity and Liabilities 11,01,723.03 764,826.65 
Signiftcant Accounting Policies 1-2 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements = 3-50) 

This is the Balance Sheet referred to inaur-report of even date. 

For AR. & Co, For. and on behalf-Board of the National Highways 

prac ge infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants an (Investment Manager of National Highways Intra 

Firm Registeation to, HO27dAC Trust) 

Cee 
I Re \Yelewne? 

CA Kailash Chand Gupta Suresh Krishan Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Partner Director Director 

M.No.085003 DIN; 02721580 DIN: 03188413 
Mate: 22-05-2023 

Place: New Delhi 

waft 
Corgpliance OMcer



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 

(AH anions are in © taki wiless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            
  

Particulars Notes | For the year ended Vor the year ended 
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

Income 

Revenue from Operations 18 94,698.30 22,843.43 
Interest Income 19 352,28 5:86 
Profit on sate af investments 20 422.20 669.21 
Other income 21 316.59 318.67 

Total Income 95,789.37 23,836.87 

Expenses 
Investment Manager Fees 1.263.70 1,931.71 

lrusive Pees 9.60 3.73 
¥uluation expenses 4,00 x 

Annual listing fees 20.00 - 

Rating fees 0.20 0.57 

Audil Fees 

~ Statutory audit foes 2.90 2.50 

+ Other gudit services {including certification). 22 O88 - 
Custodian lees 0.84 - 

Finanee Cost 23 16,590.17 3.1S4.43 
Other Expenses 24 190,16 11248 

Total Expenses 18,082.45 5,205.13 

Profit./ (Loss) before Fax 77,706.92 18,631.74 
Tax Expenses 25 

Current Tax $73.89 436.36 
Current lux - carlier years O.01 - 
Deferred Tax expense4 credit) (3.16) 3.16 

Total Vax 470.94 39.52 

Profit for the year FP 236.07 18,192.23 

Other Comprehensive Income 

A Ci} Items that will not be reciassilied to Profit atid Loss - - 
(ii) Income tax relaling to items that-will not be reclassified to profit or lass - - 
TeG) lems that vill be reclassified to Profit and Loss: - - 
(ii Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit orioss - - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 77,236.17 18,192.23 

Earnings per Unit 
Basiv 26 11.76 3.06 
Daluterl 2 11.76 3.06 

Significant Accyunting Policies 1-2 

The accompanying notes form an intcgral part of these financial statements, 3-30 
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

       

  

   
   

For A.R. & Co, For and’on behalf Board of the National Ilighways 

Chartered Accountants SS lufra Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment 

Firm Registration no. O02744E Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 
lox 

AR 
Mg “RA 

9 oie iA Wien 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta” >S= Sutesh Krishan Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharm: 
Partner Director Director 
M.No.W8 S003 DIN:.02721580 DIN: 03158413 

Wate + 22-05-2023 
Piace } New Delhi 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SVANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASIT FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 

fT amounts ave fn fakh untess otherwise stated, 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulurs For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

A. Cash flows from operating activities 
Net Profit/(1oss) Belore Tax 77,706,92 18,631.74 
Adjustments to Reconcile Profit Before Tax to Net Cash Flows: 
Finance Cost (net) 16,590.17 3134.43 

Interést Income on Bank FDR (352.28) (5.86 

Interest. Income on long Term Loan-given to SPV (94,698.30) (22,843.13 
Interest received on Long Term daoan given 58,661.00 12,192.00 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds (422,20) (661,83 
Operating cash flows before Working Capital Changes 57,485.31 10,467.36 

Movements in Working Capital 

Decrease ¢ (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets (15.42) - 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (290.62) 0.59 
Decrease / {Increase} in Other Current Assets (834.96) (12.46 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 393.13 (146,87) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (0,00) 75:72 
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (57,30) 97.66 

Increase / (Decrease) in Ourrent Tax Liabilities - (0,59) 
Cash used in operating activities 56,680.14 1LO4A8 bdo 

Income Tax paid (626.47) (274.060) 

Net Cash Flows used in operating activities -A 56,053.47 10,207.40 

B, Cash flows from investing activities 

Long Term Loans given (2.84,966.66) (6.05,640,00) 
Parchase of Non Current Invesunents - (1.29,401,32) 
Investment in FOR {6,299.18} (G.170.81) 
Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 422.20 661.83 
Interest Reecived from Bank 168.40 - 
Net Cash Flows ased in investing activities - B (2,90,678,.25) (7,37,550,50) 

C. Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds front Issue of unit capital 143,013.67 S.91,000,00 
Expense incurred towards initial public debt olfering (1.689.00) ° 
Expense incurred towards institutional unit allotment {1,479,134 (1,364.99) 

Proceeds Iron Long Term Borrowings (net of processing {ees} « 1,47,646,00 

Finincing vharges paid (197.00) - 
Proceeds fram Long Term Borrowings -NCD 1.50,000.00 - 
Distribution paid to unit holders (34,927.86) - 

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings {1.010.985 (1.001.359) 

Finance Costs Paid (1), 180,86) G.143.04) 
Net-Cash Flows from financing activities -C 2,42,908.84 733,136.43 

Net Increase/Devrease in Cush and Cash equivalents (A 1 B-C) 8,287.06 §,793.33 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 5.79333 - 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 14,080.38 §,793.33 

Refér Note No, 43 for reconciliation of financing activilics, 
Nate: 

  

{i} The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in “Ind AS 7 Statement of Cush Flows”. 

{ii} Amounts in bracket represent outflows, 
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date. 
For A.R, & Co, For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 

Chartered Accountants Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment 

Firm Registration ne, 002744C Manager of Najional Highways Infra Trust) 

     
gt ae... Waker 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Partner’ Director Director 
M:No.085003 DEN: 02721580 DIN: 03 S841: if 
Dute = 22-05-2023 as Mew . 

Place ; New Delhi Ku Car 

Mathew George Gunja 

Chie! Financial Officer Comphiance ii



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Financial year ended March 31,2023 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIE 31, 2023 

A. Initial Settlement Amount 

(Al amounts ave in {lakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

        

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

Particulars Amount 

Balance as at April |, 2021 0.10 

Changes in unit capital - 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6.10 

Changes in unit capital - 
Balance as at March 3), 2023 0.70 

B. Unit Capital* 

Particulars Number of unit Amount 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 - - 

Changes in unit capital 59,52,00,000 6,01 ,152.00 
One time issue. expenses (1,709.18) 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 59,52,00,000 §,99,442.82 
Changes in unit capital 13,12.03,200 1 .43,013.67 

‘One time issue expenses (852.17) 
Balance as al March 31, 2023 72,64,05,200 7,41 604.32 

C, Other Equity** 
Particulars Reserves and Surplus ltems of Other Total 

Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss 

Retained Earnings} Remeasurement of Defined 
Benefit Obligation’ Plan 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 (67.90) = (67.90) 
Profit! (Loss) for the year 18,192.23 - 18,192.23 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 18,124.33 : 18,124.33 

Profit’ (Loss) for the year 77.236.17 FT 2356.47 
Less; 

Distribution to unit hokders® 
Interest 34,183.66 34,183.66 
Other Income 744.20 744.20 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 60,432.64 60,432.64       
“The distribution relates to the distributions during the financial year along with the distribution related to the last quarter of 1'Y 2021-22 
and does nat include the distribution relating to the period January 01, 2023 to March 31, 2023 which will be paid-after March 31, 2023- 
The distributions by the ‘Trust to its unit holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trast tinder the SEBI Invil’ 
Regulations. 

* Refer Note No. 9 

* Refer Note No, 10 

For A.R. & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

    

   

  

   

For and on behalf Board of the Natiowal Highways Infra 
Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager    

  
Firm Registration no. 002744 of National Highways Infra Trust) 

* NY Se 4 

: S al. rus cnt) a) Su ain Goyal vols Parsad Sharma 
Cy mee Director Director 

CA Kailash Chand Gupta DIN; 02721580 DIN: 03158413 

Parincr a 

M.No,085003 Killer al 
Date ; 22-05-2023 seen ey 
Place ; New Dethi Mathew George Gun slack 

Chief Financial Officer Combliance Officer  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

STATEMENT OF NET DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOWS (NDCP) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGE 31, 2023 

(All coronnis are int lakh uasleys otherwise stated) 
  

S.No. Particulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 
  

Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and lossfincome and expenditure 
(Standalone) (A) 

TF2I6N7 13,192.23 

  

ms
 Add: Income recognised in previous sear and recived in this. year 10,651.13 

  

Add: Depreciation and amortization as per starement of profit and toss necount, Incase-al 
Impairment reversal. same treeds to be deducted from profit and loss:. 
  

Add/Less? Loss‘gain on sale of infrastnicture assets 
    

Add: Proceeds trom sule of infrastructure assets ikljusted for the following: 

related ckebts setiled or. due to be'settled from sale proceeds: 
directly attributable transaction costs: 

proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the InviT 

regulations 
  

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets oot distributed: pursuant to an carlier plan 

to: reinvest, If such proceeds are not intended lo he invested subsequently, net af” any 
profit! (lass) recognised in profit and Joss account 
  

Add? Less: Any other item of non- cash expense’ non cash incame (net oF netual gash 
flows for these items), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager. 

For cxumple. any decrease’ increase incarrying amountot an asset ora liability recognised 
in profit and loss ‘income and expenditure an measurement of the asset or the liability at 
fair value: 

Interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents recognised on a 
straight line basis. etc, 

(42,570.16) (8.233,88) 

  

Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preterence shares / debentures. 

le, (excluding refinancing) / net cash set-aside to comply with DSRA requirement under 
loan agreements. 

{1.010,98) (5,204.50) 

  

9 Total Adjustment (8) (32.930.02) (13.438,39) 
  

10 Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 44,306.16 4.75384 
  

Less: NDCF already distributed to Unitholders in O1,02 and Q3 30,225.78 
  

12 Balance Net Distributable Cash Flows 14,080.38 4,753.84 
  

13 Less: Amounts selaside for payment of financial liabilites and other liabilities (2,431.84) 
    14   Balance Net Distributable Cash Flows far Q4   11,698.54   4,753.84 
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2.1 

  

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
ON MARCH 31, 2023. 

TRUST INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS: 

National Highways Infra ‘Trust (“I rast” or “Inv” "Jis an irrevocable trust registered under the provisions of the Indian 
Trusts Act. 1882 on October 19, 2020, It is registered under the Securities and xchange Board of India (Inirastructure 
Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on Ovtober 28, 2020 having registration number IN/InvI'l/20-21/0014. 

The Trust was setup by National Highways Authority of India (“NHAE* or the “Sponsor’), The Trustee to the Trust 
is DB} Trusteeship Services Limited (the "Trustee”) and Investment Manager lor the Trust is National Highways 
Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment Manager’), 

‘The ‘Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructure assets primarily being in the roud seclor in India: The Trust's 
read projects are implemented and held through-special purpose vehicles (“Project SPVs"! “Subsidiaries”). ‘The units 
of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchunge on November 10, 2021. 

During the your ended Murch 31, 2022, the ‘rust acquired 100% equity control in National Highway Infra Projects 
Private Limited (the “Project SPY") fram the Sponsor with effect from November 03, 2021, During the yearendcd 
31.03.2021, the project SPV entered into five Concession Agreements: for 30 years with the Sponsor (National 
Highways. Authority of India — NUIA1) on Toll, Operate and Transfer (* TOT") basis and in in year ended 31.03.23 
further signed three new Concession Agreements for 20 years with National Highways Authority of India for Toll, 
Operate and Transfer (“VOT ) basis, 

The registered office of the Investment Manager is G-S & 6. Sctor-10. Dwarka, Delhi - 11078, 

‘The financial statements were authorised lor issue in accordance with resolution passed by the board of directors of 
the Investment Manager on May 22, 2023. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The standalone financial stutements of the Trust have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
us defined in Rule 2(1)a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, preseribed 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Ind AS”) read with Sccurities and Exchange Board of India 
(Intrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder (“SEBE InviIT 
Regulations”).and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Accordingly, the ‘Trust has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements comprising of the Bajance Sheet as on 
March 31, 2023. Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive incame), Statement of Cash Flows. 
Statement of Changes of Uquity, Net Assets al Fair Value and Statement of Total Return at Mair Value forthe xeur 
ended March 31, 2023 and Notes to Accounts, significant accounting policies (logether hereinafier referred to as 

“Standalone linancial Statements”). 

‘These: Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basisand under the historical cost convention, except 
cerlain linancial assets and liabilities which have bees measured at Fair Value, Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied, except where anewty issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision 10 an existing 
Accounting Stindard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in usc. Further, these standalone financial 
stitements have been prepared on a going concern basis, 

Fhe financial statements are presented in Indian Rupces (INR) which is the Trust's functional and présentation 
currency and al] amounts are rounded to the nearest Lukh ('00,000) and two decimals thereof, except as othenyise 
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Use of Judgement and Estimates 

The preparation of linancial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in India. 
and requires the Investment Manager lo muke estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of comingent liabilities at the date of the finuncial statements and the results of operations 
during the reporting period end. Although these estimates:are based upon Investment Manuger’s best knowledge of 
current events und actions, actual results could differ from these estimates: 

Current yersus non-current classification 

‘The Trust presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet bused on the Current.or Non- Current classilication, 
Arasset has been classified as Current if, 
(a} itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Trust's normal operating cycle: or 
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 
(c} itis expected to be reafized within twelve months alter the reporting date: or 

{d) it is-cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date. 
AML other assets have been classified'as Non—Current, 

A liability has been classified as Current when, 
¢a) it ls expected to be settled in the Trust's normal operating cycle: or 
(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded: or 
(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months aller the reporting date; or 
(d) the ‘Trust does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at leust (velve months after 
the reporting date. 
All other liabilities have been classified as Non—Current. 

‘The operating cycle is the time hetween the acquisition of assets Lor processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, The Trust has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

Deferred wx assets and liabilities are classilied as non-current assets und liabilities. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recagnised to the extent that itis probable that the economic benefits will Now to the Trust and the revenue 
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair valuc of the 
consideration received or receivable, luking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes 
or duties cullvcled on behalf of the government. 
‘The speciliv recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised: 
Interest income - Interest is recognised on time proportion busts taking intoraccount the amount outstanding and the 
rates upplicuble. For all Debt instruments measured either-at. Amortized Cost or Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income, interest income is recorded using EIR method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future vash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument ta the net currying amount of the financial 
asscl. 
Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Trust's right to receive the payment is established, which is 
generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 
Fair value gains op current investments carried al lair value are included in other income. 
Claims with National Highways Authority of India (*NHAT) and other government authorities are accounted as'and 
when the money is received ftom the respective authorities, in-cases of monclury compensations. 
Other items - Other ilems of income are recognised as-and when the right lo receive the income urises, 

Financial Instruments. 

Financial assets and/or financial liabililics are recognised when the Trust becomes parly lO. a contract embodying the 
related financial instruments, A linancial instrument is any contract that gives rise. lo a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and 
presented on net hasis in the balance sheet when there-is acurrent legally enforceable right to set-oll the recognised 
anounts and it is intended to cither settle on het basisor lorealise the asset and settle the liability simultancousls:. 

 



Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised intially at lair value plus, in the case of financial asscts nol recorded at fair value 
through profit or Joss. transaction casts thal are’attributable to the acquisition of (he financial asset. Purchases or sales 
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame. established by regalation or convention in the 
market place (regular way trades} are recognised on the-trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or 
sell the asset. Trade receivables and trade payables that do not contain w significant financing component are Initially 
mcasured at their transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of sudsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 
~ al amortised cost 
- al Jair value through profit-or loss (iV TPL) 
- altuir value through other comprehensive income {if VOCI} 

Financial Assets atamortised cost 

A finuncial asset is classified and subsequently measured at the amorlised cost if both the following conditions are 
met: 
a) The assetis held within.a business model whose objective is ( hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, 

and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest (SPPT) on the principal amount qutstanding. 
This category is the most relevant to the Trust, All the Loans and other receivables woder financial assets (except 
Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detenminable payments that are not quoted in ansactive 
market, 

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost. using the effective 
interest rate (IR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking intoaccountany discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees. or- costs that-are an integral part of the EIR. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
Statement of Prolitand Loss. 

Investments in cquily instruments of Subsidiaries are recognised at original cost in accordance with Ind AS 27. 
Impairment testing of Investment in subsidiary that are accounted for at cost.as per Ind AS 27 are within scape of Ind 

AS 36 Impairment of Assets. Any impainment.in value of investment in cquily investments in Subsidiaries is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

Financial Assets:at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYOCI) 

A linancial asset is classified and subsequently measured at FY TOCI i! both of the following criteria are met: 
a) Theassel is held within a business model whose objective is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling the financial assets, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates te cash Nows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest (SPPE), 

Investment in Debt instruments included within the FV TOCI category are measured initially as well us at cach 
reporting date at fairvaluc. Pair value mavements are recagnized in the other comprehensive income (OC]). However, 
the Trust recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Interest darted whilstholding FYTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FY TPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or 
loss, Finunciul assets included-within the FYTPL category are measured ul Jair value with all changes recognized in 

 



the statement of protic and loss. The Trust measures its investments which are classified as equity instruments {other 
than investment in shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates) at fair value through profit and loss account. 

Any debt instrument. which docs not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCLI, is 
classified as at PY TPL. In-addition, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise mects 
amortized cost or FY TOCI criteria, as at VW TPL, However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces. or 
climinuws a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to. as “accounting mismatch"). The ‘rust has not 
designated any-debt instrument as ae PV I'PL. 

The Trust has investment in debt oriented mutual funds-which are held for tradingsand the same are classilied as at 
FVTPL.. Phe Trust makes such election an an instrument-by-instrument basis. The-classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irevovable. The gain! loss on sale of investments is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Reclassification of Financial Assets 
‘The ‘Trust. determines. classification of financial assets on initial recognitian. After initial recognition. no 
reclassification is:made for financial assels which arc equity instruments and financial liabilities, l’or financial assets 
which are debt instruments, a reclassilication is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing 
those assets, Changes. to the business mode) arc-expected to be infrequent: The Investment Manuger of the ‘Trust 
determines change in the business model us a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Trust's 

operations. Such changes are evident toexternal parties,.4 change in the business model. occurs wherthe Trust either 
begins oF ceuses to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclussification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Trust 
does nol restate any previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

The lollowing table shows various reclassification. and how they are accounted far: 

    

_ Original Classification _| Revised Classification Accounting Ircatment 
Amortized Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at. reclassification date. | 

Difference between previous amortised cost and fiir 
value is recognised in statement of profit and loss, 

  

  

  

FTVPL Amortized Cost Fair value at reclassification date. hecomes. its new 
_ Bras: ass carrying amount. 

Amortized Cost FYOCI Fair value ig measured at. reclussification date. 
DilTerenee between previous amortised cost and fair 
value is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
No Change in EIR due to reclassification. 

hV¥OCci Amartized Cost Fair valuc at reclassification dave becomes its new 
ROSS curcying qunount. However: cunululive gain or 

loss. in. other comprehensive income is adjusted 
against’ Fuir value: Consequently, the usset is 

measured as if It had always been measured at 

    

  

    

ae! amortised cost. =u) 
PIYPL F¥OCI Fair value al reclassificatian date becomes its new 

| carrying amount, No other adjustment is required. 

F¥OCI FTVPL. Assets cominue lo be measured fair value.       Cumulative: gain or loss previously recognized in 

other comprehensive: income is reclassified ta 
| statement of profit.and loss at the reclassification date. ,   

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part o)'a Jinancial asset of part of Trust’s similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i,t, removed from the balance sheet} when: 

e ‘The-rights to receive cash Nows trom the asset have expired, or 
¢ ‘The trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash Nows in full without material delay to-a third party under a "passhrough® arrangement; and either 
(a) the trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (bi the trast has ocither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks und rewards of the a: sterred cenirol of the asset. 

    



When the Trust hus transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it cvuluutes if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither 
transferred nor relained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. ner tcansferred control of the asset, the 
trust continues lo recognise the transferred asset to the eatent of the trust’s continuing involvement. In that case, the 
trust also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset und the associated liability are measured ona basis 
that reflects the rights and obligations that the trust has retained. 
Contituing involvement that takes the form of a guarantée over the transferred asset is measured at lhe lower of the 
Original carrying amount of the asset-and the maximum: amount of consideration that the ust could be required to 

repay, 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classilicd, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans 

and borrowings, payables, as appropriate, 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the cuse of loans and borrowings and payables, net 
of directly attributable trunsaction casts, 

The Trust’s financial liubilities include trade and other payables, louns.and borrawings ete, 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition’at fair value through profit of loss are designated as such at 
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are'satistied. For liubilities designated as PV TPL, 
fair value gains‘ losses attributable (o changes in own credit risk ure recognized in OCI. These gains‘losses are not 
subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. |Lowever, the Trust may trans{cr the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity, All other changes in fair yaluc of such liability are recognised in tbe statement of profit and Joss. Vhe 

Trast has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

‘This is the category most relevant to the Trost. After initial recognition; interest-bearing loans and borrowings ar¢ 
subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit 
or Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculaied by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are-an integral part of 

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finanve costs.in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

‘This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits received. 

Dereeognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canvelled or expires, When 
an visting financial liability is replaced by another from the same fender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognilion of 
the original tiability and the recognition of a new liability, ‘The difference in the respective. carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit or toss, 

Offsetting financial instrument 

Financia} assets und liabilities are offset und the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention te settle financial asset and liability on a 
Nel basis or realise the asset and seule the lability simultancously. lhe legally enforceable right must nat be contingent 
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default. insolvency or 
bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty, 

 



2.5 Fair Value measurement 

The Trust measures Jinancial instruments ut fair value at each financial statement date. 
Fair yalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or puid to transfer a liability in un orderly transaction 
between market participants al the meusurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the Iransaction to sell the asset or transler the liability takes place either: 
i) In the principal market for the assct or liability, or 
ii) In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the ‘Trust, 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability , assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest, 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abiliwv to generate 

economic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or hy selling it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in ils highest and best use. 

The ‘lust uses viluation techniques that are uppropriate in the circumstances and for which sullicient data: are 
avaitible to measure fair value, maximising the use°of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 

unobservable inputs, 

Allassets and liubilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

Level | — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Leve] 2— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that dre observable for the usyet or liability, either 
directly (i.e. us prices) or indirectly (ic, derived from prices) 
Level 3 — Inputs for the assets or tiubilitics that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised inthe financial statements on'a recurring basis, the Trust determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fuir value measurement as.a whole) at the end ef cach reporting periad. 

The Trust determines the policies und procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative 
instruments and unquoticd financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as asscts 
held for distribution in discontinued operations, 

Ateach reporting date, the Trust-analyses the movements in the values of assets-and liabilities which are required to 
be remeasured or re-assessed as*per the ‘Trust's accounting policies. l'or this analysis, the 'lrust verilies the major 
inputs applied in the lulest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 
relevant documents. 

The Trust also compares the change in the fair valuc of each asset and liability with relevant extemal sources to 

determine whether the change is reasonable. 

On an annual basis, the Board of Directors of the Investnyent Manager presents the valuation results to the Audit 
Commilive and the Trust’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the 
valuations, Por the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Frust hus determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis ol the nuture, characteristics and risks of the asset-or liability and the level-of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair valuc. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the 
relevant notes. 
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Investments (equity instruments) in subsidiaries are carried at cust less accumulated impairment fosses, iTany. except 
when the iavesiment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale. in which case itis accounted Lor as Non-current 
asseis held for sule und discontinued operations, Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of 
the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recaverable amount, On disposal of invesunents in 
subsidiarics. the difference between net dispesal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise ‘cash at banks and on hund and short-rerm deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement ol vash flows, cash-and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis “as they are considered un integral part of the Trust's cash 
management. 

Impairment of Assets 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

All financial assets except for those designated at FY IPL. are subject to review for impairment at least each reporting 
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial ussct or group of financial assets is impaired. 
In accordance with Ind AS. 109, the trust applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 
of impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortized cust. 

For recognition of impuirment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the trust determines that whether there 
has been a significant increuse in the credit risk since initial recognition. Hcredit risk has not increased significantly, 
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased signilicanuly, lifetime 
ECL is used, If. in a subsequent period, credit quality of (he instrument improves such thal there is no longer a 
significant inurense in-credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance bused on 12-month Cl, ~. é 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ull possible default events over the expected life of a 
linanvial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime EC), which results from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
ECL is the difference between all contraciual cash flows that are due to the trust in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the entity expects to reecive (ic. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When 
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

= All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) aver 
the expected life of the financial instrumenl However: in rare cases when the expecied life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated celiubly, then: the:cntily is required to use the remaining contractual term of the 
financial instrument 

e Cash flows fram the sale of collateral held or other-credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms 

ECL. impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income! expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L), This umount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses” in-the PRA. 

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets 

‘The: ‘Trust assesses; at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired; I any 
indication exists; or when annual impairment testing foram asset is required, the ‘lrustestimates the asset's recoverable 
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher ef an assct's: or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair-walue: tess 
costs of disposal und its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or ‘Trust's ussets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable umount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount. In assessing vulue in use. the estimated firture cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions arc taken into account, if available, 
If no-such transactions can be identified; an appropriate valuation Lis used. Impairment losses of continuing    
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operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. except for previously revalued tangible fixed assets. 
where the revaluation was taken 1 revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in the 
revaluation reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the 

revised carrying amount of the usscl over ils remaining useful life, 

“A assessment is made at-each reporting date as-to: whether there is any indication that previously recognized 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the trust estimates the asset's 
CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognized impairment Joss is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used lo determine the assets recoverable amwunt since the tast impairment loss was recognized. The 
reversal is Jimited so that the carrying ampunt of the assct does not exceed its recoverable umounl, nor exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been. determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been revognized for 
the assct in prior years, Such reversal is recognized i in the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried ava 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing Cost consist of interes! and other ancilfary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrawines. Borrowing costs directly auributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assct that 
necessarily takes a substuntial period of lime 1¢ get ready for its intended use or sule are capitalized as part of the cost 
of the respective assct, 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profitand Loss in the period they occur. Incase of significant 
Long term loans, other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds ure amortized over the period of 
respective |.oan. Borrowing vost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 

borrowing costs. 

Foreign currency transactions 

The Trust's financial statements are presented in INR, which is Trust's functional currency. 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate. prevailing on the date of the respective transactions 
between the functional currency and the forcigncurreney. 

Moanelary foreign currency assets.and liubilities remaining unsettled at the linancial Statement date are teanslated at 
the rates Ol exchange prevailing on that date. 

Gains / losses arising on account of realisation ? scltlement of foreign currency transactions and on translation of 
foreign currency assets and Jiabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Exchange dilerences arising on the settlement of monclary items at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses 
in the. year in which they arise, 

Non - Monctary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reportcd 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and Non - Monetary items which are carried at Jair value or 
other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency. are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined, 

‘The gain or loss-arising on translation of Non-Monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair valuc-of the item (i.¢., translation differences on items whose fair value: 
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or prolit-und loss aré also recognised in OCL or Profil and Loss respectively), 
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Taxes on income 

Tax expense comprises of Current und Deferred tax. 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income 
Vax Act. 1961. 

Current income taxassets:and fabilities are measured atthe amount expected to be-rccovered from or paid ve the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and lax Jawsused to compute the amount are those that-are enacted or substantively 
enacted, al the reparting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit ar loss is récounised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income of in equity), 

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity: 
Management periodically evaluates. positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulations are subject to interpretution and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences henveen the lax bases of assets and 
liubilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes wt. the reporting date, 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc meusured at the tax tates thal are. expected to-apply in the yoar when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry locward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax fosses, Deferred tx assets are recognised to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profit will 
be available against which (he deductible temporary dilYerences, und the. carey forward of unused tux credics and 
unused tax losses van be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax. assets is reviewed at cach reporting date und 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxuble profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset-(o be utilised, 

Deferred tax relating-to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised: outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). 

Deferred lax assels und deferred tax abl ities are Oris it a legally enforceable cept cNisls to Set off curren tax esacla 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments 

Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be conlirmed by the 
occurrence oF non—oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Trust or & present 
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that. an oulflow of resources wil) be required Lo settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability ulso arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability thal cannol be recagnized 

because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent Liabilitivs ure reviewed at each reporting date. The Trust does not 
recognize a cantingent liability in the books af uevounts, however discloses its existence in the financial statemenis 
in the notes to accounts. 

Contingent Assets 

Contingent asscts usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow 
of economic benefits to the entity. 
Contingent assels are recognized when the realisation of income is virtually certain. in which case the related asset is 
nota contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 
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Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legul or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benclits will be required to settle the obligalion and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation. When the Trust expects some or all of @ provision lo 
be reimbursed, forcxumple. underan inserance contract, the rcimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. but only 
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to'a provision is presented in the statement of profit 
and Joss nct-of any reimbursement. 
If the efivet of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects; 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of ime is recognised as a Mnance cost. 

Commitments 

Commitments are future liabilities lor contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as fellows: 
* estimated amount of contacts remaining to beexccuted on capital account and not provided for: 
* funding related commitment to subsidiury companies: and 
¢ other non-cancellable commitments, if uny; lo the extent they are considered material und relevant in the opinion 

of management, 

Other commitments related to services to be rendered / procurements made in Ihe normal course of business are nol 
disclosed to-avaid excessive details, 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash lows is prepared segregating the cash flows into, operating, Investing and financing activities. 
Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit forthe effects of: 

¢ changes during the period in operating receivables and payables; ansactions of a.non-cash nature; 

* non-cash items such us depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes. unreulised [orcign currency gains and losses; 

¢ all other items for which thé cush effects are investing or financing cash lows: 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement Ol Cush Flows exclude items whieh 
are not available for general use as at the date of Balance Sheet. 

Assets held for sale 

Non-current assets or disposal trusts comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as “held for sale” when all of 
the following criteria’s arc met: (i) decision has. been made to sell. (ii) the assets are available for immediate sale in 
ils present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed ar is expected to be 
¢oncluded within 12 months af the Balance Sheet date, 
Subsequently, such Hon-current assets and disposal trusts classified as held for sale are measured al the lower of its 
carrying value and fair value less costs to sell, Non-current asscls held for sale are not depreciated or amorlised.. 

Unit Capital 

Units-are classified as equity, Incremental costs attributable.to the issue of unils.are directly:reduced from: equitysas 
per requirements of Ind AS 32. 

Distribution to unit holders 

The Trust recognises u liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distriution is authorised und a 
legal obligation bas been ereated. As per the SEBL Invil Regulations, a distribution is authorised when il is ‘approved 
by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding umount is recognised direcily in other equity. 
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Earnings per Unit (EPL) 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period auributable to unitholders by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the period. 

Diluted LPU amounts ure calculated by dividing the profit(oss) attributable to unitholders by the weighted average 
number of units outstanding during the period plus-the weighted average number of units thal would be issted on 
canversion of all the dilutive potential unils into unit-capital, 

Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or umendments to the existing standards under 
Compunies {Indian Accounting Stundurds) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Suindurds) Amendment Rules, 2023, as helow: 

Ind AS 1 ~ Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material 
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date Lor adoption of this amendment 
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The.Group has evaluated the amendment and the inpact of the 
umendment is Insignificant in ihe Group's financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’- This amendment has introduced 
u definition of ‘accounting estimutes’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities. distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in uccounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual 
periods beginning on or aficr April |, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impuct on its 
consolidated financial statements, 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has nacrasved tse scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it 
does not apply 19 transactions that give rise ta differences: The effective dave for adaption of this amendment is:amual 
periods beginning on: or after April 1, 2023, The Group has evaluated the amendment and ‘there is no impact on its 
consolidated financial statement, 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

3 Investments; Nor Current 

(All amowns are int 2 lakh untesy atherwise stated) 
Particulars Asat March 31,  Asat Mareh 31, 

2023 2022 

Investment in Equity Instruments (unquoted) 

  

  

Subsidiary company 
Investment in Equity Shares of Project SPY (NITIPPL) 139,553.52 139,553.52 

11.29,41,00,000 nos of fully paid up eqnity shares of Face Value Ks. 10 cach) 

Total 1,39,553,52 1,39,553.52 

Note; 

a) Details. af shares pledged swith lenders wha have extended the foam ficility to the Trust areas follows; 

No. ofshures pledged 

Name of the Compuny : AsatMarech3t,  Asat March 3h, 
2023 2022 

National Highways lofts Projects Private Limited 129.41 1HILO0O 1.29.41,00,000 

4 Loans: Nan Current 

(All amounts arc in 2 Jakh unless othenvise stated} 
  

  

  

  

  

Particulars. AsatMarch 3, Asat Mareh 31, 

2023 2022 

Unseeured 

Loan to relaked purty - Projcee SPY (NEMPPL) §.90.4016.66 6.215,640.00 

{Maximum amount outstanding durme the yoar:' Rs. §,90,606.66 lakh; 

PY: Rs, 6.05.640.00 lakh) 

8,90,606.66 605,640.00 

otal §,90.606.66 605,640.00 
  

* Based on the assessment of finds availability. ot SPV level: it is estimated that principal repayments are not expected during the next 
finunctal year and therelore entire portion loans has been classified asnon current financial asset. 

Loans are nomderivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries a9 por the repayment schedule mentioned in the facility 
agreement. Further, the subsidiaries areentided tv prepay all or any postion of the pulstanding principal with a prior pores; The loans 

fo subsidiaries carry interest @) 12s pa: 

Nate: Details of Loans / Advances:in the nature of loan granted to Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnels (K MPs} 

and related partics 

aie or Bucrewers Asat March 31,,  Asat March 31, 
2023 2022: 

(1) Promoters . ae 

Gi} Directors - - 
Gilt} KMPs - - 
Civ) Related parties $.50.606.66 6.05,640,00 

Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries‘associates (including interest receivable): 

In previews year Trust has granted Jong term foun amounting to (NR°6,056.40 Crore at the rate of 12.70% pn, to subsidiary company 

(NHIPPL) via Facility Agreement, dated 29.41.2021 for financial -assistance to be utilized for the-purposes and terms and canditions 
as meritioned in the Concession Agreement between NHAI and. NHIPPL: The loun was disbursed oa-14.12.2021 und is repayable on 

quarterly basis. over 102 quarterly instalments af Principal and Interest up-to 34st March 2047 or earlier in accordance with premature 

repayment, only if (A} on the relevant principal repayment dates(s).sufficient amount are available with the horrower OVhich are 
uyailuhle and permitted to be utilised towards. repayment of Such principal amounts, without such utilising heing in or resulting i 
breach of financial documents) to make such payments in full or part or (B) the seniur lender has sent a letter to the borrower 

requesting @ lo make payments on the relevant repayment date, However no principal amovnt. under Inv IT seniw facility will be duc 
and payable hy the borrower unless the borrower has the project cash Mews as aforesaid lo make such payment in full or part in 

accordatice wath the repayment schedule or the senior lender has scat a letter 10 the bormuver requesting it 10. make dhe payment on the 

releyunt-repayment date, 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes: to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended. March 31,2023 

In-current year Trust -bas-granted long term loan amounting to INR 2,849.66 Crore at the rate of 12.78% pa to subsidiary company 

(NHIPPL) via Facility Agreement dated 10.10.2022 for financial assistance to be utilized foe the Purposes and terms ‘and conditions 
as mentioned in the Coneession Agreement hetween NHAI and NHIPPL. The kum was disbursed on 28.10.2022 and is repayable 

anoually over 7 anaual instalments of Principal up to 31st March 2043 or cariier in accordance with premature repayment only if (A) 

on de relevant principal repayment dates{s).sulficient amount are available with the borrower (Which are available and permitted ta 

be utilised towards repayment of such principal amounts, without such utilising being in or resulting in breach of financial 

documents) 10 muke such payerents in. full or purt or GB) dhe Senior lender has Senta letter to the borrower requesting it to make 

payments on the relevant repayment date. However no principal amount under InviT senior ficttity will be due und payable by the 

horrower unless the borrower has the project cash flows as aforesaid to wiake such payment in full or part i accordance with the 

repayment schedule or the scnior lender hax sent @ letter to the borrower requesting it to make the payment on the relevant repayanent 

date. 

5 Other Financial Asxets: Non Current 

{ALL anpounts are in Z lakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars AsatMareh3l, Asat Mareh 31, 

2023 2022 

Fixed Deposits with baks* DAGYBY 3170.81 

Deposit « Debentue recovery expense fund for NCD's ($.00 . 
Interest recelvable ym Debsnture recovery expense fund 0.42 - 

Interest receivable on fixed depasits ” 183.43 - 

‘Total 9,670.84 3,170.81 
  

* ‘The Fixed Deposits are kept'm Debt Servicing Reserve Accomm (DSRAD a8 per borrowing agreements with lenlers und as per 

terms of the debenture tust deed, to he utihzed at the end of tenure af jong term borrowings from Senior Lenders end to maintain 

DSRA balance for Debenture holders, hence classified as Other Financial Axseis- Non Current ircespective of date of maturity. 

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

{All amounts are in Zlakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars AsatMareh 31, Asat March 31, 

2023. 2022 

  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Balances with Banks* 

In Current Accounss Oot 436.08 

In Escrow Account 338.04 35,09 
Fixed Deposits 
(having original maturiie of less than 3 months) 10,000.00 4,350 

hMutual Punds “3.74233 992,16 

  

: . 14,080.38 §,793.33 

¥ These balunces with hanks are bypothecated ngeinst secured borrowings 

7 Other Financial Assets; Current 
(All imounts anc in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

Particulars Asat March 31,  Asat March 31, 
‘WIS 2022 

Interest receiveble on tong tena: hans 46.688.43 10.651.13 

Interest receivable on Fixed Depasits 3.73 $.28 

Others reccivahles* 290.72 0.10 

Total 46,982.88 10,656.50 
  

* ‘These reecivables to be recovered from new SPV (NUIET Caster Projects Private Limited) forexpenses incurred an its behall’ 

& Other Current Assets 

(All umounts are in 2 Takh amless otherwise stated) 
  

  

Parti¢ulsrs AsatMarch 31,  Asat March 31, 
2023 2022 

Prepaid Expenses 82.38 12.46 
GST Input credit curryforward 642.32 - 

for undrawn lean 103.49 - 

0.76 - 

828.75 12.46 
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9 Unit Capital 
(All amosnis are int tokh unless otherwise st 

Particulars As.at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2022 

No of Units Amount No of Units Amount 

Unit Capitals ; 
Opening balance $9,52,00,000 §,99.442,82 “ “ 
Add: Linrits issued dunn the year 13.)2,.05,280 1,43.013,67 $9,52.00,000 SOE TS2 0} 

Less; Issiie expenses (refer note below} . (852.17) - (L709. 18} 
Balance 72,64,05.200 7,41 604.32 $952,000 5,99,442,82               
* 13.12.05 ,200 unil issued at Rs 109 per wnit and $9.52,00,000 unix issued at R's LOT per unit 
Ihe Trust offered an issue of 13,12.05_200 units of National Mighwavs Infta Trust (°NHIT} during the current financial vear and suck unis, the 
“units” ). for cash at a price of 109,00 per unit tthe “issue prove”), ueeregating fo Rs | 43.41)3.67 lacs throoch Institulional und preferential 
Placement in accordance with the Sccuntics ‘and Exchange Gourd of India infrasty one (avestment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the 
rules; cireularsand guidelines issued thereunder The issue apened on September 3, 2022 end closed on Geiober U3, 2022. The Board of 
Nirectors.uf National Highways Infra Investinent Managers Private Limited onal a approved aliviment.ot 13,12,05,200. unite tethe 
vitgible unitholders of Trust on October 12, 2022. 

Issue expenses of Rs $52.17 hakbs {previous year Rs 1,709.18 lakhs} incurred.in connection with isu of units have heer reduced front che 
Unithaiders capixal in accordance with Ind AS 22 Financial Instruments: Presentation 

Rights preferences and restrictions atrached to Unit Capital 

Subject co the provisions of the Invill Regulations, tie indemure vf funds, and applicable cules, revulations and guidelines, he nghts.of the unt 

holders inciude 

a) The beneficial intetest ofeach Unitholder shall be equal and limiied to the proportion of the numberof the units held by Thal unitholder ta 
the total sumber-of units, 

b) Right to receive income or disttibuuons with respect to the wnits held. 
c) Righé to attend the annual general meeting and other meetings of unit holders ofthe Trust 
d} Right to vote upon any malterstesolutions proposed in celation to the Trust, 
ot Right lo receive perioche information having « bearing on the operation ur perfomance of the Trust m stcordance with the [nvJT Regulations 

fy Right to apply to the Trust to lake up cerlain issees 4 mezlings for unit holdcrs spprowal. 

&) Right to receive aduitional jaformation, (fang. in accerdance with inyTT documents filed with Placement Memonndum. 

h) The non-sponsor-unit holders ("Lligible Persons’) of the Trust are entitled to representation en the Board of Directors uf the Investment 
Manager: through, appointinent uf up to two {2} directors ('Non-Sponser Directors"), provided that no Fligible Persum shull have:the right to 
hominate sore than one Director at atime for appointinent on the Board of Directors, 

In avenrdance with the [nyt T Regulations, nq uit holders shall enjoy superior voting, or any uther rights aver ahy.olher unit holders, and there 
shall not be moltipte classes of units. There shall he only: one denomination of unsts, Not withstanding the aligve, subordinate units may be issued 
only to the Sdonsor and its Assnosates, where such subordinate units-shall carry only inferior voting of any other tights compare to the other 

units 

Under the provisions of the lavil Regulations, not less than ninety percent of the net disinbinable cash Nows of the Mrust.is required 10 be 
distnbuned to the umtholders, and in accordance woul such stators cbligation ike Trust has formukared a distnbution policy to. declare and 

distribute the distributable oush flows to a unithalders atleast once every Gnancial year as approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Investment Manager. The distribuvons made by Trust to its wnutholders are based an the Net Distributable Cash Flaws (NOCT) of the Trust 

undertheinviT Regulations and represent repayment of penporionate vapitit and share af profil, ‘the distrbutian ip proportion te the number of 
umis held by the unithalders, ‘Che J'ryst dectares and pays in distributions i’indian ropes, 

Liuitation to the Liability of the unit hoklers 

The liability of each unt hoktcrs tovards the payment of any amount (that may anse in relation to the Trust including any taxes, duties, fines, 
levies, linbilkies. casts or expenses} shall be limited only to the extent of the capital convibution of such unit Aoldors ond after such capital 
commibution shall have been pardon fall by the unit holders, Ue unit hoiders shall not de obligated to make any furhker paynients. 
The unil holders shall not have any persana) liability or obligation with respect tothe Trust, 

Details Of Unitholders Holding More Vhan 5% Units In The Trust 

t 

‘Tne. I 4 25: 

Tres { 9 

i N 2 S. 16 

  

As perrecords of the Trust, including its register af unitholders and other declaration eceived trom unitholders regarding beneficial interest, the 

above unitholding represent both legal and beneficial ewnership ef units, 

The “rust has nor alasied any fully paid-up units hy way of bonis unils nor hus: it bought bach any class of units trom the date of inecrporstian 
till the balance:sheet date, Murther the Trust has not issued any units tor-consideration other (han cash during the vede, 

Reconciliation OF Number OF Units Outstanding Is Set Out Below: 
  

    

Particulars As at Maret: 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
No of Units Amount No of Units Amount 

{amounts in Z lakh) * {amounts in Z| 
a¢ beginning of the year 59.52 ODOR 6.01132 00 = = 

: 13,12:03,206 143.013 67: 59.52.001,000 601152. 
OC the wear 72.64,05.200 7.44 165.67 39.52,00,000 601,152.00 

Tha 
          

     
       

     

  

As are mot deducted in the weeMmeiiation of mumber of unit capital Mga Stn , te: i & Ces” te 

FRN 002744 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

{Al amounts are in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

10. Other Equity 

Particulars As at March 31, 20:23 As at March 31, 2022 

Balance al the-beginning of the year 18,124.32 (67.90) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 77,236.17 18,192.33 

Less: 

Distribution to unit holders* - 
Interest 34,183.66 - 

Other Incame 744.20 - 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 60,432.64 18,124.32         

“The distribution relates: to the distributions during the: linangial year along wilh the distribution related to the Jast 
qiuaeter of FY 2021-22 and does not include the distribution rclating to the periad January O1. 2023 to March 31, 2023 
which will be paid after March 31, 2023, The distributions by the Trust to its unit holders uré bused on the Net 

Distributable Cash Flows of the Trist-under the SEBL InvlT Regulations. 

    

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

11 Borrowings: Non Current 

(All umounts.arein @ laklvunless otherwise stated) 
  

  

Particulars As At As At 
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Secured 

Non-Converiible Debomures 1.50.000.00 

Less: Unamonised Borrowing Cost* 

Total 

Note:- Other terms and conditions of NCD 
i} Interest rate 

balls . 
1,48,588.20 “ 

7.90% p.a payable semi annually: 

  

  

  

  

ii) Terms of repayment Redemption of respective STRPP shall be niade in equul instalments. 
)SURPP A - starting from cighth anniversary of deomed dare af allotment till 
thirteenth anniversary. 

i) STRPL-B- starting from thiriconth anniversary of deemed date of alkinvent tll 
eighteenth anniversary, 
iii) STRPP-C- starting fom eighteenth anniversary of deemed date of allotment 

Lill twentyfifth aniversary, 

Term Loan 

Krom Banks 145,987 43 1,46.998.41 

From other parties ° = 

145,987.43 146,998.41 

Lass: Current Maturities af Long Tenn Borrowings (Refer Note 13) 2,000.00 980.86 
Less: Unamortise! Borrowing Cost* 417.30 460.61 

Votal 1,43,570,13 145,550.94 

Grand Total | 2,92,158,33 1,45,556,94 | 
  

Note:- Other terms and conditions of Term Loans 

i) Interest rate Marginal Cost of fund based lending rate (MCLRY) plus spread applicable on cach 
reset dale 1.0. 

Repayable in unstructured quarterly instalments with Inst repayment date upto 
Mareb 31.2041. 

ii) Terms of repayment 

Security for Term Louns : 
‘The loan is sceured by, 
« first part passu charge orvall immovable-assets (il ny}: movable assets and receivables of the Trust including but not limited 10, 

(4) the interest and principal repayitents-on the loans advanced by the Trustto Project SPV 
(ii) dividends to be paid by Project SPY tothe Prust 

- fist pari passu Security Interest on Trust Escrow account and all sub-sceounts thereunder, inchxling DSRA. 

- plelge of 100% equity shares of Project SP¥ (NHIPPL) in dematerialized form held by the Trust 
- assignment of loans advanced by the Lnust t Project SPV (NHIPPL) and securities created by the Trust including the assignment of 

rights oF submission, termination and invevalion of provision of Escrow agreement in case of default, 
~ negative licn on immovable assets (including current assels and cash flows) of the Project sPy¥ (NU IPPL) subject to sale of obsolete 

items orcars’ ambulynoes, ofd toll equipment etg., under normal business pravtice, subject fo maximum cumulative value of INR. 8 Crore in 

any financial your, 

‘Phe senior lenders of the Trust have-also been provided with:a corporite guarantee frm Prajéet SPY (NHIPPL) lo guarantee. upto the 
secured obligations af the Trust. The funds have been raised at Trust level from) unithoklers and domestic lenders, and the same have been 

dent to Project SPY (NIIIPPL) for payment of concession fze be NETIPPL to NHAL, Ube cashllows viz., toll collections are Tying in 
NITPPL. Accontingly, corporate-guaranice-amounling upto the sccured obligmions of the Trust ia Corporate Guaninics Deed dated 

14.03.2922. valid across the tenure of the loan of the Trust Leoup te 31.03.2041, hus been provided hy the Project SPY ( NHIPPL) to the 
seniar tenders of the Trust, SS 

ee O 8 ES Sy, 

KE (FRN 002744.C a1 
ay 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

Noturc-of Security for Non Convertible debentures: 
‘The dehéntury holders. are secunaxl by 
a) first ranking pari passu Sccurity Interest over the eampany’s immovable assets (if any), both present and future. The campuny does not 
own any immoveuble property at the present lime, In the event, the company acquires any immovable property in future, the company shall 

morigage said propemy within 180 (one hundted eighty) days fram the date of-acquisition of such immovable assets, The Debentures 
Trustve shall he authorised to do all acts. deeds, and enter into necessary decuments.agreemen|camendments andor modifications, as may 
be required te give effect the same, including carrying out the duc diligence as may be required by Debenture Trustee; 
h) a lirst ranking pari passu Socurity Interest over the Hypothecated Assets (including Receivables}, both present and future: and 

) Negative Lien Undertaking, 
d) corporate guarantee executed by the Project SPV (NUIPPL) in favour of the Debenlure Trustee for guaranteeing Ihe due repayment of 
the secured obligations in accordance wilh the terms of lhe Deberiture Trust Deed, 

The pon convertible debenture holders of the Trust acting through debenture trustce have also been provided with a corporate guarantos 
from Praject SPY (NHIPPL.) to guarantee the repayment of amount raised [rom non convertible debenture holders by the Trust. The finds 
have been raised at Erust level from debentureholders, have how’ lent to Project SPV (NHIPPL for payment af concession fee by NHIPPL. 

lw NHAL Accordingly, corporate guarantee amounting upto the sceured obligations via Corporate Guorantce Deed dated 21.10.2022 is 
valid tilf.all oulstunding principal and accrued interest. pavable by the Trust arc satistied to the nan convertible debenture holders of the 
Trust, 

There hive been no bredches in finaticial covenants with respect wo the borrowings from either senior lenders or debenture holders. 

12 Deferred ‘Vax Linbilities 
(All amounts are in T lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars AsAt As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

Deferred Tax Liabilitics arising on 
Net Gain on thir valuation of - 3.16 

  

Deferred Vax Liubilities’ Assets) = 316 
  

Reconciliation of deferred tax Assets! 

{Liabilities 
Particulars As Ar As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Opening Balance - Deferred Tax 

Liabilities 3.16 - 
(3.16) 3.16 

Dclérred tax (invome}’ expense during the year recognised in statement-of profit & loss 

Deferred 1ax (income)? cxpettse during the year recognised it Olber Comprehensive Income - - 

  

Closing Balance - Deferred Tax 

Liubilities 

13: Borrowings: Current 

Particulars 

Secured 

Current Maturities of Long Term borrowings (Refer Note 11) 

  

S 3.16 

(Alb amounts are in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 
As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

D400 80.86 
  

  

980.86



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

14 Trade Payables: Current 

{Albumounts-are in & lakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

Particulars As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total outstanding. dues of micro and sinall enterprises 3.88 - 
Total oulstanding, dues of trade payables other than micro and small enterprises 342.69 456.85 

(Outstanding for less than 12 months from the duc date of payment) — 

Total 346.57 456.85 

Note: 
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises.as per MSMED Act, 2(H06. 
rhe Company. bas sertain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ¢MSMED 

Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 
  

As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a} The principal umount remaining unpuid to any supplier at the end of the yoar** 3.88 - 

b) Interest veered and due thereon to suppliers unler MSMED Act on the above amount 

remaining unpaid. to any supptier ar the end of year. 

ce) The umount of interest paid by the buyer in terms. af section 16-af the MSMED Act: 
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the sear 

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period ol delay ih making payment {which 

have been paid bur bevond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the 
interest Spevified under the MSMED Act, 2006 

¢} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the ond of cach accounting year 

fy The amount of further interest remaining due and payuble even in the succesding years, 

until such date when the interest dues above areactually pyid to the smatl etilerprists: for the 

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under scetion 23 of the MSMED Act, 

2006 
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

Development Act, 2006" js based on the information available with the Company regarding 

the stotus of registration of such vendors unider the said Act, as per the intimution received 

from then an requests mle by the Company. 

Trade Payable aging schedule as an 31.03.2023 
  

  

  

  

  

                
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Outstanding tor following period from due date of payment. 
u * j 

Raviicalaes Nociee ao 1-2 Years | 2-3-Years| More than 3 Years ‘Fotal 

iy) MSME - 3.88 - - - 3.88 
ii) Others 90.34 252,33 - : - 3542.69 

iii) Disputed dues MSME - - - ° - = 

iV) Disputed ducs-- Others - - * - - 

* Represent unbilletl payables ammunling to Rs 90.34 Lakh (Previous year: Rs, 143,56 lakh) 

‘Trade Payable aging schedule as on 31.05.2022 

; Outstanding for following period from duc date of payment. 

Pactienlay Tega ES 1-2 Years | 2-3: Yeurs| More than 2 Yours Total 
1 Your " 

DMSME RB = ss = = 5 

it) Others 143.56 | 313.29 | - = - 486.85 

iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - = - < 

i¥) Disputed dues ~ Others + = ‘ = . -                 

* Represent unbilled payables amounting to Rs 143.456 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.Nil Lakh) 

  
of MSME vendors include Rs 1. SI hics outstandings which a are due for more teas 45 days and payments have not 

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Stundulone Financial Statements for the yearended March 31,2023 

15. Other financial liabilitics 

Particulars 

Others 

Inerest accrued but not due on NCD (Refer note no 33) 

Total 

16 Other-current liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory liubilities (4ST und TDS payuble) 

Total 

17 Current tax liabilities 

Particulars 

Provision for hicome Tax 
‘Total 

Reconciliation of Current Tax Liabilities 

(All amaunts arc in 2 lakh uniess otherwise statcd) 

As-At Ag At 
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022: 

  

5.129.59 = 

5,129.59 = 
  

{AlLamounts are in & lukh unless otherwise stated} 

ASA As At 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

42,50 59.80 

  

42.50 99.80 

(All amounts are in @ lakh unless-otherwise stated) 

As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

8.9K 161,77 
§.98 161,77 

{All amounts are in 2 lakh untess olhenvise stated} 

  

  

Particulars As At Ay At 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

‘Opening Balance 161.77 - 
Add: Income Tax Payable tor the year 473,89 436.356 
Less: Income taxes-pail during the year 626.68 274.59 
Closing Bulaace 8.98 (61.77 

  

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

18 Revenue from operations 

{All amounts ure in 2 lakh unless otherwise sinted) 
  

  

  

Particulars For the year cnded For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Operating revenue 

Interest on Lame Term Loan given 4.698 50 22,843.13 

Total 94,698.30 22,843.13 

19 Interest income 

  

(Altamounts are’ in? lakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

On fixed deposits with hanks 352.28 S86 

Total 352.28 5.86 

20 Profit on sale of investments 

  

(All amounts are in % lpkh unless Mberwise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 422,26 661.83 

Nel Gain on fatr-valuation of investments designated ot FV TPL A 738 

Total 422,20). 669,21 

21 Other Income 

  

(All amounts are in @ lakh unless otherveise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2023 Mureh 31,2022: 

Other non operating income 
Other Income 316.89 318.67 

Total 316,59 318.47 

22 Audit fees 

Statutory audit expenses 

  

(All anoiinis are in 2 Jakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Statutory auditors’ remuncration; 

Audit fees 1,70 2.50 
Limited Review L20 i‘ 

“Total 2.90 2.50 

Other audit services (including certification) 
Coctification Charges 0.88 - 

‘Total G88 z 
  

Further on amountot Rs 6 lakh paid to auditor as certitiontion chargeshas heen booked:as part of one time expenses in the 
Unit Copital. (Refer note no 9) 

23 Finance cast 

(AlParsounts are in? Jakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

Particulars Vor the ycar ended For the year ended 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Interest on Term Loan Borrowings PL 244.94 3,149.19 

Interest on Debentures 5,129.59 - 
Other Financial Charges 215.67 $.2a 

Total 16,590.17 3,154.43 

  
  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Nates to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

24 Other expenses 

{All amounts are in @ Jakh unless otherwise stated} 
  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Legal and Protessional fees 170.06 111.37 
Fee, Subscription & Taxes 4.24 0.05 

Bank charges O08 on) 
Miscetlancous expenses 19-78 O76 
Total 190.16 LiZ.18 

25 Tax Expense 

  

CAN amounts avo fh. t4aktanlesy otherwise dated} 
  

  

  

  

Particulars For the vear ended Vor the-year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current Tax 473.89 436 34 

Provision for Vaxation—Earlicr sears 0.0) - 
473,90 $36.36 

Deferred tax expense(oredit] (3,16) 3:16 

470,74 439.52 

Effective tax Reconcitiation: 

  

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable (6 (profit loss before tun al the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to 

Incanic tax expense reported is as follows} 

(ALL amines are dt lakh amless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

27 Capital. and Other Commitments 
(ithe extent not provided) for & certitied hy the management) 

  

Particulars Kor the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Accounting Profit before Income laxes TT, 706 92 18,631.74 

Tax ut India’s statutory incon (ax rote ~ Maximum Marginal oe ‘ 
Rate (42 FAM) 33,215.04 7.963 95 

Impact of exemptton wis: 10(23FC) of the Indian Ineome Fax Act, (32,741.15) 
194]-availuble tothe trust 47,542.34) 

Impact of deferred tax on reversible allowance! disallowance of (3.16) 
business expense and inconic. os per Indian Income Tax Act, Bb 

Provision for interest an alclayed deposit of incame tax - 14.75 

Income.tax expense reported in the statement of profit and 

loss 470,74 439.52 

26 Earnings per unit 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Basic-and diluted EPU 
Net Profit) toss available for unitholders in @ lakh > _ PRAT 18,192.23 
Weighted average number ef units foc EPU computation 65.66,68,738 £9.52 00,000 

EPU- Basic and dilated 11.76 3.06 
  

(Aibamounts aro i 2 lakl ones ocherwise seated? 
  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Commitments: 

Commitment for loan 10 Subsidiary Company {Project SP¥- | 40,494.00 52,000.00 

NHTPPL) 

  

      1,40,494.00 52,000.00



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

29 Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Trust's capital management: capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable 
to the unit holders of the ‘rust. 
The primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to cnsure hal it maintains a strong credit rating-and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise unit holder value. 
The Trust manages ils capital structure and makes adjustments.to iin light of changes in economic conditions-and the 

requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the dividend 
payment / income distribution to unit holders (subject to the provisions of SEBI InvIT Regulations which require 
distribution of a1 least 90% of the nel distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to. unit holders or 

issue hew units. The Trust monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net deht divided by total capital plus net debt, 
‘The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. 

(All amounis are in = lakh unless otherwise stated} 
  

  

  

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Net Debt Components: 

Long Term Borrowings (Non-Curtent portion) (secured) 2,92, 158.33 145,556.94 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings {secured) 2,000.00 980.86 
Trade payables 346,37 456.85 

Other financial liabilities 5,129.59: . 

Less: Cash-and Cash Equivalents (14,080.38) (5,793.33) 

Less: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents (9,670.84) (3,170.81) 

Net Debt (i) 2,75,883,27 1,38,030.51 

Capital Components: 

Unit Capital 7Al 604.32 $,99,442,82 

Initial Settlement Amount 0.10 0.10 

Other Equity 60,432.64 18,124.32 

Total Capital (ii) 8,02,037.06 6,17,567,24 

Capital and Net Debt |(jii) = (i) + (ti)] 10,77,920.33 7,55,597,76 

Gearing Ratio (i)/(ili) 25.59% V8.27% 
  

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager, amongst other things, aims to 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in mecting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to call loans and borrowings, There 
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any intcrest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year, No 
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended Mareh 31, 2023 
and March 31, 2022. 

        
6 FRN 0027446 © 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

30 Financial Risk Management 

The. Trust's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust, to. set 

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems 

are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 'Trust's-activities, 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Trust's risk management framework. 

In performing its operating. investing and financing activilies, the Trust isexposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and 
Market risk. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows.of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes 
in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, curreney risk and other price risk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk include Inans and borrowings, Reccivable-and Payables and Investtnents measured at 
FVTPL. 
‘The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate lo the positian'as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 
‘The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis thatthe amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest 
rates of the debt-are all constant. 
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This is 

based on the-financial assets ‘and financial liabilities held at March 31,2023 & March 31, 2022. 

Foreign Currency Risk: 
Forcign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulre cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 

in foreign exchange rates, ‘The Trust transacts business primarily in Indian Rupees only, and hence, the sensitivity of 

profit and toss of the Trust to'a possible change in foreign exchange rates is non-existent as on 31st March, 2023 & 31st 

Mareh, 2022. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Intcrest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. Exposure torrisk of changes in market interest rates generally relates primarily to long- 

term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The Trusts exposure to interest rate risk due variable interest rate horrowirigs is as follows: 

(All amounts are in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Floating Rate Borrowings 145,570.13 146,337.80 

Total 145,570.13 1,46,537.80 
  

Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Debt: 

  

Impact on profit / (loss) before tax 
  

  

Interest rate risk analysis AsatMarch3l, Asat March31, 
2023 2022 

Increase or decrease in interest rate by 25 basis points 363,93 388.94 

Note: Profit will increase in case of decrease in interest rate and vice versa 

Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair yalue.or future cash flows of a financial instrument sill fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices sr than those arising from interest rate. risk or-currency risk). 
to price risk due ta investments of surplus. fi Han:     

          
    

ight mutual funds. 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31,2023 

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity vall encounter difficulty in mocting obligations associated with financial liabilities that 

are setiled by delivering cash or another linancial assets. 
‘The ‘Trust is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables. 
‘The Trust measures risk by forecasling cash flaws. 

The Trust's appnowch to managing liguidity is to ensure, a3 far as possible. that it will always bave sufficient Equidity to meet 
its liabilities when duc Without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Trusts reputation, The ‘Trust ensures 

that it hus-sufficient funds to meet expected operational expenses. servicing of financial obliguions, 

In addilion, processes and policies related te such risk are oversoen by Senior management. Management manitors the Trust's 
net liquidity position through rolling forceast on the basis of expected cash flows. 

{All amounts are in lakh untess otherwise stared) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As at March 31, 2023 Carrving <VYr. 1-3 Ves, s3°VK, 
Amount 

Term Loan 148,570.13 2,000.00 6000.00 L37,S70,15 
Nor-Conveértible Debentures 148,588.20 - - LAS, S88.20 
Trade Payables 34657 346.57 - - 

Other Financial Liabilities 5.129.459 5,129.59 - - 

Total 2,99.634.49 TAT6.16 6,400.00 2.86,158.33 

Ay at March 31, 2022 Carrying avn 13 Yrs, >3 Vrs, 
Amount 

Rorrawings 146,537.80 1.000,00 £.600,00 1,37.537.80 
Tide Payables 456.85 456.45 - - 

Other Finanelal Liabilities - - - : 

‘Totul 146,994.65 1 456,85 $,000,00 137,537.80 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or customer Contract. leading 

to # financial loys, To manage this, the Trust periodically assess the reliability of the receivables, tuking into accaunt Ihe 
finicials conditions; current economic trends, anuilysis of historical bad debts and nging of receivables. With respect lo credit 
risk arising from olber financial assets of the Trustwhich comprise Balances with banks, Trade Receivables, Loans ami 
Advances ani Investments. the Trust's exposure  eredit-cisk arises from defaull of the counterparty, with maximum 
exposure equal to the carrying umount of these insteuments- 

The carcving value of financial assets represents the maximun’ credit risk, The inaximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 
11,00,894.28 Lakh and Rs. 7,64,.814,16 Lakh ps at Marcel 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively, being the bital carrying 
value of Loans to Subsidiary, Trade receivables, Investments, Bulances with bank. bank deposits and other financial assets. 

31 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 36 "Impairment of Assets" 
Based on. impairment testing done which involves review of the: future discounted cash flaws of the subsidiary. the 
recoverable amount is higher than the currying amount of the investment made in the subsidiary and accordingly. no 
provision for impairment is required to be recognised in the books as on the ecporting date, 

32 Vinanctal Information of Investment Manager 

‘The summary finunciats of Investment Manager are nor disclosed alongwith these finuneials as its networth is not materially: 
exkled. 

33 Withholding ‘Vax liability for interest acerued but net due on non convertible debentures 

The ‘Trust lias issued publicly listed non convertible debentures ("NCDs") with interest payable on scmicannual basis. 
Interest on these NCDs was duc for paymenton 25 April 2025 and for the purpose-of payment of interest, recard date was U4 

April 2023 and debenture-holders uxisting as on 10 April 2023 are entitled to the coupon interest. ‘Trust has recorded linbilin. 
of interest accrued till 31st March 2023 atid there is no credit in fayvourvof any: payee at the time of creating sach provision as 

entitled payee will he identifiable as on record date i.e, on 10 April 2023, 

As on the year ead March 2023, there is uncertainty with respect to the ullimate recipient of interest income, and such 

uncertainty would only become vleur on the revord date ie... 10 April 2023 when the obligation of payment of interest by 

NIIP arises and therefore Trust has not wilbheld any taxes al the Lime of creating these provisions, 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

Additional discloyure as required by paragraph 6 of Anacxure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DE12 7/2016 

{AlLamounts are in % lakh unless otherwise stated) 

34 Statement of Retated Parties 

A. List of Related Parties as per requirement of IND AS 24 —“Related Party Disclosures” 

  

National Highways Infra Projects Private 
Enterprises where Control / significant influence cxists Limited (Subsidiary Company) 

  

B, List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2({)(4v} of the SEBL Invi’ Regulations 

Parties to the Trust 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHIMPL) - Investment Manager (IM) al ibe Trast 

[DBE Trusteeship Services Limited (ITS1,) - Trustee of the Trust 

National [lighways Authority of India (NAT Sponsor 

Niational Highways InvIT Project Managers Private Limited (NEIIPMPL}- Project Manager 

Prom he P. ‘o the Tr fied aboy 

Goverment of India (acting through Ministry of Road, Transpart & Highways (MORTH)) - Promoter of NEIIMPL 
IDBI Bank Limited (IDB Bank) - Promoter of ITSL 

Government of India ((ucting through Ministre of Roud, Transport & Highways (MORTH)) - Promoter of NUAT 

National Highways Authority of Jadia (NTA) Promotecof NHIPMETL, 

Di the parties to the Trust specified aboy 

Directors of NHITMPL 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr, Shailendra Narain Roy 
Me. Balasubramanyam Sriram (Ceased to be Director w.e,4, 31.03.2023) 
Mr. Mahavir Prasad Sharma 
Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharala 

Mr Amit (umar Ghosh 
Mrs: Kavita Salva: (Ceased to be Divector weet. 29.11. 2022, however reappointed on (6.01 2023) 

Mr. Brace Ross Crane (Ceased to be Director we.6 29.11.2022. however reappointed on 16.01.2023 ) 
Mr. N.R.V.VOMLK. Rajendni Kumar 

Mr. Vivek Rae (Ceused to be Direvtor w.c.f 12.07.2022) 
Mr. Sumit Bosc {Appointed wc 114)1.2023) 

Directors of ITS. 

Mr. J. Samvel Joseph 

Mr: Pradeep Kumar Jain 

Ms. Juyashroe Ranade 

Ms, Madhuri Jayant Kulkarni (Ceased ty be Directir wef, 06.12.2022) 
Ms: Padina Vinod Berai (Ceased to be Director weet. 31.12.2022) 

Mr: Pradeep Kumar Malhotra (Appointed w.e f 14.12.22) 

Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal (Appointed w.e.f, 17.01.2023) 

Directors of NHIPMPL 

Mr. Ashish Asati (Ceased to he Director wie. 28.10.2022) 
Mr. Akhil Khare (Appointed wef, 28.10.2022) 

Mr. Muratidhura Rao Bugatha (Ceased to be Director w.e,f 17.01.2023) 

Mr, Ashish Kumar Singh (Appointed wie?) 17.01.2023) 

        
FRN 602744 

ox) 
SERED AC!    



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure us required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SERIE Ciréular No. CIR/EMED/DE/I2 7/2016 

= 

  

  

  

    

      

  

  

  

C. ‘Transactions with Related Parties during the vear 
(All amounts arc i: 2 Jakh unless otherwise stared) 

Agsat March 31, | As at March 31,2022 
Particulars : 

2023 

Transaction during the year 

Purchase of equity shares oF NIIPPL, - 129,410.00 

Lang Term Loan ta given'te NHLPPI;, 2,84,966.06 6.05,640.00 
Interest Income on Long Ferm Loan given to NHIPPL 9F.A98.30 22,843.13 

Reimbursement of P'xpense paid by NHIT an behalf of NHIPPI. 132.66 274.98 

‘Vrangaction du Sar 

Invesiment Manager l’ees TA9L 17 L931 

Advance Investment Manager Fees 8606 - 
Reimbursement of Expenses to NHIUMPI, 39,79 214.80 

N Highways Authority of In JAD) 

T iin d rear 

Reimbursement of Pre-Issue expenses of NHIT be NHAI - 578.02 

Purchase of equity shares of Project SPV (NHIPPL) by the Trust from NITAI 4 Wh1S3.52 

Issue OF units of Thist to NITAT 21.366.83 96,556.00 
Interest and other income distribution 5,589.34 e 

1 ‘rustecshi Limit SL. 

Transaction during the year 

Payment of Trastee Pox 12.75 12,15 

Other fees related to Roun 1&2 Assets 3.54 - 

Closing Balance with Related Partics 

(All amounts are in % fakh unless atherwise slated) 
i Asat3ist March | Asat 31st March 

Particulars 2023 2022 

National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (NIIIPPL) 

Ralance outstanding at the end of the year 

Tavestment in equily shures of NIITPPL 1,29,410,00 1,29,410.00 

Long Term Loan to NHIPPT. 8.90.646.66 6.45,640,00 

Interest receivable on Long Term Laan'given t NHIPPL 46.633.43 10.635 1.13 

N lighway: ority of NUTAT 

Balance outstanding at the end of (he year 

Issue of units oF Trust to NELAT L.17.922.83 96,556.00 

Balance outstanding at the enidof the year 

IM Fees Payable 1.89 - 

I T eeship § Limi 

Balance outstanding at the end of the year 

tnitial Settlement Amount 6.10 
Trustee Fee Pavable 23 2.77           
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements forthe year ended March 31,2023 
35 Financial Instruments 

(All amowns are in 2 takh wuless opfternn ive stated) 

Financial    

  

As.at March 31 Asat™M 31,2022 

FIVPL m FIVPI, 

At Cost At Fair Value ceoasclaasepaiin AtCost JAtPuir ¥ 
Amortized Cost 

and Cash 38 

i },39,583.52 

Other Financial Assets 683.72 

Loans 

otal 

1883 

346-47 

Finoneial 129.59 

There-are no defaults during the year with respect to repayment of principal und payment of interestand tia breaghes-of the terms and conditions 

of the borrowings, 

‘There are ne breaches during the sear which permitted keniler 4 demand accelerated payment, 

36 Fair Values of Asscts and Liabilities 

The carrying amount of all financial assets aad labiliics appearing inthe financial statements is reasonable approxtnation or fair values, Pair 
value of te financial assets und liabilities ty the amount at which te instrument could be exchanged in u current ansaction between willing 

parties: other than inva forced br liquidation sue, 

37 Fair Value Hierarchy 

The Trust uses the following hierarchy for faic value measurement of the ‘Trust's financial assets and Jiabiliies, 

Level | - Quoted prices-{unadjusted} in active markels for identical assets or fiabilities. 

Lavel 2 - Inpuls other than quoted prices inchiled withis Level | that a¥e ubservable for the assct-or liability, either directly (ic. as prides) or 

indirecth: (Lc. derived from prices) 

Level 3 - Inpats for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable masket data (unobservable mputs). 

Claxs wise compdsition and comparison of carrying amounts andfairvalues of Hpancial-assets and tadilities thatarg recognised in the:financial 

staternrents along with Tair Value Tlierarchy details are given below: 

Alb in @ lakh 

c ¥alue Fair Value 

Fair Value at As at As 

Merarehy Level) ws inehi'51,2023| Maveh 31, 2022] March 31, 2023 

    

Particulars 
March 31, 

“ash and Cash 

in 
Fin A 

1 
Financial at 

Totat 

3 {S83 ; 158.33 37. 
Level 5 346.5 456 

Linbilitics Level 3 129. 5.129 
1; 

There is.one transferdarig the yeur frooi Level | 10 Level 3 for Investment in Mutual Funds as these have heen heen grouped imto cash and: vash 

cquivalents 

The policy of the ‘lust is to recognise transfers into and irunster out of fair values hierarchy levels.as.at the end of the reporting period 
Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair value 
  

  

  

  

  

    

          

Financial axsets and liabilities ¥aluation method Inputs 

Kinancial assets; 

Investments in equily shares of subsidiaries Income: Cash Thow 

Loans income Effective Rate of Interest 

Financial liabilities: 

Term loans from Bank Invoice: Effective Rate of Borrowings 

Non-Convyertible Debentures Inveme jlective Rate of Borrowings 

  

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

(AU amounts are in ¥ lakh untess otherwise stated) 
38 Disclosure of segment information pursuant to IND AS 108 "Operating Segments" 

The activities of the ‘Trust mainly include investing in Infrastructure assets primarily in the SPV¥s operating in the road 
sector lo generate cash Nows for distribution to unit holders, Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS « 108 
“Operating Segments”, this activity falls within « singh operating segment. Further, the entire operations of the Trust-arc 

only in India and henes, disclasurc of secondary / eeographical sepmeat iformatinn ducs nm anse, Accordingly, 

requirement of providing disclosures usmler Ind AS 108 does aot arise. 

39 Disclosure pursusnt te IND 23 “Borrowing Costs” 

Borrowing, cost capitalised during the year Ry Nil [March 31, 2022: Rs. Nill 

40 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions: 

(he preparation of the Teust’s financial statements requires management to make judgements: estimates-and assumptions 
that uffect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Habilities, and the aecompanying:disclosures, and the 

disclosure of contingent liubilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coukl -result-in outcomes that 

require i material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected im future penods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has mode the fallowing judgments. apart from 

these involving estimations, which have the most significant cftect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements 

‘Classification of unit holders Funds 
“Under Ge provisions of the SEBEL Invi Regulations: the-Trist ts required to distribute lots Unit holders not less than 
ninety percent of the net distributable cash lows of the ‘nist tor each finuncial year, Accordingly: a portion of the unit 
holders” finds contain a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unit holders cash distribntions 

The Unit holder's fonds could therefore have been classified as compound financial inswument which contain both equity 
‘and debt components in accordance with Ind AS 32 ‘Tinancial instruments: Presentation’, However, tn accordance with 

SEBI Circulars (Circular no. CIRAMD ADE 1472016 dated October 28, 2016 and No. CIRAMDBY DFF127/2016 dated 

November 29, 2016} tssucd under the SEB! InvlT Regulations, the wuit holders’ funds have becn classified as equity in 

arder ta comply with the mandatory requirements of Section Hof Annexure A tothe SEBI Circular dated October 26, 
2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line with the aboye. the inconye distribution 

payable to unit holders is. recognized ay liability when the same is approved by Board of Directors af the Investment 
Manaper. 

Fair valuation and disclosures 
SEBI Circulars issued uncer the SEBI InviT Regulations requires. disclosures eluting «0 net asscts at fair value and total 

returns at fair value In estimating the fair yolue of investments in subsidiuries (which constitute substantial portion of the 

net assets), the Trust engages independent qualified external Registered Valucrs to perform the valuation, The Investment 
Manager works closely with the valuers to give all the required inputs to the model. The valnation report and findings are 

discussed at the mecting of the Board of Directors on yearly basis to understand the changes in the fair valuc of the 
subsidiaries. The inputs to. the valuation models are taken from Independently conducted Technical and Traffic studies and 

dbsersahle markets, where possible, but where this is not feasibic. a degree of judgement is sequired in-estahlishing fur 

values, Judgements include: considerations of inputs such as.sweighted average cost of capital, tax rates, inflation rates, ete. 

Changes in ussumptions about.chese Jactors could alfeet the fatr-valne. 

‘Taxes 
In accordance with section 10 (23FC) of the Income Tax Act. 1961. the income af husiness trusts in the form-of interest 

reecived or receivable Irom subsidiaries is exempt trom tax. Accordingly, the ‘Inst iS not required to provide any current 
tax livbility. Further, deferred tax asset on carry forward fosscs is not crealed since there is no reasonable certuinty of 
reversal of the same in the near-future, 

Impairment of investments 
Impairment exists when the catrving value of am osxet oreash generating unil exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 
its fair value less costs of dispusal and ifs value i use, The recoverable aniounts for she investments ih subsidiaries are based an 
value inusyg of the. underlying projects. The-valuein use calculation is based on 4 OCT model The cash tows are derived Gum 

budgets ' forseasts over the life uf the projeces 

Expected Credit Loss on financial assets and loans in subsidiaries 

As per Ind AS 109, Financial Assets that are measured at amortsed cost are required to compute the Expected Credit Loss 
tECL). As at the reporting period, Investment manager of the Trust assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and 

concluded that no provision lor ECL is required 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

41 Subsequent Events 

The Bourd of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution for ( Quarters FY 
unit was made which comprised of Rs. 1.5778 per unit us interest and Rs 0.0287 per unit as ather income on surplus 
funds at ‘Trust kvel i their meeting hekl on 22nd May 2023 to be paid on or before 1S davs from the date of declaration. 

42 Contingent liabilities 
here are no contingent liahititics as st March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil} 

43 Distribution made 

    

    

otal 

44 Reconciliation of Financing Activities in Cash Flow Statement 

Particalars 

ol debt at the 

the 

of imerest 

at the end af the 

45 Additional Regulatory laformation 

Financial Ratios 

(All amounts are in 2 lakh uniess otherwise stated) 

are ind 

All amounts are in 2 

As on 

vw Term 

22:23 wf Rs 1.6035 per 

wherwise 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

    

           

§.No, Particulars Ason Ag on 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

I Current Asset ratio {Current Assets ‘Current 8.22 25.73, 
2 Debt- Equity ratio (Debt! Equity) 0.37 0.24 

3 Debt service coverage ratio (Operating Cash Now! 460 sg 

Extemal Delu Obhgation) ae 

4 laierest service coverage ratio {EBITY Finance cost) S&R «91 

5 Asset Cover-ratia (value afassets having pariepassu: 

vburges/outstanding value of vurresponding debt 32) iS 
+interest acurusd) 

6 Networth §,02,1137.66 617,567.24 

7 Net profitafter tax TI2Z6NF 18.192.23 

& Outstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity | 

and value) : ~ . 

5 Capital redemption reservedehenture redemption 

reserve | : ~ 
1G [Long term debi to working capital 4,3? DRG 

ie EKaming per unit 1.76 3.06 

12 [Bed debt to account receivable ratio - * 

13 Current bahility ratio OAI3 O01 

14 [Total debt to total assets 27 bo. 
tS —_ |ROE ratiogNet Peohaé Expuity> 9.63% 2.98%5) 

16 = [Inventory tumover ratio NA NA 

17 | Trade receivable lumover ratio NA NA 

18 [Trade payable turnyver ratio NA NA 
19 |Net Capital tumover rutir (Total Income # Net 1.36 O57 
20 [Net profit rao iNet profit / Total Incume) RO.63% FA.22%) 

ZI Return on capital employed ratio {(Nel Profit plas grea ae 

Finance Costi? {Equity + Debt)) wae sid 
22 Ree on investment [income on Investment / 

chteg Cost of Investment IS.68% 
  

    
 



46    
47 

48 

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yearended March 31,2023 

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 33 “Earnings per Unit" 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Unit (EPL) computed inaccordance with nd AS 93 "Earnings per Unit”: 

PAM orrnninis are in 2 kikh | ; 

As at Mareh 31, 2023 Asat March 31 

stuted    

of the Trust (In Lakh 77,236.) 18,192.23 
umber of 

fn Rs AB 76 

Investment Management Fees: 

1} Lhe investment mariager’s fee as initially agreed to be Rs. 1,100 Lakh (Rupees Kleven Hundred Lakh) per annum, 
exclusive of applicable taxes as per agreement dated 21 st October, 2020 for FY 2020-21, 

in) The investment manager's fee set ul in whove shal) be subject to escalation un an annual basis at die rate OF 10% of the 

management fee lor the peecious-vear 

iit) Any applicable taxes, cess or charges shall be in addition tothe investment manager's Tee and shall be payable by 
National Highways Infra trust (NEUT) to the Investment Manager {NHIEMPL)}. 

iy) The payment of investment manager's fee shall be madc by National Highways Infra Inast{NHIT} 10 the 

investment manager (NHUMPL) in advance on a quartedy. basis. 

Key sources of estimation 

the preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reyuires ihe Prnist makes estitlates: und -wysumptions: 

that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period: the reported balances of assets and liabilities anu 
the disclosures selating to contingent abilities as of the dace of the Financial stutements. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions ure reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include allowance for doubtful loans 

fother receivables, fair yalue measurement ete, Difference, if anv, beoreen the actual results and estimates ts recopnised tn 
the period in which the results are known. 

49 Other Statutory Information 

1) The Trust have mot traded or Invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year, 
ii} The Trust does nat hold benami property and no privesdings under Benami transaction {Prohibition Act 1988 haye 

been inidated against the trust. 

‘iit) The Trust do not haye any transactions with contpanies struck aff. 
iv) The Tryst have not any such transaction which js not recarded in the bouks oF accounts that has been sucrendered or 
disvlosed as incume during the year in the tax asseasments.umder the Income lax Act, 19% t (suchas, search or surveyor 

any other relevant provisions of the Income lax Act. L961: 

v) The Trust have mot recetved any fund from any persons) or cnticy fics). including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 

Shall: 

(a) dircetly or indirectly lend or iivest in other persons or cutitics édeatified in any manner whatsoever by or cn behalf of 
(h} provide uny guarantee, sccunty ar the like on behalfofths Ulumare Bencficiaries 

vil The Trust have not advance or Joaned or iivested (either from borrowed fund or share premium or any other source or 
including forcign entities (Funding Parivi with the understanding (whether recorded in wreting or otherwise) that the ‘Trust 

shail 

(al directly or indirectly lend or invest ii other persons or entities identified tn any manner whatsoever hy or on behalf of 
the: compuny: (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficinries 

vit) The Trust did not have any lone term contrnets including derivative contract for which there were any material 
wilt The Trust las not declared a wilful dctanlter by any bank! Hnancial institution of any other lender coring the year. 

50 Previous Year Figures 

Previous year's numbers have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary i conform ta current yeas's classification, 

For AR. & Co. Forand on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 
Chartered Accnmtants & Co Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager of 

Firm Registration Sy National Highways Infra Trust) 
vi 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

‘Yo the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National 
Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the InviT” or “the Trust’) and its 

one subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as “National Highways Infra Projects 

Private Limited” or “NIIPPL”") (the Trust and its subsidiary together referred to as 

“the Group’), which comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 

2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income}, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s 

Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the 
consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair value as al 31 March 2023, the 

consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net 

Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and its subsidiary for the year then ended 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 

referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us and based on the consideration of our report on financial 

statements of subsidiary and on the other financial information of the subsidiary, 

the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} 

Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and. 

circulars issued thereunder (together referred to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”} 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as:amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI 

InvIT Regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 

2023, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its 

consolidated cash flows, its consolidated statement of changes in Unitholders’ 

equity for the year ended 31 March 2023, its consolidated net assets at fair value 

as at 31 March 2023, its consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and 

 



  

the net distributable cash flows of the Trust and its subsidiary for the year ended 
31 March 2023. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in-accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India, Our responsibilities under those Standards are: further 
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 

financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the SEBI 

InviT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our epinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 

most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2023. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 

be communicated in our report. 

      

‘Assessment of Impairment of Intangible | Our Audit Procedures 
Assets in form of Toll Collection Rights included the following :- 

The Group operates toll assets which is e Verified the 

constructed on Toll, Operate and Transfer appropriateness of the 

(TOT) basis. The carrying value of the toll Group's accounting policy 

collection rights as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. on impairment of 
_ 10,01,398.18 Lakhs, Intangible Assets and 

Valuation Methodology 
In accordance with its accounting policy:and applied in determining 

requirements under Ind AS 36 “Impairment the recoverable amount. 

‘of Assets”, the Management has performed 

an impairment assessment by comparing the | ® Checked the Impairment 
  

  
    

carrying valve of the toll collection rights to Sheet provided by the 
their recoverable amount Management. 

For impairment testing; value in use has|« Obtained the | 

been determined by forecasting and Management 

discounting future cash flows: Further, the Representation on the 

yalue in use is highly sensitive to changes in assumptions around the 
critical variable used for forecasting the key drivers of the revenue 

OC 
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‘future cash flows including _ traffic 
projections and discounting rates. 

The determination of the recoverable 
amount of the toll collection right involves 

significant estimates and judgments and 

projections, future cash | 

flow, discount rates / 

weighted average cost of 

capital that were used by 

them. 

  

  
    

  

accordingly, the evaluation of impairment of | Tested the arithmetical 

toll collection rights has been determined as accuracy of the 
a key audit matter. (Refer Note No. 2.7 for Impairment sheet. 
accounting policy relating to Intangible 
Assets and Note No. 42 and 49 of 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the 

year ended 31.03.2023) _ ~~ 

Assessment of Impairment of Goodwill on | Our Audit Procedures 

Consolidation included the following :- 

Goodwill on consolidation is tested for e Verified the 
impairment as per Ind AS 36 on an annual appropriateness of the 

basis by the Group using enterprise value of Group’s accounting policy 

respective subsidiary company to which the on impairment of 

goodwill relates to. Goodwill and Valuation 

Enterprise value calculation involves use of 

future cashflow projections, discounted to 

‘present value, terminal value and other 

variables. These use of management 

projections and estimates results in inherent 

risk of error with respect to the valuation of 

Goodwill and accuracy of impairment loss, if 

any. 

Goodwill amounting to Rs. 10;144.46 Lakhs 

as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: 

10,144.46 Lakhs) arising out of business 
combination as per Ind AS 103 has been 

tested for impairment by the management. 

(Refer Note No, 2.3 for accounting policy 

relating to Goodwill on Consolidation; Note 

No. 42 and 49 of Consolidated Financial 

Statements for the year ended 31.03.2023) 

Therefore, Impairment of Goodwill has been 

considered as a Key Audit Matter. 
Provisioning of 

Maintenance/Periodic 

Maintenance/resurfacing expenses (Refer 

Note No. 16 and 61 of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements) 

Major 

As per Concession Agreement, the Group is 

obligated to perform regular maintenance 

  

  

Sheet provided by the 

Management 

Obtained the 
Management 

Methodology applied in 

determining the 
enterprise value. 

Checked the Impairment 

Representation on the 

assumptions around the 

key drivers of the revenue 

projections, future cash 

flew, discount rates / 

weighted average cost of 

capital that were used. by 

them. 

  
Tested the arithmetical 

accuracy of the 

impairment sheet, 
  

Our 

included the following :- 
  Audit Procedures 

Understood the Group’s 

Process associated with 

the estimation of 

resurfacing obligation.   
ce.



  

  
    

along with periodic maintenance of road 

assets during the entire concession period, 

The Periodic maintenance includes resurface 
of pavements, repairs of structures‘and other 

equipment and maintenance of service 

roads: The Group has estimated the 

provision required towards major 

maintenance in accordance with Ind AS 37 

“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent. Assets”, The Provision made by 

the Group over the Concession involves 

detailed Calculation and Judgement and 

accordingly, the major maintenance expense 

is considered to be the Key audit Matter. 

Verified the requirement | 

under Concession 

agreement and Group‘s 

accounting policy, 

Tested the assumption 

used in determining the 

major maintenance 

provision. 

Tested the arithmetical 

accuracy and also 

verified the disclosure in 

the Consolidated 

Financial Statements, 
  

. | Computation and disclosures as 

prescribed in the SEBI InviT regulations 

relating to Consolidated Statement of Net 

Assets at Fair Value and Consolidated 

Total Returns at Fair Value 

As per SEBI InviT regulations, the: Trust is 
required to disclose statement of net assets 
at fair value and statement of total returns at 
fair value. The fair value is determined by 
forecasting and discounting future cash 
flows from the operations of the investee 
entities which involves management 
estimates and judgements. These estimates 
and judgements include discounting rates, 
ax rates and. inflation rates which are 
considered for computing the fair value. 

There is an inherent risk in the computation 
of fair value due to the use of estimates and 

judgements mentioned above. 

Therefore, computation and disclosures of 
Consolidated statement of net assets at fair 
value and Consolidated statement of total 
returns at fair value is considered as a Key 
Audit Matter. 

Refer Note-49 Significant Accounting 
Assumptions — Fair Value and Disclosures 

. < | 

and Statement of net assets at fair value and 

Statement of total] returns:at fair value in the 

Consolidated financial statements: 

  Our 
included the following :- 

  

Audit Procedures 

the 

the 

Obtained 

understanding. of 

requirements of SEBI 

InvIT regulations for 

disclosures relating to 

Consolidated Statement 

of Net Assets at Fair Value 

and Consolidated 

Statement of Total 

Returns at Fair Value,   Assessed the Valuation 

Report issued by the 

Independent Valuer 

engaged by the 
management. Also 

assessed the 

appropriateness of the > 

Trust's valuation 
methodology applied in 

determining the fair 
values. 

Obtained Management 

representation in this 

respect.   
Tested the arithnietical 

accuracy of computation 

in the statement of net 

assets and total returns at 

fair value. 

  

 



  

* f&nsured that disclosures 
is in compliance with 

SEBI Invi regulations 

relating to the statement 

of net assets-at fair value 

and the statement of total 

| returns at fair value.   
INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of Investment Manager including 

annexures to Investment Manager's Report and other information as required to 

be given by SEBI InviT Regulations, but does not include the consolidated financial 

statements and our report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we 

obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 

MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the preparation 

of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, consolidated statement of Profit 

& Loss including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and 

consolidated statement of changes in Unitholder’s equity for the year ended 31 

March 2023, the consolidated net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023, the 

consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and the net distributable cash 

flows of the Trust and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 March 2023 in 

accordance with the requirements of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, Indian 

Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1) (a) of Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations. The 

respective Board of Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Group are 

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of 

the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; sélection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

 



making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

and error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of Investment 

Manager, as aforesaid, 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of 

Investment Manager and respective Board of Directors of the company included in 

the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the respective Board of 
Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Group are also responsible 

for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report. that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a-guarantee thatan 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error-and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

e Obtain.an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 

internal controls. 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

the Board of Directors of the Invéstment Manager, 
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment 

Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability 

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 

concern, 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

e Obtain sufficient appropriate. audit evidence regarding the financial 

information of the entities or business activities within the Group of which 

we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate: the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 

our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may réasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 

determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the current period and:are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InvlT Regulations, we report that: 

a) 

b) 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

the consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 

the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, the’consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair 

value, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and its subsidiary dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account, 

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent 

with SEBI InvIT regulations. 

For A. R. & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN. 002744C 

Ceo 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No: 085003 
UDIN: 23085003 BGWVFJ8283 

   
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 22.05.2023



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

(All amonnts in @ lukh untcss otherwise stated} 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

     

  

  

  

  

  

            

consolidated financial statements, 

‘This ts the Consolidated Balunce Sheet reterred to in our report of even date, 

For A.R. & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Hira, Registration no, 

EZ 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta 

Partner 

i No.085003 

Date. 22,05,2023 

Place; New Dethi 

   

  

   

  

Particulars: Note Na. AS AL AS-At 

March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022 

ASSETS 
1) Now - Current Assets 

(a} Property. Plamt and Equipment 3 125.17 A6 

(b) Goodwill 4 19.144,.46 19.144.46 

(¢) Intangible assets § 10.08 400.09 7.33,984.39 
{ul} Financial Assets 

(i) Other Financial Assets 6 96I244 3,170.81 

{¢) Delorced Tax Assets (net) 7 1.685:32 262.83 
{f) Non -Current Vax Assets (Net) 8 1206 - 
‘Total non-current assets 10,26,039.54 747,562.64 

2) Current Assets 

{ai Vinancial Assels 

(1) Trade cecetvables 9 350.87 600.47 
(0) Cashand Cash Bquivatents 1 21424.08 6,481.94 
(iif Other Finanietal assets tt 297,36 5.38 

tb) Other current assets 12 1343.35 347.20 

‘Potal-current assets 23,115.66 7,335.07 

TOTAL ASSETS £0,49,155.20 FS4.397.72 
EQUITY AND LIABILIT 
EQUITY 
7) Unit Capital 13 FAl.604 32 $,99.442.82 

2} initin settlement amount 0.10 10 
3) Other Equity 14 {2.469,86) 6,768.43 

‘Yotal Equity 739,134.56 60621135 
LEABILITIES 

1) Non-Current liabilities 

fu) Pinumeczal Habilities 
1) Borrowings 15 2,92.158.33 3.A5,556.94 

(bh) Provisions 16 6.318 81 403.37 
Tatal non-current liabilities 2,98 477.14 145,960.32 

2) Current liabilities 
fat) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 1? 200.00 OSO.RA 

(ii) Trade Pas ables 1s 
(a) Votal Outstanding, does of micro and simul 

enterprises 127.23 - 

(bj lotaboutsianding, dues of creditors ather than 124478 

micre and small enterprises SRTLAF HR 

(i) Other finaneral Lobilities 1y 5.284.985 97.85 
(b) Other current Itabilities 20 240.61 240.75 
(¢} Provisions 2h 0.56 0.03 
(cd) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 8.58 161.77 

Total current liabilities 11,543.50 2,726.06 

LVOVAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 10,49, 155.20 TS4, 897.72 
Significant Accounting Policies 1-2 

The accompanying: notes form an integral part of these 3.+.64 

For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 

Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment 
Manager of Nati 

  

ae 

sdseat cele oe I 

Director 

DIN, 02721580 

Gil 
Mathew George 

Chief Financial Officer 

nal Highways Infra Trost} 

\WBhenee 
Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Director 

DIN: 03158413 

aie t 
Compliance Officer 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

(All amounts i) % Jukh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended 
No. Murch 31 2023 March 31 2022 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 23 68,717.20 13,960.55 
Interest [ncome 24 373.43 5.86 
Profit an sale of Investments 25 671AF 690.00 
Other Income 26 326.11 318.67 

TOTAL INCOME 7O087.91 14,975.08 

EX 
Investment Manger Fee 1,263.70) ORR 71 
lrusteeship Fee 9.60 3,73 
Valuation expenses 4.00 - 
Annual listing tees 20.06 - 

Rating fees 0.20 O57 
Insurance expenses &28:74 166.04 

Custodian Fees 0.84 . 
Project Management lees 991.20 290,43 
Operating Expenses 27 9.025.05 849.77 
Employee !Senelits Expenses 28 311.33 2:12 
Finance Cost 29 16.621.32 3,154.43 

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 30) 17.360.63 1,053.65 

Other Expenses 31 1,801.95 SOA87 
Audit Fees 32 

+ Statutory audit fees 7:33 4.86 
~ Other audit services (including certification) 0.93 0.52 

TOTAL EXPENSES 48,347.23 7,964.71 

Profit! (Loss) before Tax 21,740.68 7,010.37 
‘Lax Expenses 33 

Current Tax 473.89 436.36 
Current tax - varlier years OM 

Deferred Tax expenses(credit) {4.422.79) (262.32) 
Total Tax . (3,948.89) 174.04 

Profit/ (loss) for the year - 25,689.57 6,836.33 

Other Comprehensive Income 
fiems that will not be reclassified to Profit and |oss - - 
Tiems that will be reclassified to Profit and {oss - - 

Total Comprehensive Income forthe year - 25,689.57 6,836.33 
Earnings per Unit 
Basiv 34 3.91 Las 

Diluted 4 391 1.15 

Significant Accounting Policies 1-2 
The accompanying notes for an iatceral part of these consolidated financial 

Statements, 3-64 

This is the Statement of Protit and Loss referred to in our repart of even date. 
For A.R. & Co, For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 
a i) <a woe ’ = <8 
Chartered Accountants “ Oa. & Coe investment Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager of 

  

    
Firm Registration na. 0027440 ~F" © 

ane 

Cute 
infra Trust) 

  

l. Wwe 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta Suresh Krishan Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Partner Director Nivectur 
M.No.085003 DIN; 02721 580 DIN: O31584 13 
Date ; 22,05.2023 - Jes 
Place : New Delhi (Oi argo 

Mathew George Gu ay Bing { 

Chief Financial Onicer Cotiplifnce Officer   

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
CONSOLIDATED CASI FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

(All amounts in @ lakh aniess otherwise stated) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31 2023 

For the year ended 

March 31 2022 
    

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit/(Loss) Before l'ax 21,740.68 7,010.37 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and Amortization 17,560.63 1,055.65 
Profit on redemption of mutual funds (671.17) (682.62) 
Interest income from hDR (373.43) (3.86) 
Finance Cost (net) 16,590.17 3,154.43 

Provision for major maintenance expenses 5,879.20 403.29 

Unwinding interest on major maintenance provision 24.95 - 

Provision for Laeave encashment and Gratuity 11.93 O11 

Provision lorexpected credit loss 59.60: - 

Bad debts written. olT 9.90) - 
Operating Profit‘(Loss) before Working € ‘apital Changes 60,832.46 10,935.37 

Working Capital Adjustments: 

Decrease / (Increase) in ‘Vrade & Other Receivables 180,10 (600.47) 

Decrease / (Mnerease} in Other Non Current Financial Assets (208.85) (0.0H)) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current/Current Assets (834.96) (347.29) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (293.33) 6.59 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 3.267.0) 651.07 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 37,50 (7.34.867.55) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions: (0,11) 6:00 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (0,14) 238.59 

Increase / (Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities - (0.59) 

2,167.02 (7,34,925.66) 

Incame Tax paid (626.67) (274.00) 

Net Cash Flows from/(used in} Operating Activities: 62,372.81 (7,24,264.28) 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, including CWIP. capital (2,85. 101,04) (0.50) 

Purchase of Non Current Investments - (b.52} 

Investment in PDR (6,299.19) (3,170.81) 
Interest received on maturity of FDR 189.55 - 

Profil on redemption of mutual funds 671.17 682.62 
Net cash flows from (used in) Investing activities {2,90,539.51) (2,490.21) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Issue of Unit Capital 1,43.013.67 $,91 000.00 

Expense incurred towards initial public debt offering (1,689.00) = 

I:xpense incurred tawards instituGional unit allotment (1,099.13) (1,364.94) 
Distribution to Unit Holders (34,927.86) F 
Procecds Jrom Long Term Borrmyings (net of processing fees) 1,50,000.00 1,47,646.00 
Vinancing churges paid (197.00) = 

Repayment of Lang Tenn Barrewings (1,010.98) (1,001.59) 
Finance Costs Paid (11,180.86) (3,143.04) 
Net cash flows from (used in) Financing activities 242,908.84 7,33,136.43 

Net Incrense/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 14,742.14 6,381.94 
Cash and cash cquiyalents at the bevinning of the-ycar 6,381.94 - 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21,124.08 6,381.94 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

‘This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date, 

For AR. & Co. For and on behalf of the National Highways Infra 
Chartered Accountants Investment Managers Private Limited (investment 

Firm Registration ne, 6027 Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

Cau! 
CA Kailash Chand Gupta 

Partner 

M.No,08S003 

Date : 22.05.2023 

Place + New Delhi 

   

  

   

    

  

2 Wakes 2 
Sh Krishan Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Director Director 

DIN; 02721580 DIN; 03158413 

Gun Auhing Mathew George 

Chief Financial Ollicer Compliance Officer



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3), 2023 

A.INEITIAL SETTLEMENT AMOUNT 

(AlLamobunts in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Particulars Amount 
Balance as at April f, 2021 0.10 

Changes in unit capital : 

Balance wy wt March 31 2022 0.10 
Changes in unit capital - 
Balance as at Mareh 31 2023 o.16 

B. UNIT CAPITAL * 

Partieulary Number of unit Amount 

Bulance as at April 1, 2021 . - 
Changes in unil capital 29,52.00.4000 6,01.152.00 

One lime issue expenses (1,709.18) 

Balance ay ut 31 March 2022 59,52,110,000 5,99.442.82 
Changes in unit capitat 13.12,05,200 143,013.67 
(ne time issue expenses (852.17) 

Balance as at March 31 2023 72,64.05,210 741,604.32 

CL OTHER EQUITY ** 
Particulars Reserves and Surplus [Items of Other Comprehensive Total 

Income 

hems that will not be reclassifted t 
profil or lass 

Retained Earnings. Remeasucement of Defined Benefit 
Obligation! Plan 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 (67.90) - (67.90) 

Profit? (1 oss) for the year 6,336.33 . 6,836.33 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6,768.43 - 6,768.43 
Prodi’ (1 dys) for the year 25.489,57 “ 25.689,57 

Less: 
Distribution to.unit boklers* 

Interest 34,183.06 - 34,183.66 
Other Incame 744,20 - 744.20 

Balance as at March 31 2023 {2\469.86) . (2,469.86)           

The disttiburion relates to the disteibutions during the financial vear along with the distribution related! to the last quarter of '¥ 2021+ 

22 and does not include the distribution relating to the period January OL, 2023 to March 31, 2023 which will be paid aller Murch 31. 

2023. The distributions by the Trust te its unit holders ure based on-the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust under the SEBI 
Invi P Regulations, 

* Refer Note No. 13 
** Refer Note No. 14 

For A.R. & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration no, 

    

  

CA Kailash Chand Gupta 
Partner 

M.No.085003 

Wate : 22.05,2023 

Plies New Delhi 

For and on behalf of the National Highways Infra Investment 
Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager of National 

Highways Infra, Trust) 

    
, ¥ — 

Sures an Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Direvtor Direvlor 
DIN: 02721580 DIN: 65158413 

: S a: hus 2 6 a an Ob 

Mathew George G agSingh 

7 

Chief Financial Officer Comptince Officer 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29 

November 2021 issued ander the InviT regulations) 

Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value (AMM) amounts in 2 lakh unless otherwise sated} 
  
  

  

  

March’31, 2023 March 31, 2022. 
Particulars Book value Fair value* Book value Fair value” 

Av Assets 10.49.1530 11.68,122,00 F.S4 897.72 F.54,897.72 
1B. I dabilities 3,10.020.64 3.10.020:64 148,686.37 |48.686.37 
C. Net-assets (A-B) 3,39 ,134,.56 8,58, 101,36 6,06,211,35 6,06,211,.35 
(3, Noot units 72.64,05.200. 72.64,05,200 §9,52,00,000 | §9.52,00.000 
BE. NAY (C/D) 1OL.7S 118.13 101,85 101.85             

“Fair values of total assefs relating @ the Trust as at March 31, 2023 as disclosed above ure based on the independent valuer-report. 

Note: The trust has only one SPV i.c. NIIPPL, hence SPV wise break up of fair value of assels ure not required 

Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value: (AB-amounts in & Lath unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  
  

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total comprehensive income for the ycarperiod (As per Ute Consolidated 25.689.57 6,836.33 

Statement! of Profitand Loss) 
Add: Other changes in Jair value for the year * 1.18.966.80 : 
Total return 1,44,656.37 6,836.33 

          

“In the above statement, olher changes in fair value for the year ended 31 March, 2023 have been computed based independent valuers 

report, 

Theaccompanying notes. form an integral partof the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

thiscis the Consofidared Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Consalidated Statement of Total Return at Pair Value referred to ia 

our report of even date, 

For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 

Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment 

Manager of National Highways Infra Vrust) 

For A.RLU& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration no. 002744C 

Cesuy 
CA Kailash Chand Gu 

Parner 

M.No, 085003 

   
Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Director 

DIN: 03158413 

  

DIN: 02721580 

Idate + 22.008,2023 
Pluss 2 New Delbi 

Mathew George i lf’ 

Chief Financial Ollicer C me: lance Officer 

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBL Master Circular No. CIRSEBYHO/DDHS_Div3iP/C1R/2021/1673 dated 29 November 
2021 issucd under the InvIT 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Consolidated Statement of Net Distributuble Cash Mlows iAlLamounts in’? lakh unless otherwise stated) 
S. No. Particulars March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022 

| |Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income und expenditure 77,236.17 18,192.23 
(Standalone) (A) 

2_ |Add: Income fecoguisedl in previous year and received in this.year HOSES * 

3 |Add: Depreckition and amortization os per statement of prolit and Joss account, Incase of : - 
Impairment reversul, same needs to be deducted from profit and foss. 

4 _[Add/Less: Lossgain on sale of infrastructure assets - - 
§ |Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastraciure assets adjusted for the following: - - 

~ related debts settled or due tobe settled frany sale prococds). 

~ directly atteiburable transaction costs; 
» proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation ER(7)(a) of the InviT 
regulutions 

4 |Add: Prooveds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an carlicr plan - - 

to tesinvest, i! such proceeds are not intended iy be invested subsequently, net of any 
profit’ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

7 |Add? Less: Any other item of non- cash expense!’ non cash income (net of actual cash (42,570.15) (8,233.88) 
Nows for these items), i deemed necessary by the Investment Manager. 
For example. any deereasc’ increase in eanying amount of un asset oc a liability recognised 

in profil.and lass /income-and expenditure on measurement of the assel or the liability al 
fair valuc: 

Interest cost as per effective interest rate method, delerred tax lease rents recognised on a 
straight Tine basis, ete, 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          
% = |Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares? debentures; (1,010.98) (5.20450) 

ete. (excluding refinancing) net vash sct aside to comply with DSRA requircment under 
jaan ayrocnyents 

9 | Total Adjustment (B) (32,930.01 (13,438.39) 

10. | Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+1) 44,306.16 4,753,834 

IL | Less: NDCF niready distributed tu Unithalders in 01,02 and 03 30.225,78 - 
12 | Balance Net Distributable Cash Flows 14,080.39 4,753.84 

13 | Less: Amounts sctaside for payment of financial liabilites and other liubilities (2.431.84) s 

14 | Balance Net Distributable Cash Mows for Q4 11,648,55 4,783.84 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No; CIRSEBLMLOMDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29 November 
2021 issued under the Invit 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows 

National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited (Project SPV) 

fAll amounts in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

S. 

No, 

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

  

1 Profit alter tax as per Statement of profit und loss‘income snd expenditure 
(standalone) (A) 

(51,546.61) {11,355,90) 

  

2 Add: Depreciation and amortization-as-per statement of profit and loss account. Incase-off 
Impairment reversal, samc needs to be deducted from profit and loss: 

17,560.63 1,055.65 

  

Add/Less: Loss‘gain onsale of infrastructure assets 
      

Add: Proceeds Itom sale of infrastmuctare assets adjusted tur the following: 
related: debts settled or due ta bo settled fram sale proceeds; 
dircetly attributable iransaction costs: 
proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 1817) of the Invi 

lalions. 
  

a
 Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets nol distributed pursiant to an earlier plan to 

re-invest, If such prooveds are now intended to be invested subsequently. net of any profit’ 
(lass) recognised in profit and lass wecount 

(134.38) 

  

Add! Leys: Any other item of non-cash expense’ non cash income (ret of actual cash Hows 
for these items), i deemed nevessary by the Investment Manager, 
For example, any decrease? increase in carrying amount of un asset or a liability recognised 

in profit und boss /income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the Liability at fair 
valuc: 

Interest! cost us per cffective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents recognised ‘on a 
straight line basis, ete. | 

40,575.45 10,888.85 

  

4
 Less: Repayment af external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shaves # debsntures. 

ete. (excluding refinancing) /onet cash set aside to comply with DSA requirement under 

Joun agrvements 

(4,004.00) 

  

Total Adjustment (B} 33,997.70 
      Net Distributable Cash Flows (C)-= (A+B)   2,451.09     
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023 

GROUP INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of National |lighways Infra 
Trust (“the Trust” or “InvIT™) and its subsidiary (Project SPV — National Highways Infra Projects 
Private Limited (NHIPPL.)) (collectively, the Group), 

The Trust is an irrevocable trust registered under the provisions of the Indian ‘Trusts Act, 1882 on 
October 19, 2020. It is registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure 
Investment Trust) Regulations. 2014 on October 28. 2020 having registration number 
INfinvl1/20-2 1/0014. 

The ‘Trust was ‘setup by National Ilighways Authority of India (“NHAT” or the “Sponsor’), an 
Infrastructure Development Trust in India. The ‘Trustee to the Trust is IDBL Trusteeship Services 
Limited (ihe “frustee") and Investment Manager for the Trust is National Highways Infra 
Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment Manager”). 

The Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructure assets primarily being in the-road sector in 
India. The Trust’s road projects are implemented and held through special purpose. vehicles 
(“Project SPVs"! “Subsidiaries”). The units of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock xchange on November 10, 2021. 

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity control in National 
Highway Infra Projects Private Limited (the “Project SPV“) from the Sponsor with effect from 
November 03. 2021. During the year ended 31.03.2021, the project SPV entered into five 
Concession Agreements for 30 years with the Sponsor (National Highways Authority of India — 
NHAT) on Toll, Operate and Transfer (“TOT') basis and in year ended 31.03.23 further signed 

three new Concession Agreements for 20 years with National Highways Authority of India on 
Toll. Operate and Transfer (“TOT ’) basis. 

The registered office of the Investment Manager is G-5 &-6, Sector-10, Dwarka, Delhi - 110075, 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution 
passed by the board of directors of the Investment Manager on May 22, 2023. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 
The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Ind AS”) 
read with Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Group) Regulations, 
2014. as amended and the circulars issued thereunder (“SEBI InvIT Regulations”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
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According]y, the Group has prepared these Consolidated Financial Statements comprising of the 
Balance Sheet as on March 31. 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on March 
31, 2023, the Statement of Cash F lows for the year ended on March 31, 2023, the Statement of 
Changes of Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2023 and Notes to Accounts (together 
hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

These Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost 
convention, except certain financial assets and liabilities which have heen measured at Fair Value. 
Accounting policies haye been consistently applicd, except where a newly issued Accounting 
Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use, Further. these consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest Lakh (700,000) and two 
decimals thereof, except as otherwise stated, 

Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Trust and it's 
subsidiary (Project SPV- NHIPPL) from date of acquisition ie, November 3, 2021. 

For the purpose of consolidation. an entity which is, directly or indirectly; controlled by the Group 
is treated as subsidiary. Control exists when the Group, directly or indirectly, has power over the 
investee, is exposed to variable returns from its.involvement with the investee and has the ability 
to use its power to affect its returns, 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group, directly or indirectly, obtains. control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. 
Income and expenses ofa subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the 
consolidated statement of profit.and loss from the date the Group, directly or indirectly, gains 
control until the date when the Group, directly or indirectly, ccases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidation procedure: 

e Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, Income, expenses and cash Nows of the 
parent with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the 
Subsidiaries are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the 
Consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 

e Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and 
the parent's portion of equity of cach subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains 
how toaccount for any related goodwill. 

¢ Eliminate in full intragroup-assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows 
relating to transactions between entitics of the group (profits or losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions that are recognised in asscis, such as inventory and fixed assets. 
are eliminated in full. Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires 

ition in the consolidated financial statements, 
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e The carrying amount of the Group's investment in cach subsidiary and the Group's portion 
of equity of each subsidiary are offset with each other in the consolidated financial 
statements, 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes applics to temporary differences that arise from the 
climination of profits from intragroup transactions. 

The aecounting policics of subsidiaries have been harmonised to ensure the consistency with the 
policies adopted by the Group. The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the 
extent possible, in the same manner as Group's standalone financial statements. 

Business Combination/ Goodwill on Acquisition ; 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition 
is. measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred. measured at acquisition date fair 
value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business 
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at 
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related 
costs are recognised in the statement of profitand loss as incurred. 
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for 
recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised 
at their acquisition date fair values. l’or this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent 
liabilitics representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values 
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, 
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets 
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it 
has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the 
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the 
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the ageregate 
consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. | lowever, if there is no clear evidence of gain on bargain 
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity a5 capital reserve. without routing the 
same through other comprehensive income. 

Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised, however, it is tested for impairment annually. 
In the event of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is written off fully. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 
acquisition date, allocated to cach of the Group's cash-gencrating units that are expected to benefit 
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilitics of the acquire are assigned 
to those units. A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment 
annually, or more frequently when there is.an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than it’s carrying amount, the impairment 
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each assct in the unit. 
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Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An 
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods, Where goodwill 
has becn allocated toa cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the 
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. 

Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed 
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained, 

Use of Judgement and Estimates. 
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting 
principles in India, and requires the Investment Manager to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. 
Although these estimates are based upon Investment Manager's best knowledge: of current events 
and actions, actual results could differ fram these estimates, 

Current versus non-current classification 
Assets and Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet have been classified as either Current or 
Non-Current based upon the requirements. of Schedule HI notified under the Companies Act, 
2013. 
An asset has been classified as Current if, 
(a) it is expected to be realized in. or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal 
operating cycle; or 
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 
(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months afer the reporting date. 
All other assets have been classified as Non-Current. 

A liability has been classified as Current when, 
(a) il is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle; or 
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 
(c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
(d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months alter the reporting date. 
All other liabilities have been classified as Non—Current. 

lhe operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating 
cycle. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
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Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf 
of the government, 
The specific recognition crileria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

Toll Revenue - ‘Toll Revenue from users of toll roads held by subsidiary company is recognised 
in respect of toll revenue accrued for respective toll road projects, Revenue [rom electronic tol] 
collection is recognised on accrual basis. 
Interest income - Interest is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all Debt instruments measured either at Amortized Cost 
or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income, interest income is recorded using KIR 
method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is 
established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 
Fair value gains on current investments carried al fair value are included in other income. 
Claims with National Highways Authority of India (‘NHAI*) and other government authorities 
are accounted as and when the money is received from the respective authorities, in cases of 

monetary compensations. 
Other items - Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive the income 
arises. 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is recognised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably, 

PPI; are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Such 
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long- 
term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. 

Recognition: 
‘The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only 
if: 
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity: and 
(b)} the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Group 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 

Gains or losses arising from de - recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the 
difference between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of tho asset and are 
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset ts derecognized. 

‘The Group has estimated following useful lives for its tangible fixed assets 
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| Asset Class Useful Life 
Office Equipments 5 Years a 
Computers 3 Years 
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years     

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) is provided on straight line method. up to 
the cost of the asset (net of residual value), in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under 
Schedule IT to the Companies-Act. 2013. 

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. 
Similarly, depreciation on assets sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates 
on which such assets are-sold‘disposed off. Modification orextension to an existing asset, which 
is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over 
the remaining useful life of that asset. 

The ¢stimated residual value of the PPE has been taken as 5% in line with the provisions of 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Fixed assets amounting up to INR 5,000 are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss in entirety in the first year of purchase, 

The residual yalues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant. and equipment are 
reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate, 

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the 
revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. 

Intangible assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 38 “Intangible Assets”, Intangible assets are recognised when it is 
probable that the future cconomic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group 
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are 
specifically attributable to the development or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and 
capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible-assets. 

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Consolidated Balance Sheet are 
disclosed as “intangible assets under devclopment”. Intangible asscts are derecognised when no 
future coonomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. 

The cost of intangible assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase is their fair 
value as at the datc of amalgamation. Following initial recognition. intangible assets are carricd at 
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

or indefinite. 
een 
yen, Sy   



Rights under Service Concession Arrangements — Toll Collection Rights 
The Group has acquired rights for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of five toll road 
projects for a period of 30 years basis Toll Concession agreements with NHAI, group further 
acquired rights during the current financial year for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer 
of three additional toll road projects fora period of 20: years basis Toll Concession agreements 
with NHAI, and the same have been recognised as Other Intangible Assets in the financial 
statements. 

Extension of concession period by the Authority in compensation for claims made by the Group 
are capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights on acceptance of the claim- Where the Group has 
a contractual right to an extension in the concession period as per ihe concession agreement, the 
same is capitalized when the right to extension in the concession period is established at the 
estimated amount of cligible claims. 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic lift and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future‘economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. ‘lhe amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying 
value of another asset. 

In accordance with Ind AS 38 “Intangible Assets”, Intangible assets should be amortized by a 
method which reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be 
consumed by the entity, 

‘Voll Collection Rights shall be amortized basis ‘a Consumption based model (using Passenger Car 
Unit (PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement. 

Other intangible assets - Software purchased is amortized over a period of three to six years on 
straight line basis from the month in which the addition is made. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining 
periods so.as to allocate the assets’ revised carrying amount over its remaining useful life. 
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2.8 Employee benefits 
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity, compensated absences, long service awards 
and medical benefits, 

i. Short term employee benefits 
Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, expected cost of bonus, 
ex-gratia and performance linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering 
the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in 
which the employee renders the related service. 

ii, Post-Employment Benefits 
Defined contribution plan: A defined contribution plan tsa post-employment plan under 
which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no. legal or constructive obligations to 
pay further amounts. ‘The Group contributes to provident fund and employees deposit linked 
insurance scheme, and have no further obligations beyond making its contributions. The 
Group's contribution to the above: funds are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Ioss. 
Detined benefit plan; The Group has an un-funded benefit plan for post-employment benefits 
in the form of Gratuity. The value of obligation under the plan is: determined by the group based 
on best estimate of the present value of the-estimated future cash flows towards the gratuity 
obligation. Defined bencfit costs comprising current service cost, past Service cost and gains or 
losses on settlements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as 
employee benefits expense. Gains oF losses on the curtailment or-settlement of any defined 
benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. 

ii. Termination benefits 
Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes (wherever 
applicable) are recognised. as expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Liability for the same is recognised at the earlier of when the group can no longer withdraw the 
offer of the termination benefit. 

iy. Other long-term employee bencfits 
The present -yalue of the obligation under Jong term employee benefit plans such as 
compensated absences is determined and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of 
defined benefit plans. 

Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost and gains or losses on 
curtailments and settlements. re-measurements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost implicit in long term employee 
benefit cost is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under finance cost. 

2.9 Leases 
Gi) The determination of whether anarrangement is or contains.a lease is based on the substance 

of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. 

i, i) Property, plant, and equipment acquired under leases with lease term more than 12 months 
z term lease. ‘The lease liability is recognised tor ae feeb lieifion to make the lease 
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payments and a right of use of asset for the underlying property, plant and equipment for the 
lease term. The lease liability is measured at the present value of the Icase payments to be 
made over the lease term. The right of use property, plant and equipment arc initially measured 
al the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives received 
and the initial direct costs such as commissions and an estimate cost of restoration, remoyal 
and dismantling of property. plant and equipment. Lease liabilities are increased to reflect the 
interest cost and are reduced with lease payments. 

i.li) Property. plant, and cquipment having lease term 12 months or less than 12 months are 
recognised on a straight-lme basis, 

(ii) Property, plant and cquipment leased out under operating leases are continued to be 
capitalised by the Group. Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the relevant lease. 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing Cost consist of interest and other ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
period they occur. In case of significant Long term loans, other costs incurred in connection with 
the borrowing of funds are: amortized over the period of respective Loan, Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes party to a 
contract embodying the related financial instruments. A financial instrument is any contract that 
gives rise to'a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity. A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and presented on net basis in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the 

recognised amounts and it is intended to cither settle on net basis or to realise the assct and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not 
recorded al fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or conyention in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.c.. the date that the Group: commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
Trade receivables and trade payables that do not contain a significant financing component are 
initially measured at their transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories; 
- at amortised cost 
- at fair value through profit or loss (PV'TPL) 
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Financial Assets at amortised cost 
A financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. All the Loans and other receivables under financial 
assets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The losses 
arising {rom impairment are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Inyestments in equity instruments of Subsidiaries are recognised at original cost in accordance 
with Ind AS 27. Impairment testing of Investment in subsidiary that are accounted for at cost as 
per Ind AS 27 are within scope of Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets, Any impairment in value of 
investment in-equity investments in Subsidiaries is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCD 
A financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at FYTOCI if both of the following 
criteria are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting 

contractual cash Nows and selling the financial assets. and 
b) Contractual terms of the assct give rise on specified dates to cash flows thai are solely payments 

of principal and interest (SPPI). 

Investment in Debt instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as 
well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair yalue movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses 
& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss. 

Interest earned whilst holding FV'TOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the 
EIR method. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss, Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. ‘The Group 
mcasures its investments which are classified as equity instruments (other than investment in 
shares of Subsidiaries. Joint Ventures and Associates) at fair value through profit and loss account. 

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the-criteria for categorization as-at amortized cost or as 
FYTOCI, is classified as-at FVTPL. In addition, the Group may clect to designate a debt 
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOC] criteria, as at FY TPL. However, 

tion is allowed only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition         
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inconsistency {referred to as “accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt 
instrument as at FVTPL. 

The Group has investment in debt oriented mutual funds which are held for trading, and the same 
are classified as at FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis, 
The classification is made.on initial recognition and is irrevocable. The gain’ loss on sale of 
investments are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Reclassification of Financial Assets 
The Group determines classification of financial assets on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 
financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 
if there is achange in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model 
are expected to be infrequent. The Investment Manager of the Group determines change in the 
business model as-a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's 
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business model occurs 

when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from: the 
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the 
change’ in business model, The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or tosses) or interest. 

‘The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 

  

Original 
Classification 

Revised 

Classification 

Accounting Treatment 

    

Amortized Cost 

“PTYPL 

EVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification 
date. Difference between previous amortised 
cost and fair value is recognised in 
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. 
    

Amortized Cost 

  

Amortized Cost FVOCL 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new gross carrying amount, isl 
Fair value is measured at reclassification 
date. Difference between previous amortised 
cost and fair valuc is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 
No Change in EJR due to reclassification. 

  

FVOCI Amortized Cost 

FVOCI   
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its | 
new gross carrying amount. However 
cumulative gain or loss in other 
comprehensive income is adjusted against 
Fair value. Consequently, the asset is 
measured as if it had always been measured 
at amortised cost. — see 
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new carrying amount, No other adjustment is | 
required. 

        | FITVPL 
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Assets continue to be measured fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously   recognized in.other comprehensive income is



  

   
      

   

  

  

reclassified to Consolidated statement of | 
profit and loss at the reclassification date.         

Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of Group's similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheet) 
when: 

© The rights to receive cash flows from the-asset have expired, or 
e The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards 
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 

of the asset, nor transterred contro! of the asset. the group continues to recognise the transferred 
asset to the extent of the group’s continuing involvement, In that case, the group also recognises 
an associated liability, The transferred assct-and the associated liability are measured on a basis 
that reflects the rights and obligations that the group has retained. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the group could be required to. repay. 

Financial liabilities 

initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables. as appropriate. 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings’ete, 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are 
satisfied; For liabilities designated:as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in 
own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/losscs are not subsequently transferred to 
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain 
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as 
al fair value through profit and loss, 

Loans and borrowings 
This is pee i. most relevent cc ue Group. After initiaLrccognition, interest-bearing loans 
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losses are recognised in Staicment of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fecs or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included’as finance costs in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits received. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified. such an exchange or modification ts treated as the derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting financial instrument 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount-is reported in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle financial asset and liability on a net basis or realise the asset and scttle the 
liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent.on future events and 
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

Fair Value measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each financial statement date. 

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell-an asset-or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 
i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
il) In the absence of'a principal market, inthe most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantagcous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the assct or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair yalue, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair yaluc hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant lo the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
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Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices) 
Level 3 — inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs), 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re- 
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period, 

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non- 
recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations, 

At cach reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities 
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For 
this analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agrecing the 
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents, 

The Group also compares the change in the fair value of cach asset and liability with relevant 
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 
On an annual basis, the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager presents the valuation 
results to the Audit Committee and the Group’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion 
of the major assumptions used in the valuations. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nalure, characteristics and 
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as‘explained above, This note 
summarises accounting policy for fair valuc. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the 
relevant notes. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 

Impairment of Assets 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
All financial assets except for those designated at FV TPL are subject to review for impairment at 
least each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected 
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition ef impairment loss for financial assets 
carried at amortized cost, . 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the eredit risk since initial 
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recognition. [f credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL. is used to provide for 
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. HY, ina 
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on |2-month ECL. 

Lifetime .CL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 
results from default events that are possible within 12 months afler the reporting date. 
ECL. is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance 
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expeets to receive (i.e: all cash shortfalls), 

discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrament. However, in rare cases when 
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is 
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument 

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terins 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/ 
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under 
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. 

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date. whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assct’s recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGV) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, 

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Group’s assets, When the 
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of moncy and the risks specific to the asset. In 
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. Ifno 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses of 
continuing operations are recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss, except for 
previously revalued tangible fixed assets, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. 
In this case, the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amount of any 
previous revaluation. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount 
-of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

An assessment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the group estimates the asset's CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assets 
recoverable amount since the fast impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset docs nol exceed its recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
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recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Consolidated statement 
of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at-a revalucd amount, in which. case the reversal is 
treated as a revaluation increase. 

Foreign currency transactions 
‘The Group's financial statements are presented in INR, which is group's functional currency. 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the 
respective transactions between the functional currency and the foreign currency. 

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled at the Financial Statement 
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on that date. 

Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency transactions and 
on translation of foreign currency assets and liabilitiesare recognized in the: Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at 
which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements. 
are recognized as income.or as expenses in the year in which they arise. 

Non - Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated ina foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rate-at the date of the transaction; and Non - Monetary 
items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, 
are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined, 

‘The gain or loss arising on translation of Non-Monetary items measured at fair value is treated in 
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in Fair value of the item (i.c., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also 
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

Taxes on income 
‘Tax expense comprises of Current and Deferred tax. . 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Current ineome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount éxpected to be recovered 
froni or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are cnacted or substantively enacied, at the reporting 
date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit 
or lass (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in corrclation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or 
directly in cquity. 
Investment Manager periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
sttuations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
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Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date, 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the: 
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date: 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if'a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax'assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments 

Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises [rom past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond 
the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because il is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required-to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also 
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot 
be measured reliably. Contingent Liabilities are reviewed at cach reporting date, The Group does 
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements, however 
discloses its existence in the financial statements in the notes to accounts. 

Contingent Assets 
Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the 
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity, 
Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is virtually certain, in which case 
the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 
Contingent asscts are reviewed at each reporting date. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable, 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has.a present obligation (legal or constructive) as‘a 
result-of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example. 

surance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when 
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the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
Consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre- 
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows: 

¢ estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for: 

e funding related commitment to subsidiary companies; and 
* other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and 

relevant in the opinion of management. 

Other commitments related to services to be rendered / procurements made in the normal course 
of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details. 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating. 
investing and financing activities. 
Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for 
the effects of: . 

e changes during the period in operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non- 
cash nature; 

* non-cash items such as depreciation. provisions, deferred taxcs, unrealised foreign 
currency gains and losses; 

e all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows, 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows exclude items which are not available for gencral use as-at the date-of Consolidated Balance 
Sheet, 

Assets held for sale 

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as “held 
for sale” when all of the following criteria’s are met: (i) decision has been made to sell, (ii) the 
assets atc available for immediate sale in its present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively 
marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet date. 
Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured 
at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale 
are not depreciated or amortised. 

Unit Capital 

Units are classified as equity. Incremental costs attributable to the issue of units are directly 
reduced from cquity as per requirements of Ind AS 32. 
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Distribution to unit holders 

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution 
is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the SEBI InvIT Regulations, a 
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. 
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity. 

Earnings per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to unitholders 
by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. 

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit‘(loss) attributable to unitholders by the 
weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number 
of units that would be issued'on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2023, as below: 

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. ‘The 
effective date for adoption of this amendment js annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. 
The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the 
Group's financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors_- This 
amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind 
AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting 
estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or 
after April 1, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its 
consolidated financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - ‘This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition 
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to differences. ‘The effective date 
for adoption of this amendment is. annual periods beginning on.or after April 1, 2023, The Group 
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statement. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023 

  

  

  

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 
{All amounts in 2? lakh unless othonvise stated) 

Particulars Temporary Structure Computer sai ti ee * Total 

Gross Carrying Amount: 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 . - > - : 

Additions “ 0.50 - : 0.50 

Less: Disposals - - - - 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 0.50 - - O40 

Additions 25.59 44.94 17.42 44,27 132,22 

Less: Disposals - - - . - 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 , 25.59 45.44 17.42 44.27 132.72 

Accumulated Depreciation: - 

Balance. asat April 1, 2021 “ - . - - 

Additions - 0.04 - - 0,04 
Less: Disposals - - . - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 . 0.04 - - 0.04 

Additions 1,49 4,32 0.82 0.88 7.51 

Less} Disposals . - - - = 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.49 4.36 0.82 0.88 VSS 

Net Carrying Amount: 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 0.46 - 0.46 
  

Balance as at March 31, 2023 24.10 41.08 16.60 43,39 125.17 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

4, Goodwill arising on Consolidation 
{All amuunts in? lakh unless:atherwise stated) 

  

  

  

  

ed a As At As At 

Ronee March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022 

; Canyin 
Balunce at the beginning of the year 10,144.46 - 

Additions* “ 10,144.46 

Less) Disposals - - 

Less; Impuirment - . 
Balance at the closing of the year 10,)44.46 10,144.46 

  

The carrying amount relates to goodwill urising on acquisition of Project SP¥ (NHIPPL) by the Trust and bas been 

tested for impairment agains! the respective cash scnerating wnit (CGU}, Phe calculation uses cash flow forecast bused 

on financial modets which cover remaining tyture periods al respective concession periods of toll assets. 

Based on a review of the future discounted cash flows of the intangible assets (Toll Collection Rights) held by the 

subsidiary (NHIPPL), the recoverable amount is higher than the-carrying ‘amount of the assets, and accordingly po 

impairment loss has been recognised in the statement of protit and Joss for the scar ended March 31, 2023. 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

5: Intangible Assets 

tAlLamounts.in @ lakh ontess otherwise stated) 
  

Particulars Software Toll collection rights Total 

            

Carrving Amount: 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 7,35,040,00 735,040.00 

Additions - = = 

Less: Disposals = = 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 = 7,35,040.00 7,35,040.00 
Additions 2.16 284,966.66 2,84,968.82 
Less; Disposals - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.16 10,20,006.66 10,26,008.82 

Accumulated Amortization: 

Balance as at April 1, 2027 = Si 

  

  

  

Additions 1,055.61 1,055.61 

Less: Disposals - 

Balance as at March 31,2022 - 1,055.61 1,055.61 
Additions 0.25 17,552.87 17,553.12 
Less; Disposals = - - 
Balance as at March 31,2023 0.25 18,608.48 18,608.73 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 : 733,984.39 7,33,984.39 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.91 10,01,398.18 10,01,400.09 
Note:- 

1. The project SPV (NHIPPL) has. acquired rights for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of five toll road projects 
for a period of 30 years basis ‘Toll Concession agreements with NHAL, for a consideration of INR 7,350.40 Crore and the 

same have been recogiised as Other Intangible Assets in finaneial statements. The project SPY (NHIPPL) further acquired 
rights during the current financial year for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and ‘Transfer of three additional toll road projecis 
for a period of 20 years basis Toll Concession agreements with NIEAI, Jor a consideration of INR. 2,849.66 Crore, and the 
same have been addition in the Other Intangible Assets in financial statements. 

2.Yoll Collection Rights shall be amortized on the: basis of Consumption based model (using Passenger Car Unit (PCL) 
projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement i.c. 30 years and 20 years basis respective concession agreements 
for those toll roud projects, 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

6 Other Financial Assets; Non Current 

(All amounts in 2 lukh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

As Al As At 

ee March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Investment in Fixed Deposits 
Fixed Deposits with banks* 9469.9 3,170.81 
Security Deposits 1.60 - 
Interest receivable on RET 0.2 
Interest reecivable on fixed deposits 1RS,43 - 

Deposit - Debenture Recovery Expense.Pund for NCD's 15.00 = 
Total 9,672.44 317081 

  

* The Fixed Deposits are kept in Debt Service Reserve Account (SRA) as per borrowing agreements with benlers and as per terms oF 

the debcuture trust deed. to be utilized at the cand of tenure of lang term borrowings from Senior Lenders and to aaimtain DSRA balance 
for Dehenture holders, hence classified as Other Financia) Assets- Non Current irrespective of date of maturity, 

7 Deferred Tax Asxets (Net) 
(All amounts in % lnkh unless otherwise stated) 

Purticulars AsAt As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Deferred Tax Assely arising on account af; 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

~ fxpense:disallowed as per tncome Tax Act 1961. allowable in-future wears Own 0.05 
+ Unabsorbed depreciation 72,562.41 23,326.38 

Total (A) 72,862.41 23,124,411 

Deferred ‘Tax Liabilities arisingon ucoount of: 
~ Difference between hook & tax base related to Intangible assets OF 8I7 09 22,858, 70 

- Difference between book & tax base related to Invesimenss : 316 
- Expense disatlowed eurlier as per [ncome Tax Act. 1961, allowed now + 0.03 
Tow (B) GF RFFIND 22,861.88 

Net Asset (4) - (1) 4,685.32 262.53 

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax 

Asset/ (Liabilitiex} 
(AML anounts in? Inkl uniess otherwise statedy 

Particulars As At As At 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance - Deferred Tax Asset 262.53 - 

Deferred tax incomes (expense). during the period recegaised in profit & loss 4422.79 262.53: 

Deferred tax incomes (expense) during the peniod recogaised in Other Comprehensive Income - - 

Closing Balance- Deferred ‘Tax Asset 4,685.32 262.53 
  

8 Now Current Tan Assets (Net) 

{All amounts in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated! 

Particulars As AL Ax At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Income tax reflindable (net of provision) 12.06 é 

  

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

9 Trade Receivables: Current 

(All amounts in? Inkh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As Al As At 

__March 31. 2023 __ March 31, 2022 _ 
Consiiered good-unsecured 35.87 61).47 
Trade Reecivubles ~ Credit Impaired (unsecured) 59.60 - 

410,47 600.47 

Lessi- Allowances for expected credit loss (59.60) - 
Total 350.87 600,47 

  

‘The receivables'are hypothecated by way of first ranking exclusive charge to secure senior lenders and non convertible debenture bolders 

in Trust. 
‘Trade Reecivables ageing schedule as on March 31. 2023 

Outstanding for following period from duc date of payment, 
& Month ~] 

y war 

  

  

Particulars 
Qe Months 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years) | More than 3 years Total 
  

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables + 

considered good 350.87 - - = si 350.87 

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 

which have signilicunt increase-in 

  

      
credit risk = c i x - 

iii) Undisputed ‘l'rade Receivables + 

credit impaired = 59.60) - - “ 59.60 
  

Trade Receivables apeing schedule as on March 31, 2022 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment. 

Particulars (a6 Months 6 Month -1 

Yeur 

  

  

1-2: Years | 2-3 Years | More-than 3 years Total 
  

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
considered geod 600.47 = x 5 = 6DOA7 

ii) Undisputed ‘Trade Receivables - 
whieh have significant increase in 

  

                    
  

  

  

oredit risk - " - - - - 
iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 4 

credit impaired a = - . : ‘= 
10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(All amounts in 2 fakb unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars As At As At 

Balances with Banks 

In Current Accounts 735.06 1.00469 
In Escrow Accounts 338.04 35.09 

Draft in Hand 8.14 - 

Cash in Hund 7.93 - 
Fixed Deposits (having original maturity of less than ¥ months) 10.000.00 4,350.00 
SBI Overnight mutual fund 10,034.91 992.16 

21,124.08 6.381.94 
  

J) Other Financial Assets; Current 

(All amounts in Z lakh unless othenvise stated) 

  

  

Particulars As At As At 

— March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Sccurity deposits 2.92 - 

Interest receivable on Fixed [deposits 3,73 5.28 
Others receivables 200.71 0.10 
Total 297.36 §.38 

  

* These receivables to be recovered from new SPV (NHIT Pastern Projects Private Limited) for expenses incurred on Its behalf. 
12 Other Current Assets 

{All amounts-in 2 lakh unless othenvise stated) 

  

Particulars As At As At 
March 31 3 

Prepaid expenses 592.15 547.29 

CST Input waits ae 642.12 - 
p= ~ 105.49 : 

5.59 
  

1,343.35 347.29   



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ondec March 31, 2023 
13 Unit Capital 

(All anions ave in? lakh enless otherwise sated) 
  

  

  

    

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 
No of Enits Antount No of Units Amount 

Unit Capita 
Opening balance 5952,00,00m $99,442 82 - , 
Add: Units isseed during, the year 13,12,05.200 1 43.013.67 59.32 00,000 6,01.152.00 
Less: Issue expenses {refer note below) see (BS217) azarae (1,769.18) 
Balance 72.64,05,200 FAL G04,32 59,5200, 0100 5,99,442,82           

*33,12,05,260 unit issued af Re 109 per anit and 39 /$2.00,008) unit issued at Rs 102 per unit, 

The (rust offered an issue of 13,12,09,200 units of National Highways Infia; Trust ° NLT") during the current financial yeur and such units, 

the “units, for cush at @ price of 10900 per unit (ihe “issue price), ageregauing to.’ Rs 149,003.67 lucy through Mnstitovonal and 

preferential placement in: aecurdance withthe Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure Investment Trost) Regulations, 2014 
including the rules, civculucs and guidelines issued thereunder, ‘The issue opened on September Jt, 2022 and closed on October 63, 2022, ‘The 
Board of Directurs of Nanonal Highways Infty In¢estment Managers Private Limited considered and approved alloiment of 13.12.05,.200 
onilste the eliuible unitholders of Trist on Oewber 12, 2022. 

Issue expenses of Rs $52.17 lakhs (previous year Rs. },709.18} incurred im ceonertion with issue of units have heen reduced front the Une 
holders capital in accondunce with Ind AS 32 Financial Insirumems: Presentame 

Rights! preferences and restrictions attached to Unit Cupital 

Subject 40 the provisions of the laviT Regulatuns.the indenture of Minds, and applicable rules, regulations and guidelines che rights of the 
unit holders inchide: 

ai the beneficiul interest pf cach unitholdern shall be equal and limited to the prepertiun of the number of thesinits held by that anithalderto 
the tolal number ot units. 

B) Right 10 feveive incume or distributions with respect to 1A¢ Units held, 
c} Right toattend the annual general meeting and other mectings of pnit holders ofthe Trust 

dj Right co vole upor. any matters:resodutions proposed in relttion to.the-lrvst. 

e} Right lo receive periodic infomation Having a bearing on the operation ov pet formance of the Trust In accordance with the Invi f 
A) Right to epaly to the Trust to take upecestain issucs at mootings for unit hokders approvel, 

2) Right to receive aelitions! information. Fane, in acgordance with InviT documents filed with Placement Memorandum 
h) The nen-spomor unit holders (Eligible Persons") of the Trast are emitted to representation an the Board of Directurs of the favesimem 
Manager through appoinurent of up to pve 12) directors (Non-Sponso: Directors"), provided that so Eligible Person sisall have the ight 10 

nominate more than ane Director a} a lime for appointment oa thy Board of Directors, 

In uccordance with the Invi? Regulations. nv-unit holders shall enjoy superior voungoer any other rights over any other univ holders; and there 

“Shall not be muhiple classes of unis. “Phere shall be only one denuminaten of units. Not withstanding the above, suborSinate units aay be 
issued only to Hie Sponsor and its Associates, where such subordinate units shall carry only inferior voting or any other cighis compare 0 the 
other units, 

Under the provisions of the Invi l Regulations, not less than ninesy percent of the net distribuluble cash flows of the Trust is required to be 
Jistidured to the unithokders, and in accoulance with such statutory obligation the ‘rust bas formulated # distribution pokey to deeture and 
disinbute the distributable cash Nows to as uncdholders atleast onee every financial your as approved by the Board of Ditcctors of the 
Investment Manager. The disinburiens made by Trost to its unitholders ure based on the Net Disiibetable Cush Flows (NDCFI of the Trust 
under the InvIT Regulations ond represent repaemcat of proportionate capital and share of profil. The distubution in propenion to the number 
of units eld by the unithulders: The Trust dockares and pays distriburions in INR 

Limitation to the Liability of the unit holders 
The tiability of cach unit holders towards the payyent of any amount (that may arse in relation to the Trust including-any taxes, duties, fines, 

levies, liahilities, custs or expenses! shall he limited only to the extent of the capaal contsibution of such unit holders and aflersuch capital 
contribution shull have born paid in fll'by the unit hotders, the unit holders:shall not be obligated 10 make any further payments 
The unit holders shail not have any personal habitity ar obligation with respect ta the Trust 

Details.of Unithulders Holding More: Than 5% Units In ‘The Trust 

  

te 3 a 

As. per recordsof the Trust, including its register of unitholders and other declaration received from unitholders regarding beneficial untenest, 
(he above unitholding represent both legal aad beneficial ownership of units, 

The Trust has not alluted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus wnirs nor: has bought back uny clans af unis Trav the Gate.ot ‘incorporation 

ull the balance sheet date; Further the Trust has not-issued any units for consiteration otker than cash dung tae veur: 

Reconciliation of number of units outstanding is set out below: 
  

    

    

        

Particulars As at March 31, 2023: As at March 31, 20 I 
No of Units Amount Noof Units Amount 

si )* tamow & 
Number of Unsts'at the Seginniag of the year 59, 32.00 200 6.Ob S200 = - 

Lints issued dunng the veur 13,12,05,2iM; 1,43.013.67 59.5210. Chm $01,152.00 

Namber.of Units at the end of the vear T264.05.200 744.108.67 59,5200 00 601,152.00       
* Amouat} telated ta issie expenses are nor deducted in the seconcdianon of oombcr of unit cazital ontetanding, 

   of coenat Y 
Can cares 4 
QRTERED IN US eam ke bs lnweomne =    



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Finanelal Statements forthe year ended March 31, 2023 

14 Other equity All amounts in @ fakh unkess otherwise stated) 

Reserves and Surplus As At As At 
31 hl 

at the vear 6, 7 

‘otal iensive income for the ST 6,836.33 
Less: 

unit holders* 

Interest 41 

¢ 744.20) 

  

of the 

“The distribution relates to the distributions during the financial year ulong with the distribution related to the fast 
quarter of FY 2021-22 and does nai include the distribution relaling to the period January 01, 2023 10 March 31, 
20123 which will be paid after March 31, 2023, Ihe distributions by the rust to its unit holders are based an the Net 

Distributable Cash lows of the Trust under the SEBI InvIT Regulations, 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

14 Other equity All amounts in = lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Reserves and Surplus As At ASAT 
31 31 

Balance at the the 6,768.43 

‘Total income for the 25,689.57 

Less: 

te unit holders” 

(nterest 

] 

  

vat the of the 

“The distribution refates to the distgbutions during the financial year along with the distribution related to the last 
quarter of F¥ 2021-22 und does not inchxle the distribution relating to the period January 01, 2023 10 March 31, 

2023 which will be paid afer March 31. 2023, Ihe distributions by the ‘Unist 0 ifs unit holders are based an the Net 
Distributable Cash (lows ofthe Trust under the SUBEInyIT Regulations. 

  

     

SH 
FRN 002744.C 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

15 Borrowings: Non Current 

(All amounts in? lakhoiniess otherwise stated) 

Particulars As Al As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Secured 
Non-Conyertible Debenture 1,50,000,00 ' 
Less: Unamortized Borrowing Cost AAEL 86 - 
Total (A) 148,588.20 

Note:- Other terms and conditions of NCD 

1} Enteresc rate 7.90% pa payable semi anitually. 

it) Tens of repsymem Redemption of respective SURPP: shall he made in equal instalments 

NSTRPP A - starting from cigth anniversary of deemed date of allotment fill thineenth 

anniversury, 
H) STRPP-B- starting trom thintsenth anniversary of deemed date of allotment till cizbteenth 

“anniversary: ; 
ii) STRPP-C- starting fom eighteenth anniversary of deemed date of allounent UH wwentvtifh 
ini versary, 

‘Term Loan: 

From Banks 145,987.43 146,998.41 
148,987.43 146,998.41 

Less: Current 2.008). 00 986.86 
Less: Unamorlised Borrowing Cost ALT3D AWOL 
Total (B) 1 43,570.13 145,556.94 

Grand Total C =(44+8) 2,92,158,33 1,45,556,94 

Note:- Other terms and conditions of Term Louns 

i) Interest rate Marginal Cost of lund based lending-rate {MCLR} plus spread applicableon cach reset date, 

ii) Terms of repayinent Repayable in unsersctered quarterly instalments with last repayment date upto March 31, 2041, 

Seeurity for Term Tvans:; 
‘The loan is sceured by, 

~ first pari passu charge on all immovable assets (if any), Movable asscts and receivables of the Trust including bot aot limited ts, 
(i) the interest and principal repayments on the loans adyanced by the Trust to Praject SPY 
Gi) dividends tr be paid be Projeer SP¥ to the Trust 
- first paci passu Seeurky Interest on Trust Escrow accoum and all sub-accaunts thereunder, including DSRA: 
- pledge of 100% equity shares of Project SPV (NUIPPL} in dematenalized fort held by the Trost 
~ assignment of loans advanced by the Trust to Project SPV (NUIPPL) and secuntics created by the Trust including the assignment of 
rights of subnission, termination and invocation of provision of Escrow agcocmentin case of default, 

~ negative lica on immovable assets (including current assets and cash Muwsi of the Project SPY (NHIPPI.) subject to Sale of hsulete 
items or cars“arbulanses old tol] equipment ote., under normal business practice. subject 10 maximum cumulative value of INR 5 Crore in 

uy Jinancial year. 

‘The senior lenders of the-Trust have-also been provided with acorpornte guarantee from Project SPV (NHIPPLY to guarantee upto. the 
secured obligations of the ‘Trust. The funds have been raised at rust level trom unithafders and domestic lenders, and the same fave been 

lent to Project SPV ({NEIPPL) for payment of congession fee-hy NHIPPL to NEAL The cashflows yiz.. toll collections are lying in 
NHIPPL, Accordingly. corporate puarantee amounting upto the secured obligations of the Trust via Corporate Guarantee Deed dated 
14.03.2022, valid across the tenure of the loan of the Trust L¢. up to 31 03.2041, has been proviiled by the Project SPV { NHIPPL.) to the 

senior lenders of the ‘Trust eat ara 
- 7 

— 

    
FRN 002744 C 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consoliduted Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Nature of Security for Non Convertible debentures: 

‘The debenture holders are secured by : 
a) # first ranking pari passu Security. Interest over the immovable assets (if uny) both present and future. There are no immovable 

properties al the present time, In the event, the group wequires: any immovable priperly in future, the group shall Mortgage said property 
within 186 (one hundred righty] days from the date of acquisition af such immovable assets. The Debentare Trustec shall be authorised to 

cto nll ters, deods, and enter into nevessary clocuments, agreement. aniendments and/or modifications, as may he required to-give effect the 
sume, including ounrying out the due’ diligence ay niay he reqained by Debentime Trustee; 

b) a fest ranking pari passa Security Interest over the Hypothecated Assets (including Receivuhles), both present and Hiturey and 

¢) Negative Lien Cadenakiay: 

dl) corpurats grarantce executed by the Priject SPY m favour of the Debetlure Trnsige for guasantecing the: due repayment of the secured 

obligations @ accordance with the terms in the Debenture Trust Deed. 

‘The non convertible debenture holders of the Trust acting through debenture trustee have also been provided with -a.comoraie guanimtce 

from Project SPV (NHIPPL) to guaranice the repayment of amount raised fram non convertible debenture halders hy the ‘Trast, Che funds 
have been raised at Trest level front debentureholders, have been lentto Project SPV CNIILPPI,) for payment of concession Tee by NHIPPI 
to NHAJ, Accordingly, comporate. guarantee amounting. upto the-secured obligations via Corporate Guaranles Deed dated 21,10.2022 is 

valid! ill all outstanding principal aud accrured interest payable by the Trust are satisfied to the hon convertible debenture halders of the 
“Pruat, 

There have heen no breaches in financial covenants with respect to the borrowings fam Senior lenders, 

16 Provisions: Now Current 

(All amounts in = kikh unless otherwise stated | 
  

  

  

Particulars ASAL As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision for employees benefits 
Gratuity (unfunded) 441 0.05 

Lcave Encashment fonfunded) 696 0.03 

Provision for major maintenance* 0.307,44 403.29 

Total 6,318.81 403,37 
  

Provision for Major Maintemmce*: 
‘The’ group is required to-operule and: muinsain. the projeet tollhyay during lhe entire concession period anu hund-aver the: project b back ta NHAL as per 

the maintenance srindards prescribed in conesssion agieements, Lor this purpose, 2 regular mainteninge dong with periodic: maintenance is rexytred 

to he performed. Norhrally: periodic. ruintenaneé ineludes resurface of pavements, repairs of siruvlures aod uther equipment and mainienanee of 

service rots As per ind oatey practice: the periodic maimendice is expected ta cecur once. in lve le seven veurs. “The provisions for MMR has been 

made dased on the first cycle of of overlay expected to occur in five fo-seven years ahd not tased un the total MMR cost over entire concession porto 

a8 per industry practsce. The discounting rte used fur arriving at the present velee for MMR provistons ts gevemiment bend rate of 30 years for 

projects acquired in first ahese and 20 yeurs fur prujocts acquired in-second phase. | he maimonance cost / buminays overkrye muy vary based on the 

actual usage dunng maintenance period. Accordingly, on the grounds of matching cost concem and based on technical estimaics, a provision for 

Major mainenance expense is reviewed and is provided for in the financial statements in cach reponing pened. Considering that the expense iv be 

incurred js depsided on sunous furtors including the usage, yweur and scar of the toll road, Wituminuys uverlay, ete . it is not passihle to estimate the 

exact, Citing und the quanti of the cashflow 

(All amounts in lakh untexs otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars Ag At As At 
March 41, 2023" March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 403.29 . 

Add: Accretion during the year = 408.2 

Provision foc Major Maintettance Obligation 5,879.20 : 
Unwinding finance cost on major maitlenaice provision 24.55 - 

Loss: Utilized during the year = : 
Closing Balance 6,307.44 403.24 
  

17 Borrowings: Current 
{All amounts in 2 Takh winless utherwdse stated) 

  

Particulars As At As At 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

2,000.00 980.80: 
2.000,00 98086 

  



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

18 Trade Puysbles: Current 

LAM amounts m t fakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

Particolars AsAt As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Fotat outstanding, dues of micro.and small enterprises 137.23 * 

lotal outstanding, dues-of creditiirs ather than micro and anvall enterprises, re 1244.79 
(Outstanding for less than 12 months front the duv elite of payment) S71 18 

‘otal 4,008.41 1,244.79 

Note:- 
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006, 

_ The group has certam dues to supplicrs registered unter Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devetopment Act. 2006 (*MSMED Act’) 

the disclosures purspant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 
  

  

As At As At 
March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022 

@) The principal amount remamimneunpatd to any supplier at the end of the vear 

137.23 - 

h} Tricrest acerued and due thereon to suppliers ander) MSMED Act onthe above amount 

remaining unpaid to.any-supplrerat the end of year, : s 

¢}'The amount of interest paid by the buyer in termsaf section | 6 of the MSMED Act, 2006, 
along with ihe amount of the pavment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 

the yer = ‘ 

@) The amount of interest due and payable tor the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but bevond the appointed day during the ycars but without adding the interest 
specified under te MSMED Act, 206 = =~ 

¢) The amount of interest uccrued and remaining unpuid al the endof cach accounting year 

f The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the interest dues ahove areactually paid to the small enterprises, for the 

purpose of disallowasce of a deshuetible: expenditure wider section 23 of the MSMED Act 

2006 = 

Disclosure of payable to yerulurs as defined undey the “Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 206" is based on the infornution available with the exoup repurding the 
status of rogistsation of'such vendors under the said Act, as per the infimation received from 
thent on requests made by the group. 

Trade Payable ageing schedule ax ut March 31, 2023 

(All amounts in 2 lakh untess otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

            

  

  

  

  

  

                

Outstanding for follow Wing pe from due date of 
Particulars Not due* = tit ee than 3 = = —— 5 

Lessthan | Year | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ¥ otal 
eet 

i) MSME - 137.24 - - - 137,24 

ii} Chhers 2468.10 1403.08 - - - VRTLAB 

ili) Disputed dues - SME : : E 5 = 5 
iv) Disputed dues - Others: - - « + m 

* Trade Payables inchule unbilled jaan amounting to Rs 2448.10 Lakh (Previous year: Rs:920.00Lakh} 

‘Trade Payable ageing schedule as at March 31,2022 

Outstanding fur following period from duc date uf payment. 

a Retiee’ | acini ves| ivan | 43¥eqy | “orto? lotal 
Years _ 

it MSME - - - - - > 

ii} Others 920.01) 324.79 - - - 1,244.79 

11) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - . 

iv) Disputed dues - Oubers - - - - - = 
  

* Trade Payables include anhilled payables amounting (o Rs 920.1) Lakh {Previous-year! Ry.Nal Lakhi 

** The tot 
not beet souliay 

  

ce oF MME: venilars include: Rs 24 72 ale ee which are due tor more than 48 days and payments have 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

19 Other Financial Liabilities: Current 

(All amounts in % lakh unicss otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As Al As At 
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022. 

Interest nceryed but not due on NCD 5,129:39 - 
Double toll Tee payable to NHAT 1S1 LF Y78S 
Sceurity Deposit 419 - 
Total 5,284.95 97.85 

20 Other Current Liabilities 
(All amuunts m ¢ lakh waless otherwise stated) 

Particalars AsAt As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Statutory dues payeble 226.85 24U,75 
Uneamed Revenac 2.12 - 

- Adwanee received ao) . 
- Employees payable 6.h4 - 

Total 240,61 240,75 

21 Provisions; Current 

  

{All amounts uv? lakbunless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note no 39) 

Leave Encashment (untonded) ‘G.SS 0.03 
Gratuity (untaaded) ol 
Total 0,56 0.03 

22 Curvent Vax Liabilities (Net) 

  

(ML amounts in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated). 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars: As At As At 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision for Income Tax BYE IGL.7F 

Total 8.98 161.77 

c ‘Fax 

Particulars As At Aw At 

March 3t, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 161,77 - 
Add: Income Tax Payable for the year AT3.89 436.36 
Less: Taxes Paid 626.68 274,59 

Closing Balance, 3,98 161.77 

  

  

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2623 

23 Revenue from operations 

(Aft amounts 19:2 BG antes othieraize stated) 

Particulars As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Sule of Services 

  

Revenue from oll Collection 68,708.93 13.941,94 
Otber Operative Revenue 

Interest on delay in Toll Remitiunee $27 18.61 

Total 68,717.20 13,960,55 
  

24 Interest income 

{AU anv ounts io 2 Xb unless cthervase stated) 
  

  

  

Particulars As Al As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
On fixed deposits with banks 393.43 S86 

otal S7SAT 5.86 
  

25 Profit on sale of investments 

(Al mmounes i) 2 Lakh wiless pthenwise stated) 

Particulars As At As-At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds OFLAF 682.62 

Nel Gain on fair valuation of investments designated at FY TPL - 7.38 
Total GOF11T 690.00 

  

26 Other Inconie 

(AlLanwunts in @lakivunless otherwise stared) 
  

  

  

Purticulars: As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Other non operating income 
Other Income. 326-11 318.67 

Total 326.11 318.67 
  

27 Operating Expenses 

{AD amounts in @ fakh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars As At ASA 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

  

Operation and Maintenance Expenses 3,148.85 446,48 
Major Maintenance Obligation §.879 20 AN3.29 

Totul 9,025.05 $49.77 
  

2% Employee Benefit Expenses 

{All nmounts int lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particalars ASAL As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

Sularies and wages 222.98 1,75 
Contribution to provident and other finds (Refer Note 39 4) 15,27 13 
Grutnity Expenses (Refer Note 394) 442 U.05 
Leave Encashment Lxpense (Refer Note 398) 75) 4.06 
Staff Welfare Expenses. 46.05 (L13 

Director's sitting fees: lS14 
  

Total 311.33 2.12 

     
pet Ate cae 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes: to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 

29 Finance Cost 

{All amounts in 7 Jakb untess otherwise stated! 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As At AsAt 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Interest on Long termi borrowings 11,244.91 3,149.19 
Interest on Debentures $,129,59 Fs 

Finance Charges 221,87 $.24 
Linwinding finance cost 4m major maintenance provision 24,95 - 

Total 16,621.32 SS4.43 

30 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 
(AIL amounts int lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars As At As Al 

March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022 

Depreciation.on Property: Plant and Equipment TA 1.04 

Amortization on Intangible Assels 17,553,12 1,055.61 

Total 17,560.63 1,055.65 

31 Other Expenses 

{All amoums in Ulakh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars As At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Aulvertisement expenses 35.75 847 

Tegal und Professional: fees. 1,842.22 202.56 

Travelling and conveyance 19:80 : 
Telephone and internet charges 6.58 - 
Power and fuel $8.78 - 
Environment, health and safety expenses 13.06 - 
Foe, subseription & taxes $592 291.63 
Bank charges 1.83 0.04 
Data Managoment Expenses 3.00 1.3) 

Provision for expected credit loss 59.60 - 

Vehicle hire charges 63,58 - 

Repair and maintenance expenses 471 - 
Miscellancous expenses 30.03 0.87 
Bad Debts Written Off 9.90 
Total 1901.95 504,87 

32 Audit Fees - 

Statutory audit fees 453 4.57 

Limited review fees 226 - 

‘Tax audit fees oOo 6.30 

Total 7.73 4.36 

Certification and other charpes 0.93 0.52 
‘Total 0,93 0,82 

  

Further an amount of Rs 6 Jakh paid 4 auditor us certification charpes has been booked as part of one time expenses 
in the Unit Capital, (Refer note no 13) 

  

  

  

  

33 Tax Expense ‘AlLanimints i € lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars As At As MM 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current Tax 473.89 436.36 

Provision fir Taxation-Earlies years 0.01 - 
473.90 436.36 

Deferred (ax expenseteredit) (4.422:79) (262.32) 

(3,948.89) 174.04 

  

  

 



NATIONAL HIGIIWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes do Consolidated Financial Statements forthe yoar ended March 31, 2023 

Effective tux Reconciliation: 

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable ta yprofit¥ loss before tay al the latest statutory enacted tax rate in 

india to Income tax expense: reported is as follaws: 

(AI amounts ity t fakh unless atherwise stated) 

  

PARTICULARS As At AS AL 

Mareb 34,2023 March 31, 2022 

Accounting Protit before Income Taxes 21.740.68 FOLS:74 
Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate for Companies (25 17%) (14.086.70) (2,925.39) 

Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate for Busingss Trusts - 33,215.05 7963.95 
Maximum Marginal Rate (42:744%) 

Increase! (reduction) in taxes on account of: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Impact of deferred tax on reversible: allowances disallowance: of: 9,663.91 2,662.78 
husitess expense an! income, as per Indian Income Tax Act: 1961 
Impact of exemption ws 1G(25FC) of the Indian Income ‘Tax -Act, (32.741 1S) (7,542.34) 

1961 available to the Trust 

Provision for interest on delayed deposit of income lax - 1425 

Income tax expense reported im the siatemeat of profit and loss {3,948.89} 174.04 

34 Earning per Unit ‘AL amounts in = takh unless otherwise stated} 

Particulars ASAT Ag oXt 

March 31, 2023- March 31, 2022 

Basicand diluted BPC 
Net Profit’ loss oyailable for unitholders (in @ lakh } 28,689.57 6836.33 
Weiphied average number of units for EPC computation 65,66,68,737 53 59.52.0000 

EPL- Basic and diluted 3.91 Las 

35 Contingent Liabilities TAIL amannis in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars AS At As At 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Contingent Liabilities: - a 
Corporate Ciunrantee issued by the Project SPY (NIIP) to the 2.00 O000 200,000.00 
tenders of NENT 
Corporate Guarimtee issued by the Project SPV (NHIPPL)} to L SOGOU 
debenture trustee Jor debenture holders of NUIT 
Total 3,56,000.00 2,00,000.00 

  

The SPY (NHIPPL) has issued a:Corporate Guarantee amounting to: INR 2,000 Crore an-14,03;2022 to faveur of 

Security Trustee for the Jenders.af NET ny. partof debt covenants af the loun received from NIET, gar sevure the corm 
loan-of INR: 2,000 Crore:availed by NUIT. from extornat fenders: The Corporate: Guarantee is valid across: the tenure 
of the loan till March 31, 2041 tel the external loans to.the [cust are-satistied 

‘The SPV(NHIPPL) has issued‘a Corporate Guarantee amounting to INR },400 Crore on Gctober 21, 2022 in favour 

of debenture trustee for the -benetit. of debenture hokters of NEUT , to seeure: the Nom Convertible debenture 

borrowings of INR 1,500 Crore-availed by NIT from debenture holders. The Corporate Guarantee is valid aerdss the 

tenure of the loan till all outstanding principal and accrued mtcrest thereon by the Trust are satisfied. 

In previous year, the SPY (NHIPPL) bad provided # corporate guarantee for un amount not exceeding INR 2000 

crote, to Security Trustee for the Jenders of NUIT in respect of the long-term harrowing obtained by the Molding 
entity. During the year, the Project SPY (NHIPPL) bad carried out.a fair valuation of said:corporate guarantee Irom 

an independent external valuer Basis such valuation report, Jair valuc of corporate guarantee és estimated to Nil. 

During the your, the SP¥ (NITPPL) have provided’a corporate guarantee for an amount not excecding INR T3500. 
crores, Io Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of the lenders to National Highways Infra Trust ('NHIT, the Holding 

entily) in respect of non-convertible debentures obtamed by the Holding entity. The Project SPV {NHIPPL} have 
carried pul a fair valuation of said corporate gunirantec from an independent cxternal valeer: Basis such valuation 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

36 Diselosure’as per Ind AS 115, "Revenue from contracts with customers” 
(All amounts i lakh unless otherwise stuted) 

Disaggregation of revenue 
Revenue revoznised mainly comprises of revenve from toll collections, claims with NHAL. contract revenue ete. Set cut below is the 
disagercgation of the Trust's revenue from contracts with customers: 

  

  

          

Description As At ASAt 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

Operating revenue 
(a) Foul incaime fram Expressway 68, 708,93 13.941.94 

(b} Interest.on delay in Voll Remittance 8.27 18,6) 

‘Total revenue 68,717.20 13,960.55 | 
  

‘The table below presents ilisagyrevated revenues from/contracts with custumers based on nature, amount and timing for the yee ended 
34 March 2023 sind'3 | March 2022: 
  

  

          

a ‘Types of Products by ; . ne ASAT As At 

Ske: Nature Types of Sewsices: igang March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 
i Tall Income Over the period of time 68,717.20 13,960.55   
  

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers 

The following table provides information about receivables, contnct assets and contract flabilities (ram contract with custonters: 

  

  

  

  

            

5; As At March 31, 2023 As At March 31,2022 
Deseription ‘ JAS AC Varen Sty Zee 

Current Current 

Contract assets 
Trade reecivables: ; 

Receivables under service concession ntrangements, ASST 600.47 

Total 350.87 00.47 

Contract liabilities 
Trade Payables 4,008.41 1,244.79 

Other Payables §.284.95 97.85 
Total 9,293.36 1.342.64 

Performance obligation 
Income from tall collection 
The performance obligation in service of tall callection is recorded as per rates notified by NHAT and approved by management and 
payment is:generally due-at the lime wf providing service. 

Contract revenue 
The performance obligation under service vonoession agreements (‘SCA’) is due on completion of work as per terms of SCA. 

Disclosure under Appendix-C & Dito Ind AS 115 +" Service Concession Arrangements" 

All the helow service concession amingement have been account under intangible asset model 
  

  

  

      

Name of Concessionaire Start of Concession period | End of Concession period | Period of Concession 
umler concession agreement under concession since the appointed date 

(Appointed Date) agreement till Mareh 31, 2023 
{in days) 

National Highways Infra Projects Private 16.12.2021 ( Five Projects} 15.12.2051 471 
Limited 

Nutional Highways Infra Projects Private | 29.10.2022 (Three Projects) 28.10.2042 134 
Limited       

‘The abave TOT projects shall have following rights / obligations in accordance with the Concession Agreement entered insta with the 
respective Government Authorities 

us¢'the Specified Assets 

      

          

vide or rights to except provision of services 

    
FRN 002744 © X34 
   



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2623 

37 DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO IND AS 103 “BUSINESS COMBINATIONS” 

{All amounts in’? lakh unless otherwise stated) 

a) Acquisition of subsidiaries 

i) Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agrecinemt dated September 30. 2021. the Trust acquired the entire equity share capital of Uke 

the Project SPV (NHIPPI.) on December 14, 202) for an equity consideration of Rs, 1,39.553.52 Lakhs, Accordingly, the 

financial statements of the-subsidiary NIIPPL) for the period from December 14, 2021 to March 31.2022 have been 

considered In the consolidated Hindncial statements oF the ‘Trust, Funding for the said acquisition was raised through 

preferential issue of units of the Trust. ‘he Group has varied out a fair valuation of the net assets of the Project SPV at the 

time ofacquisition and avcordingly the goodwill has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements. 

ii} Details of the purchase consideration: 

Particulars 

Cash Consideration 1 00 

Unit issued 14h183,52 

Total purchase consideration 1 

  

‘The fair value of Rs 139,533.52 lakhs paid for nequisition af lhe above mentioned project SP¥s. includes consideration in 

cash amounting to RS. 1,294 Crore und consideration in form of issuance of 10.05 Lakh units of Trust at the rate of Rs, 10] 

per unit, Issue costs oF Rs 1,32 Lakh directly attributable to the issuc of the units have been added to the purchase 

consideration, 

ii) Assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the date of acquisition are as follows: 

  

  

Particulars Amount 

Non - Current Assets; 
Intungible ussels 7,35.040,00 
Deferred Tax Assets (net) (21 

Current Assets: 

Financial Assets 

  

  

  

  

Cash and Cush Equivalents 10.00 

Total Assets 735,050.20 

Current Liabilities: 

Financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 7.35.041.12 

Other current liabilities 0.02 
Total Liabilities 7,35,041,54 

Net assets acquired 9,06         

iii) Cateulation of Goodwill ‘(Capital Reserve) 

  

  

  

  

      

Particulars Amount 

Purchase Consideration 1.39.553.52 

Less: Fair Value of Net Assets acquired 9.0 

Less: Acquisition of fresh issuc of shares of NUUPPL, by the Trust 1.29.400.00 

Goodwill 10,144.46     
iv) Goodwill an acquisilon has been accounted for under Non Current Assets in the Balance Sheet. 

v) Entity wise Revenue and Profit-after tax from the date of acquisition till March 31,2022: 

  

  

  

        

  

  

  

Particulars Amount 

Revenue 13.960,55 

Profit after Tax 6,836.33 

vi) Entity wise Revenue and Profit after tax for the financial year 2020-21 

cohWar 

AN Particulars Amount 
Revenne Wa "en = 

Pegi afievbeth | a 2 (67.90)             
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIRAMD/DF/ 27/2016 

38. Statement of Related Parties 

A. List of Related Parties as per requirement of IND AS 24~—*Related Party Diselosores™ 

  

  
Enterprises where Control / significant influence exists 

  
Nationwl Highways Infra Projects Private Limited 

(Subsidiary Company) 
  

B. List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2(1){zx) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations 

orties to the T 

  

National Highways Infra Investment Manapers Private Limited (NHIIMPL) - Investment Manages (1M) of the Trust 
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (ITSL) - Prustee of the Trust 

National Highways Authority of India (NITA1)- Sponsor 
National Highways Invt'l’ Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMP1,} Project Manager 

rs of the P Trust's) ¥ 

Government of India (acting through Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MORTI1}) - Promoter of NUIIMPL 
IDBT Bank Limited (DBL Bank) - Promoter of [SL 

Government of India ((ucting through Ministry af Road, Transport & Highways. (MORTH)) = Promoterof NHAL 
National Highways Authority of India (NHAL)» Yomotero! NHIFMPL 

Directors of the parties to the Trust specifi ves 

Directors of NEILIMPI, 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goval 

Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy 
Mr. Balasubramanyvam Sriram (Ceased to-be Director wet 31,03;2023) 

Mr, Mahavir Prasad Shurma 
Mr, Pradeep Singh Kharola 
Mr. Amit Kumar Ghosh 

Mrs. Kavita Saha (Ceased to be Director wie.f. 29.11.2022. however reappuinted on 06-01.2023 ) 

Mr. Bruce Ross Crane (Ceased to be Director wie.f, 29.11.2022- however reappointed on 06.01.2023 ) 
Mr. NVROVVOMLK. Rajende Kumar 

Mr, Vivek Rae (Ceused to be Director wef 12,07,2022) 
Mr, Sumit Bose (Appointed weet £1,01,.2023) 

Directors of FTSE. 

Mr, J: Samuel Joseph 

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jain 
Ms. Jawashrec Ranade 

Ms. Madhuri Jayant Kulkarni {Ceased (o be Director wie.£16; 12,2022) 
Ms: Padma “Vinod Betai (Ceased to be Directar wef, 3112;2022) 
Mr, Pruleep Kumar Mathotra (Appointed wie, 14.12.22) 

Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal (Appointed wie. 17.01.2023) 

Directors of NHIPMPL 

Mr. Ashish Asaui (Ceased to be. Directur woc.f, 28.10.2022} 

Mr, Akhil. Khare (Appointed we.f. 28.10.2022} 
Mr. Muralidhinra Rao Bugatha (Ceased ta be Director w: et 17, Ol 2023)     
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Cireular No. CIR/IMD/DE/127/2016 

(. ‘Transactions with Related Parties during the year 

{AT amounts in 2 lakh unless othenvise staied) 
  

  

    

  

  

  

      

    
  

  
  

  

Parti As At As At 

CCERNaS March 31,2023. | March 31, 2022 

Transaction during the yeur’ 

Investment Manager Pees Ld9b07 LOSLTI 
Advance Investment Manager Fees 86,06 - 
Reimbursement of Expenses to NEUIMPH. 58.79 214.80 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAL) 

Transaction during the year 

Reimbursement of Pre-Issay expenses of NIITT by NHAL - (378.02 

Purchase of equity. shares of Project SP¥ (NTUPPL) by the rust trom NHAI - M1 $3,52 
Issue of units of rust to NITAT 21,366.83 96,556.00 
Interest and olber income distribution 5,589.34 - 

O&M Expenses 1,152.32 - 
Payment lor acquiring intangible assets (Toll) 2.84,966.66 7.35.040.00 

Double toll fees OF9.17 . 
Independent enginoers foes 345.38 - 

‘Transaction during the year 

Project Manager focs 991.20 291.43 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (7TSL) 
‘Transaction during the year Se 

‘Trusteeship Fee 12,73 12.15 

Other foes 3,34 . 

D. Closing Balance with Reluted Parties 

. As At As At 
Particulars March 31,2023. | March 31,2022 

National Highways Authority of India {NHAJ) 

Rulance outstanding at the end of the year: 

Issue of units of Hust to NIAT 117,922.83 96.556.00 
O & M Expenses payable 880.35 - 
Double tall foes payable 148,21 - 
Independent Engincers Fees payable 276.03 - 

Balance outstanding at the end of the year 

IM Fees Payable 1,89 . 
GST Amount payable OAR 

onal Efi 

Balance outstanding at the end of the vear 
Projoct Manager fees Payable 762.50 290.43 

‘Trusteeshi : Anite 

Balance outstanding at the end of the year 

Initial Selement Amount - O.10 

Lousteesbip-Fee Rayable 173 2.77 
TRON   
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year cnded March 31, 2023 

40 Capital Management 

4 

  

For the purpose ol the Group's capital management, capital invhides issued unit capital and all other reserves alteibutable to the unit holders of 

the Group, 
The primary objective of the Group's capital inanagement is (© ensure that it maintuins a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in arder 

to support ifs business and maximise unit holder valuc. 

the Group manuges its capital struvture'and makes adjustments to i in light of changes in ceanamie conditions and the requirements of the 

financial covenants, ‘lo maintain or adjust the capital structure..the Group tnay adjust the dividend payment income distribution to unit 

holters (subject to the provisions of SEBE InvEE Regulations which require distribution of at least 9O%eF the het distributable cash flows of the 

Group t unit hokiers), retum capital to unit hokicrs or issue new units. The Group monitors cupital using 4 gearing ratio. which is net debt 

divided by tutal capital plus net debt, The Graup’s-policy is w keep.the gearing ratio optimum: 

in @ Jakh unless 

AS at As.at 

31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

    

Particulars 

Net Debt 

Tem Non-Crrrent ion 92,138.33 14 94 

Maturities of 1 Venn Borrowi 

Vrade Payables OD8.41 1.244 

liabilities 95 

> Cash and Cash 21.424,08 L.A 

Bank Halances other than cash and cush 4.68532 3.17081 

Debt 77, 1 70 

Linit 41.604,32 599-4 

Initial S Amount 6.10 

I A69-36 G.768.4 

otal 2 if 
- 1 1 

27.31 58% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Board of Directors-of Jovestment: Manager. amongst other things. uims-to- ensure that it meets 

firanciad covenants attached to dhe interest-bearing loans and borrowings that detine capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the 

linanwial covenants would permit the lenders tovcall loans and borrowings. ‘Vhere hace been no breaches in the financial cavenants of any 

interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year, No changes were made in the abjectives. policies or processes for managing capital 

during the years ended March 31,2023: and March 31, 2022, 

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 
The Group is in the process of Tonnulation of ils risk management policics with an objective of identification aml analysis of risks laced bythe 

Graup, tw set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor risks-and adherence to limits. Risk management policies shall be reviewed 

regularly lo reflect changes in market conditions andthe Group's activities, 

The Bourd of Directors of Investment Manager has‘overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Ihe Group's risk manugement 

framework. . 
In performing fs operating. investing and financing activities, the Group is exposed to the Credit risk: Liquidity risk and Markel risk, 

Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk thatthe fair value of fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, 

Markel risk comprises three iypeys of risk: interest rate risk, curreney tisk and other price-tisk. Vinancial instruments alfected by market tisk 

include loons ond borrowings, Receivable und Payables and Investments measured at EV TPL. 
‘The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as ut March 31, 2023 and Marel: 31, 2022. 
The sensitivity analyses huve been prepared an the basis that Uie-amounrol nel debt: the ratio of fixed t Noating interest rales of the deh are 

all constant, 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

The sensitivity of the relevant prefit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes inrespective market sks. This is based on the financial 

usscis and financial liabilities bold at March 31, 2023 & March 34, 2022. 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Foreiga Currency Risk _ 

Foreign currency risk is the risk chat the fair value or future cash flows af an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 

rites. ‘The Group transacls business primarily in Indian Rupees only. and hence, the sensitivity of protit and loss of the Group toa possible 

vhange in foreign exchange rates is non-existent as on 31" March, 2023 and 31st Marl, 2022. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate-risk isthe risk that the fiir-value or future cash lows ofa financial instrament will Muctuate because of changes in market interest 

raies, Exposure to risk of changes in- market interest qiles generally relates primarily to long-crm debt obligations with floating interest cates, 

The following table provides a break-up of the group fixed and Naating rate borrowings: 

(All ansounts in? lakh unless otherwise stated 
  

  

          

  

Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2023) As at March 31,2022 

Floating Rate Lorrowings LASS 7013 L.46.537.80 

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk duc to Variable interest rate borrowings Is as folloves: 
Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Debt: (All amounts in 2 lakh unless: othenvise stated) 

Particulars As at March 31,2023) As at March 31, 2022 
  

Increase ar devrease in interest 

tate by 25 basis paints 

Price Risk 

Pricy risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 4 finangial instrument will fluctuate because of chunges in market prices (other 

than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). 

Credit risk 

Credit risk-is the risk that counterparty will not met its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial 

lass, With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, whith camprise Balances with hanks, Trade Receivables. 

Launs and Advances und Investments. The Groap's exposure ta credit risk arises from default_of the counterpucty, with maximum exposure 

equal to the carrying amount af Ulese instrument. 

‘The. carrying value of finaricial assetssrepresents the maximum ereditrisk, ‘The maxinium exposure to credit risk was Rs, 31444.75 Cakh and 
Rs. 10,158.39 Lakh as at Mareh 31, 2022 respectively, heing the-wwtal carrying value ol Loans and Advances: I'rade receivables: Investments, 
Balances with bank. bank deposits and other financial assets, 
Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enti¢y will encounter diMculey in meeting obligations associated with Financial Jiabilities that are 

seliled by delivering cash or another financial esseis, 

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk due to bunk borrowings and arade and other payables. 
he (iroup measures risk by Jurecasting cash flows, 
‘The Group's approach 10 managing liquidicy is to elsure, as tar as possible thar It will always hie sufficient liquidity 10. mest its-liabilities 

when due without inctirring unacceptuble Losses ar risking damage tu the Group's reputation, The Group ensures that it has sullicicit funds t. 

mevt expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations. 
In addition, processes und policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitues the Group's net liquidity 
posilion through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash flows. 

358,93 388.94           

The table beiow-summarises the maturily profile of the group's financial Tiubilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments, 

All amounts in 7 lakh unless 

at 31-03-2023 ‘A <1 Yr. 1-3-¥ 3 Yrs, 
    

  

    

6,000.00 

4} 

Liabilities 9: 284.95 

i 

<1 ¥r. 

1.00.00 F537 80 

Trade 1,244,749 1,244.79 - 

Other Financial 97.85 7.85 : 

; 1,37.537.80 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31. 2023 

42 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” 

Bised on impuirment testing done which involves review of the [utue-discoynted cash flows of the subsidiary, the recoverable amount is 
higher than the carrying amount of the investment made in the subsidiary and accordingly, no provision for impairment is required to be 

recognised In the books as on the repaning date: In case of goodwill bused on impairment testing recoverable amount is higher then the 

carrying value as on the reporting date. hence no provision for impairment ix required Ww be recognised in the books as on reporting date, 

43 Disclosure of Financial Instruments: by Category 
AllLamounts in 2% lakh untess 

at March As 31 

FIVPL IV 

Amortized Cost At Fair 

Valoe 

Amortized 

Cost At Cost At Fair Value At Cost 

21,1 

  

sand Breaches 

There are no defaults during the year with respect to repayment of principal and payment of interest and no breaches of the terms and 

conditions of the borrowings. 

‘There.are no breaches: during the year-which permitted tender to demand avetlerated payment 

44 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

‘The carrymg amount of all financial asscts and liabilities appearing in the financial statements is reasonable approximation of fair values. Pair 
value of the financial ussets and Jiabilities is che amount at which the instrument could be exchanged ina current transaction between willing 
parties. other than in aforced ar liquidation sale, 

The Group is required to present the Statement of total assets al fair value and Statement of total returns at fair value as per SEBI Circular No. 

CIRAIMD:DF/1 14/2016 dated October 20, 2016 as a part of these financial statements - Refer Statement of Net assets al fair value and 
Statement of Total Returos at fair value. 

45 Fair Value Hierarchy 

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed arc categorised within the fair value hivrarchy described as follows, 
bused on the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) inactive markets for identical assets ov Habilities. 

Level 2 - Inpats other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (ie) as prices) or 
indirectly (ive, derived From prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that ure not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

we 
in 

-\ ew Deh 
\2     



NATLONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Class wise composition and comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and linbilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements along with Fair Value Hicrarchy details are given below: 

(All anounts in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

: Carrying ¥alue Fair Value 
Vair Value * 

4 As at As-ut As at As at 
Particulars Hierarchy March 31 

Level ? 2023 * | March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 

Financial Assets af Amortized 

Cost: 

Cushand Cash Equivalents level 3 21,124.08 6.381.94 21,124.08 6381.94 

Trade Reevivables Level 3 350.87 600.47 SS0.87 600,47 

Other Financial Assets Level 3 9.969.860 3.17618 9969.80 3.176.418 

Total 31,444.75 10,158.59 31,444.75 10,158.59 

Financial Liabilities at 

Amertized Cost: 

Borrowings Level 3 2.94,158.33 1.46.537,80 294,158.33]. 1,46.537.80 

Trade Payables Level 3 4008.41 1.244,70 4408.41 1244.79 
Other: Financial |iabilities Level 3 5.28495 97.85 3.284,95 TSS 

Total 303,451.68 1,47,880,44 303,451.68 1,47,830.44 
  

There is one transfer during the year from Level L te Level 3 for Investment in Mutual Funds as these have been been grouped into cash and 

cash equivalents 

The policy of the Group isd recognise translers inty and transler out of fair values hierarchy: levels as at the end of the reporting period, 

Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair value 

liabilities 

) Shares of subsidiaries Cash Ilow 

Effective Rate of Interest 

Investments in 

Loans Income 

louns From Bank 

Debentures 

Effective Rate of Borrow 

Effective Rate of Barrow 

lnveme 

  

4 Disclosure of segment information pursuant to IND AS 108 "Operating Segments" 

The activities of the Group mainly include investing in Infrastructure assets primarily in the SP¥S operating in the road sector te generate cash 

Nows (or distribution to unit holders, Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a 

single operating segment. Further, the entire opcrations of the Group are only in India and hence, disclosure of secondary / geographivul 

segment information does not arise. Accordingly: requirement of praviding disclosures under Ind AS 108 does not arise. 

47 Disclosurepursuant to IND-AS 23 “Borrowing Costs" 

    

Hulised during the vear Rs: Nil [March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil| Rorrowing Hi 
bs     

        4 

 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

48 Details of Project Management Fees and Investment Management Fees 

Details of fees paid to project manager and investment Manuger as required pursuanl Io SEBEL Circular No. CIR/MD/DFH127/2016. dated 

November 29. 2016 areas under; 

Project Management Fees 

The project manager National Highways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited (NUIPMPL') for initial portotio of assets and assets 

acquired in current financial year is entitled ta fixed fees of Rs 991.20 lakh per annum ( Previous year Rs 290.43 Jakh) inclusive of taxes. The 

sane is bused an the Project Implementation and Management Agreement (PIMA) signed by bath the purties dated 30" March, 2021, 

Investment Management Fees 

i) “The investment manager's fee will initially be Rs, 1.100 Lakh (Rupees [leven Hundred Lakh) per annum. exclusive of applicuble taxes as 

per igreement dated 21° October. 2020, 

ii) Che investment manager's fee set out in above shull be subject to escalation on an annual basis at the rate of 1% of the management fee 

tor the previous year, 

iii) Any applicublé taxes, vess-or changes shall be In-addition-te the investment manager's: fee and shall be payable-hy National Highways 

Intra 'leust. (NET) to the Investment Manager (NPIIMPL) 

iv} The payment of investnent manager's fee shall be mude by National Highways [nta Trust (NIET) to the investment manager (NHIIMPL} 

in. advance on a quarterly basis, 

49 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requites management to make judgements. estimates and assumptions: that affect the 

reparted amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the avcompunying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and-estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying aiount of assets 

or liabilities affected it future periods, 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those involving 

estimatians. which have the most significant effect an the amounts recognised in the financial staenents; 

Classification of unit holders Funds 

Under the provisions of the SUBI InviT Regulations. the Trust is required to distribute tu its Unit holders not less than ninety percent of the net 
distributable cash flows of the Trust for each financial year, Accordingly. » portion of the unit-holders’ funds contain:a contractual obligation 

of the Trust to par to its Unit holders cash distributions. 

The Unit holders funds could therefore have heen classified as-compaund financial instrument which contain both equity and debt 

components in accordance with Ind AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments; Presentation’. However, in accordance with SHBE Circulars (Circular no. 

CIRIMDDE 14/2016 dated October 20. 2016 and No. CIRIMD: DP‘127/2016 dated November 29. 2016) issued under the SEBL [nviT 

Regulations, Wie uni holders’ funds have heen classified us equity in order lo. comply with the mandatory requirements of Section H of 

Annexure Ato the SEB) Clreular dated Octaber 20,2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In-line with the 

nheve, the income: distribulion payable to unit holders is recugnized as liability when the same is approved by Board af Directors of the 

  



$0 

St     

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20025 

Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Circutars issued under the SEBE inv Regulations requires disclosures relating to net assets al fair value and total returns al fair value, 
In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries Qvhich canstilule substantial portion of the net assets). the Group engages 

independent qualified external valuers to perform the valuation, The Investment Manager works closely with lhe valucrs to establish the 

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model, The valuation report and findings are discussed at the meeting of the Board of 
Directors*on yearly basis to understand the changes in the fair value of the subsidiaries, The: inputs to the valuation models are taken [rom 

observable markets. where possible, but where this is not teasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing lair-valucs. Judgements 

include considerations of inputs such as weighted average cost of capital. tax rates, inflation rates cte. Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the fair value. 

‘Taxes 

In accordance with section 10 (23FC) of the Income ‘Tax Act. 1961. the income ol business groups in the form of interest received or 

receivable from subsidiaries is exempt from tax. Accordingly, the Group is not required to provide any current tax fiability. Further, deferred 

lax asset on carry forward losses is nbt created Since there sno reasonable certainty ol reversal.of the same in the near future. 

Nefined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

A liubility in respect of detined benefit plans is recognised in the balance shevt and is measured as the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at the reparting date, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on expected folure payments at the reparting dule. 

calculated annually by independent actuaries. Consideration is given to expected future salary levels. experience of employee departures and 

peniads of service, 

Impairment of intangible asscts 
Impairment exists when the carrying valuc of an assel ar cash gencrating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in-use. ‘The recoverable amounts for the intangible issecs are based on value. in use of the underlying 

projects, The value in use calculation is based on 8 DCF model, The cash nows are derived from budgets! forecasts over the life. of the projects. 

Major Maintenance Expenses / Resurfacing Expenses 

As per industry practice, the Project SPY (NEIPPL) is required to carry oul resurfacing of the zoids under the Concession. Por this purpase, a 

regular maintenance along wilh periodic maintenances is required to be performed, Normally. periodic muintenance includes resurface of 
pavements, repairs of structures and other equipment and maintenance of service roads. The maintenance cost / bituminous overlay may vury 

based on the actual usage during maintenance period. Accordingly. an the grounds oF matching cost concept and based on technical estinutes, 

a provision for major maintenance expenses is reviewed and is provided for in the accounts annually. 

The provisions for MMR as per industry practice has been made bused on the first eyele of oF overlay expected to occur in five lo seven years 

and not based on the toval MMR cost over entite concession period, The discounting rate used lor arriving at the present value for MMR 

provisions is gavernment bond rate.of 30 years for projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for projects ucquired in second phase, 

Expected Credit Loss on financial assets 

As per Ind AS 109, Financial Assets that are measured at umoniised cost are required to compute the Expected Credit Lass (ECL). As al the 

reporting period, Investment manager of the Gronp assessed the credit risk af the financial assets and concluded that no provision tor ECL is 

required. 

Other Statutory information 

i) The Group have not traded or invested in Crepto currency or Virtual Crirrency during the financial year: 
ii) The Group docs-not hold benami-properly and no proceedings under benami transaction (Prohibition) Act 1988 have been iniliated against 

the Group, 

iii} Vhe Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off: 

iv} The Group have nol any such transaction which is not recorded in the buoks of secounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the vear in the lax ussessmenss under the Income Tax Act 1961 (such us scurch or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income 

‘Vax Act, 1961), 

v) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or enlityties). including foreign enlities (Funding Party) with the-understanding 

(whether recorded in wriling or otherwise} that the Group shall: . 

(a) direetly or indirectly lend or ifivest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehall af the Funding Party 

(Uitimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf oF the Ultimate Beneticiaries, 

vi) Uhe Group have novadvunee or loaned ar invested (cither from borrowed Suri) or shure promiunyer any Other souree or kind af fund) by the 

company te or in any personts) or entingies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the umierstanding (whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise) that the Group shall: 

ia} directly or indirectly lead or invest in other persons ar entitics dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the Group 

{Uitimate Beneficiaries} or 
{b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

vii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts inchiding derivative contract for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
viii) The: Group has not. declared a wilful: deliudter by any bank linancial institution or any other lender during the year. 

Subsequent Events



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

52 Capital and Other Commitments 

There ure no capital and other commitments as at March 31, 2023 (March 3.1, 2022: Rs. Nil} 

53 Distributions Made 
Alb amounts in 2 unless otherwise stated 

1 

29,985.39 198.27 

at 5 

  

54 Reconciliation of Financing Activities in Cash Flow Statement 

Net Debt Recognition 

All in 2 lakh unless othenvise stated 

at? ’ 

Particulars (Long Term 

    
(Long Term Borrowing) 

A) 

of 

of the end 

55 Additional Regulatory Information 

Financial Ratios.as on March 31. 2023. and March 3), 2022 

S. No. Particulars: 

1 Asset ralio 
c Assets. Liahi 

2! Debt- 1 ratio 

Debt service coverage ratio 

Net Operating Cash flow! Debt Service 

Interest service coverage ratio 

abe? 

Return on Hquity (ROW 
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‘er ratio 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 33 "Earnings per Unit" 

Rasic and Diluted Eamings per Unit (EPL) computed im accordance with Ind AS 33 “Eamings per Shure”: 

(All amounts in 2 lukh unicss otherwise stated) 
  

  

  

  

          

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022 

Basic and Diluted 

Prolit attributable to unit holders oF lhe Fund (A) 25,689.57 6,836.33 

Weighted average number of units (B) 6.566.69 5.952.00 
Earnings Per Unit (in Rs.) (A/B) 3.91 1.15 
  

1312.052 lakh units issued at Ks 19 perunit und 59582 lakh unii capital issucd al Rs 101 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (Code!) relating w employes benefits during employment-and past-employment benetits reevived 

Presidential assent in. September 2020.The Code hus been published in the Gazette of India, However, the date an whieh the Code will wome 

into effect has nat been notified The ¢ iroupy wilLassess the impact of the Code when it comes-into effect and will recard any related impact in 

the perind the Cade becames effective. 

Financial Information of Inyvesiment Manager 

The summary financials of Invesument Manager are nat disclosed_alongwith these financials 2s its networth is not materially eroded. 

Withholding Tax liability for interest accrued but not due on non convertible debentures 

The Trust hus issued publicly listed non convertible debentures. CNCDs"} with interes! payable on scmisannual basis, Interestan these NCDs 

was due for payment on 25° April 2023 and for.the purpose of payment of interest, record date was 10 April 2023 and debenture-bolders 

existing as on 10 April 2023 ure entitled to the coupon interest, Trust has recorded Hability-of interest accrued tiIL3 1st March 2023 and there is 
no credit in favaur oF any payee at the time of creating such provision as entitled payee will be identifiable as on record cute ic. on 1) April 

2023. 

As on the year end March 2023, there is uncenainty with respect to the ultimate recipicat of interest income, and such uncenainty would anty 

become ¢lvar.on the record date i.e. 10 April 2023 when the obligation of payment of interest. by MIED arises and therefore ‘Trust has not 

wilbheld any laxes at the time of creating these provisions. 

Salient aspects of the Tolling Coneession Arrangement 

Vhe Project SPY ENEIPPL) has entered into five concession agreements with National Ilighway Authority of India (“NHAL") on March 30, 
2021 for Yolling: Management, Maintenance and Transfer of five-toll road projeets for a period of 30 yours from the Appointed Date. 'The 

Appointed Dare has commenced on [6.12:2021. The toll roads covered under he concession agreement ps follows: 

- Palanpur’ Khemana — Abu Road Project on NH-27 with total length of 45 kins, connecting dhe states of Gujrat and Rajasthan 

- Abu Road- Swaraopgunj Project on NMI-27 with total length af 31 kms. in the state of Rajasthan 

~ Maharashtra Karnataka Border (Kagal) — Belgaum Project on NH-48 with a length of 77.7 Kms, connecting the states of Karnatuku and 

Mahurushtra 

~ Chitorgarh- Kota & Chittorgarh Project on NH-27 with coral fengitrof 160.5 Kins, in tie state of Rajasthan 

- Kothakota Bypass- Kurmvol Highway Project on NH-44 with total length of 74.6 Kms. connecting the states of Telangana and Andhra 

Pradesh 

The project SPV (NHIPPL) acquired rights for Tolling. Management-and Maintenance of the five toll roads under the concession agreement 

for consideration of INR 7,350.40 Crare, and the rights have been recognized in the flnancial statements as Intangible Assets. 

In current financial year, the project SPY (NUIPPL.) entered into.three- new: concession agreements with National Highway Authority of India 

(“NHAIL") on September 26, 2022 lor Tolling: Management, Maintenance and Transleror three:toll road projects for a period of 20 years from 

the Appointed Date. The Appoitited Date has commenced on 29.10.2022. The toll roads vovered under the concession agreement'as Jollows: 

~- Agra bypass Section (from km 0.000 to ken: 32.800) of NH-E9 in the state of Uttir Pradesh 

~ Borkhedi-Wadner-Deodhani-Kelupur Section (from km 36.600 to'km 175.000) of NH-44 in the state of Maharashtra 

+ Shivpuri - Jhansi Section (from km 1363.087 to kor 1380.38? pof NI-27 in the states of Madhva Pradesh und Uttar Pradesh. 

The project SPY (NHIPPL) has acquired rights for Tolling, Management and Maintenance of these three toll roads. atu consideration of INR 

2.849,66 Crore, und the rights have been revoznized in the Nnaneia) statements as Intangible Assets. 

Phe project SPM ANUIPPL) is required to operate and maintain the Project’ Praia Facilities in acgordanee with the provision af the 
Agreement, Applicable Laws and Applicable permits: a — 

    



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

61 Diselosures.as per Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets” 
a) Nature of provisions 

The praject SPV (NHIPPL)is required to operate-and maintain tbe project tollway during the entire concession period and hand aver the 

project hack to NITAL as per the maintenance standards preseribed in concession agreements. For ihis purpose, a regular maintenance along 

with periodic maintenanve is required to be performed. Normally, periodic inaintenanee includes resurlive of pavements, repairs of structures 

and other equipment and maintenance of service roads. As per industry practice. the periodic maintenance is expected to occur ance in five to 

seven ¥vears. The provisions for MMR us per industry practice bas been made based on the first cyole of of overlay expected (o occur in five to 

seven years andl nol based on the total MMR cost over enlire concession period, The discoutiting rate used for arriving at the present value for 

MMR prosisions is government band rate of 30 wears lor projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for projects acquired in second phase. 

The mainienance cost / bituminous overlay may vary based on the actual usage-during maintenance perind..Accardingly, on the grounds of 

matching cost concept and based on teehnical-estimates, a provision for major maintenance expense is reviewed and is provided for in the 

financial statements In each reporting period, Considering ‘thar the expense to be Incurred is depended on various factors including the usage, 

wear and tear of the tall road_ bituminous overlay. cte.. it is not passible to estimate the exuclt timing al Uhe-quantum of the cashflove. 

62 Assets pledged ay security 

63 

64 

    

     

  

Under security provisians for external lenders. the shares of project SPY ie. NINIPPL beld by NUTT (Trust) are pledged 1¢ external lenders (0 

‘Trust. Whereas the loans provided by Trust to NHIPPL is assigned lo the external lenders. Also it way be noted that the shares are not pledges! 

to debenture holders. Whe carrying amounts of assels pledged ds security for cutrent and. non-current borrawings are | 

Particulars At March 31, 2023 At March 31, 2022 

Current 

Financial assets 

First Cc 

‘Trade receivables 87 60047 

and cash valents 21,124.08 6.38194 

financial assets 297.36 $38 

Non Financial - - 

a5 347 
i 7 

T7031 

non “ 1 | 

‘otal assets 

Key sources. of estimation 

‘The preparation of financial statements it conformity with Ind AS requires the Group makes estimates and assumptions that allect the reported 
amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent 

liubilities as of the date of the financial statements, The estimates and underlying assumpiions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimules include allowance for doubtful loans /otherreceivables, fair value measurement ele, Difference, 1 uny, between the actual 

results.and estimates Is recognised in the period in which the results are known, 

Previous Year Figures 

Provious year’s numbers huve been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform te current year’s classification. 

For A.R..& Co. For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra 

Chareeyer Ascoumtants Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment, Manager of 

Firm Registration no. 06% National Highways Infra Trust) 
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